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We have emerged from the COVID-19 pandemic, which has cut through the arteries of the giobal
economy, a resilient Company. The lesson we have learnt in this period is the critical importance of
sustainability. The reality, however, is that humanity will be subjected. to endless waves of attack from
this and future pandemics and thus needs to learn to co-exist with same. As Carl Rodgers observed,
“The only person who is educated is the one who has learned how to learn and change.” We have
thoroughly assessed the risks that impact on our strategy and planned mitigation measures. This
demands integration of strategic risk analysis into the overall business strategy and planning process.

The Vision of the Company of being “the most sought-after partner in the world for the provision of
airport management solutions by 2030" remains unchanged. Our strategy is sfill premised on our
strategic pillars to “Run airports, Develop airports and Grow our footprint’. The ACSA strategy will be
now implemented over three timeframes, now - 2025 (Horizon 1),
2026 - 2030 {Horizon 2) and beyond 2030 (Horizon 3) to create value over the short-, medium- and
long- term. The ACSA Growth Strategy which is a blueprint for the Recover and Sustain Strategy, will
guide the growth of the business in Horizons 2 and 3 of our strategy.

Our Growth Strategy is supported by strategic initiatives which 1 will highlight a few of and will help us
grow our aeronautical revenue, enhance non-aeronautical revenue and generate non-core revenue.
The Passenger Experience and Mobilisation Strategy is intended to mobilise and attract rural and
township communities to make use of our airports and provide easy and affordable access to air travel.
The advent of Covid-19 has demonstrated that cargo growth, powered by ecommerce, is resilient in
comparison to the loss of passenger traffic during the pandemic. Towards this end we have adopted a
Cargo Strategy. The implementation of our innovation Strategy will place ACSA on a growth path to
ensure future competitiveness. The plans for implementation of these initiatives are enunciated in this

Corporate Plan.

The immediate goal of recovery in terms of improvement in traffic and passenger volumes will be
achieved through ACSA’s regionalisation vision of “Opening up & world of possible connections
amongst South Africa's network of airports, the region, and the world”. ACSA passenger volumes are
expected to recover to the 2019 level by 2026/2027 through an organic growth path. The Aeronautical
Revenue Strategy, which is aimed at recovery and improvement of efficiencies, will be implemented
through various building blocks, namely, recovery of lost traffic; route and traffic development; and
improvement of operational efficiencies and intermodal connectivity. With the implementation of the
route/traffic development, passenger mobilisation, Cargo Strategy, and ACSA's participation in the
Department of Tourism initiatives, the traffic recovery to 2019 levels can be brought forward to as early
as late 2025 or early 2026. With the proposed initiatives, ACSA can add just under R600 million in
additional aeronautical revenue. Agility in the implementation of the Aeronautical Revenue Strategy is
the key to realise these set goals.

The planning to prepare for “develop airports® will be done as speedily as possible so that
implementation may be swift to turn around the business and set a sustainable path for the future.

Financial sustainability and recovery are premised on:

= The identification of new opportunities brought on by the changed landscape. Various
superpowers have invested in Africa to exploit the resources of the continent. Given that there
is a large infrastructure shortage and deficit in airport management expertise in Africa, ACSA
has positioned itself as the go-to agent to provide a one-stop solution.

= The current financial situation, financial stability and growth. Credit rating agencies highlighted
areas of risk that should be focused on to enable sustainability, and ACSA is taking all
necessary precautions to remain a going concemn and retain its credit rating.

» Building non-aeronautical revenue with more haste, direction and purpose through the ACSA
Global Strategy and well as the Non-aeronautical Revenue Strategy. Through this strategy,
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ACSA endeavours to build a resilient business to ensure financial sustainability of ACSA in the
long term that focuses not only on traditional income, but non-traditional income streams.

= We are committed to the ICAO key principles for recovery which focus on Protecting people,
Connectivity, Solidarity, Managing Security and Health Risks, Strengthening Public
Confidence, Ensuring Sustainability and Lessons to Improve Resilience. Hygiene and safety
requirements will be tightened and technology will continue to revolutionise the travel
experience. The air transportation system globally is being changed, or disrupted, by
technology and this presents opportunity to accelerate substantial innovation and
transformation. ACSA is focused on implementing a digitised operating model that is linked to
revenue diversification, cost reduction, operational efficiency and risk mitigation. The key
immediate elements of digitisation include passenger expectations as well as enterprise and
cyber security.

An agile and swift implementation approach to plans and strategies is required as we run, develop and
grow our airports to achieve our vision of “to be the_ most sought-after partner in the world for the
provision of airport management solutions by 2030.”

Fo

Dr Sandile Nogxina
Board Chairman
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The almost two years journey into the Covid-19 pandemic continues to deplete our liquidity and put
pressure on our assets as the debt overhangs continue to threaten our financial sustainability. As the
world reels from the impact of Covid-19, led by the scientific breakthroughs with the development of
effective vaccines, there is a glimpse of hope and a better line of sight for the future. The primary objective
of the revised Recover and Sustain Strategy is to return the company’s financial performance to relative
recovery and stability by the end of financial year 2023/2024. Therefore, the success of our strategy
hinges on our ability to harmoniously harness people, security, assets, and information technology and
communications (ICT) resources.

We are faced with the following material matters which can affect our ability to create and sustain value
for our short-, medium- and long-term and support our strategic goals:

in-line with our developmental mandate and creation of value for shareholders, our commitment to
addressing socio economic, governance and transformational challenges for a sustainable and inclusive
air travel sector remains. Our ability to innovate, identify opportunities and take responsible risks is
important for growth and development of a sustainable business consistent with United Nations Social
Development Goals ("SDG") for a better tomorrow. The Company has adopted a proactive and agile
approach to addressing the sustainability risk through operational integrity and financial stability. To this
end, we continue to explore opportunities and make informed decisions guided by the extensive risk-
based scenario planning and analysis to adapt to current financial and operational conditions.

Following on the guidelines from Airports Council International on sustainability, the key piliars in
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") will form an integral part of ACSA’s recovery and growth

with full ESG reporting in the next financial year.

Our sustainability imperatives are based on the principles of environmental protection of our airports’
ground operations and werkforce, and protection of communities around the airports. This will be
achieved through partnerships with airlines, ground handiers, automobile, ground equipment and aircraft
manufacturers and other relevant stakeholders through collaborative projects and initiatives to enhance

airport efficiency.

The airport economic regulation framework continues to be the primary mechanism of influencing ACSA's
core business which is dependent on the permission granted to apply tariffs for generation of revenue
from aircraft and passenger movements. This permission is based on a rolling 5-year cycle reviewed
every three years. Therefore, the ramifications of any decision negatively impacting on tariffs to be applied
has a long-term impact on the company's financial performance and delivery on modern infrastructure for
growth and efficiency. Ongoing engagements are being held with the Economic Regulator and the
Department of Transport (DoT) regarding the adoption of & more effective and efficient airport economic
regulatory framework to ensure the future sustainabllity of the air transport sector. Airports Councll
International World and its members - global airports, has adopted a policy position on airport ownership,
economic regulation, and financial performance which states the need for flexibility and consistency in
regulatory frameworks that govern airport revenues and capital investments. Specifically, it advocates a
move toward well-crafted economic incentives that enable private equity to flow to the airport industry
and helps contain the level of risk of such a capital-intensive investment.
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Improving our aeronautical revenue remains our primary focus with the important elements as increasing
passengers, cargo and general aviation. These elements are underpinned by plans that are articulated
in this Corporate Plan. The improvement in aeronautical revenue is underpinned by the successful
implementation of the airport network regionalization strategy and maintaining the hub status. Whilst
revenue growth remains paramount, operational efficiency of our airports is also an important contributor
to our bottom line, and hence monitoring of operational KPIs at our airports.

Revenue diversification is an important element of our Growth Strategy and plan. Non-aercnautical
revenue assists the organization to reduce the level reliance on traditional aeronautical revenue, thereby
helping to mitigate concentration risk and enabling business continuity through diversification.
Additionally, we can leverage off our reputation as an airport business as a potential driver of non-core
growth, as it influences our ability to provide competitive advisory services to other airports. There has
been a review of all commercial strategies, all these under the banner of non-aeronautical revenue.

Our Recovery and Sustain Strategy identifies in the short term, the recovery driven by operational
efficiency supported by digitisation. This area of emphasis is deliberate, responsive and shows our agility
to new technology advancement and with the global emphasis of passenger facilitation, touchless
technology, particularly in the post Covid-19 era. Technology and digitisation advancements present an
opportunity, despite the risks and heightened threat they pose in the form of business disruption through
cyber-crime. The company has invested in cyber liability insurance (to cover losses as a result of cyber-
crimes), cyber security programmes {inciuding but not limited to identity and access management, data
protection and cloud risk capability improvements) and technology security tools that identify, detect,
protect and prevent cyber breaches.

Business - Changes in working practices, worker reskilling, supply chain changes and expansion of the
gig economy, have all been influenced by the COVID-1@ pandemic. Lockdown necessitated the
implementation of these adjustments, but their impact on global business dynamics is projected to be
long-lasting. We &ire forced to reinvest in training as a result of the COVID-18 outbreak and make better
use of technology to improve performance.

Economy - With decreased international trade and tourism, the current economic trend toward de-
globalization, especizlly trade decoupling, is highly disruptive. This may affect South Africa and ACSA's
ability to facilitate increased trade and stimulate economic growth. The African Continental Free Trade
Area (AfCFTA) has never been more important for Africa's growth, the aviation sector and ACSA’s
strategic role on the continent. The growth in the global air cargo business despite passenger traffic
decline has led to our refocusing on this previously neglected aeronautical business. ACSA is well placed
to drive trade facilitation from South Africa, the manufacturing hub on the continent, enabling critical
market access:to our fledging local businesses. Qur infrastructure development programme will, however,
remain muted in“the medium term except where we can attract significant investments and partnership
and show immediate returns.
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We will continue to engage proactively with lenders such as development finance institutions and banks
to ensure that the company has diverse funding sources to meet its funding requirements. This will enable
us to raise funding in a cost-effective manner and achieve favourable terms. Our commitment to good
governance and compliance with our country’s constitutional and legislative framework will sustain and
continue to protect us from the adverse impact of negative credit rating and audit outcomes. Our
Operation Clean Audit will stand us in good stead over the next three years.

Transformation of our business, our people, society and our environment in an integrated, collaborative
and sustainable approach forms an integral part of our organisation. Our mandate requires us to make a
positive contribution to the economic growth and development of South Africa, therefore the risk is closely
monitored and mitigations implemented in as far as ACSA's role allows. We promote inclusive growth
that boosts the economy, creates jobs, and empowers our people. We address inequality, strengthen our
democracy and promote sustainable use of environmental resources. Concerned particularly by the
adverse economic impact of Covid-19 on our people, we will refocus our efforts on the communities that
immediately surround our airports as our beneficiaries through socio-economic development

opportunities in the next three years.

ACSA's global and domestic growth outlook remains the cornerstone of our strategic plans. While our
short-term focus is on navigating the current market conditions, our growth ambitions are centred on
managing the related risks and rebuilding our network. To maintain and develop our footprint, we seek
opportunities to provide alternative sources of revenue and improve long-term sustainability.

Our Growth Strategy was approved in 2021 with emphasis on diversifying our business through the
aerotropolis development in the “golden triangle airports of OR Tambo, King Shaka and Cape Town.” To

bolster these efforts, we have adopted a Regionalisation Strategy and consolidate our capacity and for

the three primary airports as the growth engines of our airport network. In the secondary airports, airport

city planning will ensure integration with local economic development initiatives. Urban and property
development will ensure growth of our non- aeronautical revenue. integrated public transport, energy and
passenger services that will make airports transport hubs of the future. Revenue generation through the

most effective use of our infrastructure and assets is core to our growth including the monetisation of our
non-core assets in the short term. Partnerships with various state entities, private and public sector "
investors, are the hallmark of our growth trajectory in the still challenged aviation industry.

The risk profile of safety and security in the organization is divided into three key components. Firstly,
airports as Critical Infrastructure attracts large numbers of people, security threats, high impact crimes or
safety incidents. If these risks material, this would affect national security, our reputation and aeronautical
operations. We will implement the Critical Infrastructure Protection Act No 8 of 2019 to mitigate the
security risks and threats. Secondly, occupational health and safety to minimise injuries and loss of life
for staff and stakeholders, which was elevated during Covid19, will be key. Lastly, adherence to aviation
safety regulations and compliance risk appetite, by keeping aviation incidents as low as reasonably
practical to maintain our licence to operate. Strategic parinerships with relevant law enforcement
agencies have been established and business continuity plans are also in place fo respond to crises and
ensure continuity. We continuously reviews aviation’s safety and security standards and ensure South
African Civil Aviation Authority training is provided to the employees and conducts emergency exercises.
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Technology and digitisation enable improved airport operational efficiencies as well as the improved
management of other organizational functions, including safety and security systems. Stakehoiders,
including customers and business partners, continue to demand innovation in automated services, digital
enablement, and data analysis. Through digitisation we have realised business value delivered through
significant investments in technology and information, yielding increased operational efficiencies and
reducing operational expenditure.

Key to the implementation of our Strategy is the implementation of the revised Governance Framework
and Operating Model. The result of which was a new capability model and new Organisational Structure
together with our staff cost reduction programme through the voluntary severance packages and early
retirements. ACSA lost close to 700 employees and was downsized in accordance with the new operating
mode! and we stand poised to start the new financial year with a new more efficient and lean structure,
to grow the business and we will review our staff compiement in line with the return of traffic and business
expansion into the medium term. The key shift in our HR business strategy is that the organization
requires refocused and revitalised employees. To guard against the risk of not achieving the new strategy
the “New Employee Experience” approach will be introduced to foster refocused and revitalised
employees. Our people and culture strategy which places emphasis on continuous awareness and
measuring of the company’s PRIDE culture has been developed and is being implemented. Further to
this, we are implementing change management initiatives and workforce optimization plan.

International investments are opportunities we value and pursue, through constant vigilance on global
and continental aviation trends. In 2021 we developed and approved a Global Strategy Initiative as part
of our Growth strategy guided by our geopolitical risk assessment and regions of focus for future
partnerships and investment. In addition tc actively seek airport development and management
opportunities in South Africa's underdeveloped aviation market.

ACSA continues to pursue and play a strategic role in multi-lateral organisations such as the Airports
Council International both at Africa and World levels and has earned recognition for its role particularly in
the Covid 19 recovery through ACI Health Accreditation. ACSA will in the medium term integrate its efforts
through multi-taterals like AC, ICAO, AFCAC of the AU and bilateral relations both in Africa and the World
fo pursue our strategic objectives and future growth.

— — e e g

In line with international standards and in response to our countries environmental policy ACSA will
vigorously implement plans for environmental protection and effective mitigation and adaptation to climate
change for all our airports. Guided by the ACI World commitment to net zero carbon by 2050, we will
continue to explore alternative energy sources In line with our country's policy of just transition for both
for our airports and as a potential growth initiative. The role of the airport in the provision of clean energy
for aviation and other transport modes will be an opportunity worth pursuing.

We are looking forward to playing our role in supporting national economic recovery and growth,
particularly trade facilitation and tourism through our efforts to reconnect, recover and rebuild.

Mpumi Mpofu’
Chief Executive Officer
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Scope and boundary

Airports Company South Africa SOC Ltd's (the
Company or ACSA) FY2022/23-FY2024/25
Corporate Plan spans the three-year period
from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 20256. It includes
an overview of the Company, its background,
strategy, sustainability framework, key
performance indicators (KPI) - as guided by the
Framework for Managing Programme
Performance Information (FMPPI) — as well as
covering leadership and ethics, performance
and reporting, governance and delegation, risks
and opportunities, compliance and a three-year
financial plan.

About this Corporate Plan

This Corporate Plan was initiated considering
and applying frameworks including the Public
Finance Management Act, No. 1 of 1999, as
amended (PFMA), Companies Act, No. 71 of
2008, as amended (Companies Act), King
Report on Corporate Governance for South
Africa 2016 (King IV), IFRS, ISO/SANS 31000
as a best practice to guide risk management
implementation and International Integrated
Reporting Council's <IR> Framework.

Forward-looking statements

The forward-looking statements in this report,
or oral statements that may be made by
officers, or Directors, prescribed officers or

employees acting on the Company's behaif,
constitute or are based on various or certain
assumptions that may change or be subject to
revision. These statements involve risk and
uncertainty, as they relate to events or
circumstances that may or may not occur.
Factors that could cause actual future resuits to
differ materially from those in the forward-
looking statements include, but are not limited
to:
¢ COVID-19 pandemic

Global and domestic economic conditions
e The nature of the aviation sector and

specifically the performance of airline

operators

o Changes in passenger profiles and choices

o Retall offerings at our airports

e Interestrates

e Credit and associated risks of borrowing
and funding

» Rating agencies’ statements and
determinations

Gross and operating margins
Capital management; and

o Competitive and economic regulatory
factors.
s Digitisation

The Company does not undertake to update or
otherwise revise any of these forward-looking

.statements publicly, whether in reflecting on

new information or future events or otherwise.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure the integrity of the FY2022/23-FY2024/25
Corporate Pian. The Board confirms it has collectively reviewed the contents of the Corporate Plan to
the best of its knowledge and believes it reflects our external environment and presents fairly the
Company's strategy and our intended impact and outcomes as these relate to business, people and

society and the environment.

The Board hes approved the FY2022/23-FY2024/25 Corporate Plan.

.4/_\ ) s
£ e
AT /‘zfé"»ff 3 e 0@/\
k’dvpcate Sandyie Nogxina Mpumi Mpofu
Board éﬁélr Chief Executive Officer
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4. PART A - OUR MANDATE

ACSA owns and manages nine South African airports, participates in equity investments abroad and
provides technical advisory and consultancy services to other airports nationally and internationally.

The South African Government is the majority shareholder with a 74.6% stake in the Group. In line with
the government’s development objectives, we focus on creating sustainable value that positively
impacts our business, our people, society and our environment. These elements are the core focus of
our Sustainability Framework, which guides our transformation agenda.

The mandate is fo undertake the acquisition, establishment, development, provision,
maintenance, management and control or operation of any airport, any part of any
airport, or any facility or service at any airport normally related to the functioning of
an airport in terms of the Airports Company South Africa Act No. 44 of 1993.

There are diverse shareholders (as shown below) with the South African
Government, through the Depariment of Transport (DoT), the major shareholder in
the Company. ACSA is a State-owned company, and schedule 2 public entity in terms
of the PFMA. The Group is legally autonomous and operates within the ambit of the
Companies Act.

a2%

1.2% South African Government is our primary
shareholder.

1 @ Public Investment Carporstion (Pic)
I The PIC shareholding s held through ADR
p International Airports SA (Pty} Ltd, 2 whally
cwned subsidiary of PIC.

Empowerment investors:

.1.2% G10 Investments {Pty)} itd

* 1.4% Oppressed A CS A Minority 1

* 0.4% Pybus Thirty Four lnvestment {Pty] Lzd
* 0.8% Telle Investments {Pty) itd

* 0.4% Upfront Investments 64 {Pty) ixd

Steff share incentive scheme

—
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In supporting the delivery of the recently approved strategy, an enhanced operating model and
capability model was developed and approved. The operating model, depicted below, has been
harmonised to ensure focus and delivery at the appropriate levels

BUSINESS STRATEGY & GROWTH

BUSINESS SUPPORT

e [ -

In ensuring the operating model is fittingly resourced, the Company’s capability model has been
modified to strengthen lts fit-for-growth outlook.
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The following critical processes aligned to the Recover and Sustain strategy, were identified and are in
the process of implementation.
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To be the most sought-after partner in the world for the provision of airport
management solutions by 2030

To acquire, develop and manage world-class airports and related businesses for
the benefit of all our stakeholders and the socio-economic development of South

Africa
PRIDE: Passion — Results — Integrity — Diversity — Excellence

Connecting people to, people, places, dreams, and opportunities

ACSA's sustainable value creation entrenches ESG (economic, social and governance) and is at the
core of the envisioned outiook. The Company is determined to develop and deliver on its mandate such
that it can be seen as a successful business committed to doing the right thing.

Our sustainable value creation is centred on stimulating economic prosperity, social equity and

environmental integrity. By adopting an integrated thinking approach, ACSA ensures its strategy and
decision-making is underpinned by an awareness it has on the effect and impact on its business, its

people and society and the environment.

tat iy I_ A
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Using sustainability as a lens for value creation, the Company continues to unapologetically accelerate
transformation by directing resources, remaining agile and ensuring programmes and initiatives are in
place to manage our impacts. The approach to sustainability is underpinned by the drive to contribute
{o the soclo-economic transformation of the South African society.
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The situational analysis, notably considering the impact of COVID-18, provides an analysis of the
internal and external factors as well as insight to assist projected growth, understand the existing and
potential custorers, assess the opportunities and evaluate the state of our business.

GLOBAL AND SOUTH AFRICAN ECONOMIC ANALYSIS

Global Economic Overview and Outlook

The Covid-19 pandemic has caused unprecedented global economic contraction and reversed the
gains made over the years with millions of people around the globe losing their livelihoods.

Currently, the global economy is expected to increase at g 5.6 percent annual rate in 2021 according
to the World Bank, the fastest pace in 80 years following a recession, despite the resurgence of the
pandemic. Renewed outbreaks of the Covid-19 virus are prompting some countries to restrict their
activity, creating bottlenecks and straining supply lines.

Global economic growth continues to be robust, aided by government and central bank support and
advancements in vaccines. However, while global GDP is moving towards its pre-pandemic level, the
recovery continues to be unequal, with countries emerging from the crisis confronting a variety of
obstacles. COVID-19's fault lines appear to be more persistent—near-term divergences are predicted
fo have a lasting effect on medium-term performance. The gaps are primarily caused by limited vaccine
access and early policy support. Recoveries in emerging market and developing economies will
continue {o lag those in advanced economies.

According to the International Monetary Fund ( IMF), the global economic growth is anticipated to record
5.9 percent growth in 2021 (0.1 percent lower than in prior forecasts), more optimistic than the World
Bank, and 4.9 percent in 2022. The lower revision for 2021 involves a downgrade for advanced
economies — owing in part to supply disruptions — and for low-income developing countries, owing
mostly to deteriorating pandemic dynamics. Demand has increased as restrictions have been removed,
but supply has been slower to adapt. Although pricing pressures in most countries are likely to ease in
2022, inflation forecasts are quite uncertain. These increases in inflation are ocauring while
employment remains below pre-pandemic levels in many economies, putting policymakers in a difficuit
paosition.

For low-income countries, this is largely countered by the more optimistic outiook for some commadity-
exporting emerging market and developing nations in the short term.

The rapid spread of Delta and the potential of new variations, which has realised in the form of the
Omicron-variant, have heightened concerns about the pandemic's viability. Policy choices have
become increasingly difficult due to a lack of manoceuvrability.

Economic expectations are as follow:

¢ Global economy expected to record am at least 5.6 percent growth in 2021 and 4.9 percent in 2022.

« US — IMF projects a 6.0 percent growth rate in 2021, followed by an expansion of 5.2 percent in
2022,

¢ Eurozone - is projected to rebound in 2021 expanding by 5.0 percent increasing at a decreasing
rate by 4.3 percent in 2022.

¢ China — is expected to grow by 8.0 percent in 2021 which is lower than anticipated due to down-
scaling of public investment, and 5.6 percent in 2022.

18fPage
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The African and South African Economic Overview and Outlook

The Covid-19 effects could reverse hard-won gains in poverty reduction in Africa over the past two
decades. in 2020, economic activity in Africa was stified by a global epidemic triggered by COVID-19.
Africa's real GDP is expected to expand by 3.4 percent in 2021, following a contraction of 2.1 percent
in 2020. The region's three major economies—Angola, Nigeria, and South Africa—have mostly
recovered from a 4.2 percent decline in 2020. This anticipated recovery from the worst recession in
more than half a century will be bolstered by the resumption of tourists, a rise in commodity prices, and
the removal of pandemic-induced restrictions. Some relief was provided in terms of fiscal stimulus
packages. Fiscal stimulus programs range from around 32% in Mauritius to 10% in South Africa to less

than 1% in Tanzania.

However, global economic conditions are no longer as favourable to emerging and developing
economies as they were earlier this year. Further, the outlook is fraught with uncertainty due to both
global and local challenges. The risks to the outlook are skewed to the downside and include persistent
procurement and logistical barriers to vaccination, further increases in food prices that could exacerbate
food insecurity, rising internal tensions and conflicts, and more severe long-term damage from the

pandemic than anticipated.

The economic impact of the pandemic differs by country. Tourism-dependent economies are expected
to rebound from an 11.5 percent decline in 2020 to grow 6.2 percent in 2021; oil-exporting economies
are expected to recover from a 1.5 percent decline to grow 3.1 percent; other resource-intensive
economies are expected to recover from a 4.7 percent decline o grow 3.1 percent; and non-resource-
intensive economies are expecied to recover from a 0.9 percent decline to grow 4.1 percent.

Southern Africa was the hardest devastated region by the pandemic, with an economic drop of 7.0
percent projected for 2020. It is expected to rise at a 3.2 percent annual rate in 2021 and a 2.4 percent

annual rate in 2022,

it e e n g
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South Africa's growth is predicted fo reach 5.2 percent in 2021, aided by a gradual relaxation of COVID-
19 limitations and higher metal prices according to the South African Reserve Bank (SARB). The annual
growth rate of GDP in 2021 indicates a solid recovery from the pandemic's economic effects. While
expansionary monetary and fiscal policies have boosted activity, GDP will remain much lower than it
was in 2018 through 2022. Economic growth is predicted to slow to a crawl during the next two years,
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in line with the low pace of potential growth. GDP growth is anticipated to reach 1.7 percent in 2022
and 1.8 percent in 2023. GDP growth is expected to be 2.0 percent in 2024.

Increased fiscal pressures and slow growth in public investment continue to cast doubt on South Africa's
near-term growth prospects. Significant structural barriers to potential growth persist, notably labour
market rigidities, as seen by persistently high levels of unempioyment.

Aviation Overview and Outlook

The coronavirus disease (COVID-19) pandemic's impact on global air transport is unprecedented. In
2018 the aviation sector reached a golden age, the price of oil was cheap, cost structures are stable
globally and passenger traffic was surging (Guzhva, et al., 2019; SATAIR, 2020). By December 2019,
Covid-19 started emerging and on 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization (WHO) declared the
COVID-19 outbreak a pandemic (ACI, 2021)flinging the global economy and aviation sector into chaos.

The year 2020 began with many countries around the world closing their borders in response to the
introduction of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak. This was followed by the imposition of a
slew of restrictions and rules limiting people's freedom of movement to slow the spread of the virus
(Mazareanu, 2021). In the second quarter of 2020, the ongoing COVID-19 outbreak reduced airports
worldwide to a virtual stop (ACI, 2021).

Prior to the pandemic, about 4.5 billion passengers were recorded; this figure plummeted to around
1.76 billion when the virus began to spread. The significant fall in global travel resulted in disastrous
financial results for the aviation industry (ICAQ, 2021; Mazareanu, 2021 )- The loss for airports globally
in 2020 is estimated at 64,6% of passengers amounting to more than USD 124,8 billion in airpart
revenues. Africa in particular lost -67,6% of its total passenger throughput which resulted in a loss of
USD2,7 billion (ACI, 2021 as cited in ICAQ, 2021). The ACSA network particularly, lost 65,8%
passenger volumes for the calendar year 2020 (78,2% for the financial year 2020/21) (ACSA, 2021 )

Demand shocks do not usually have long-lasting impacts
Previous shocks cut 5-20% from RPKs but recovered after 6-18 months
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According to IATA (2021), ACI (2021) and Boeing (2021), the aviation sector will return to 2019 levels
by 2023. In 2022 giobal passenger numbers are expected to recover to 88% of pre-COVID-19 levels.
By 2030 global passenger volumes will record 7% below the pre-COVID-19 forecasts and an estimated
loss of 2-3 years of growth due to COVID-19. Beyond 2030 a CAGR of 3,2% is expected. However,
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there is a severe downside risk if more severe travel restrictions in response to new variants persist.
Should such a scenario materialize, demand improvement could be limited.

PASSENGER FORECAST

ACSA's domestic market is expected to recover by latest 2024/25 (although earlier is anticipated) and
the international segment by 2026/27 to 2019 levels. This is a conservative view. There is a causal
relationship between GDP and domestic passenger volumes and as such it is expected that when GDP
reaches 2019 levels in 2023, the domestic segment will reach 2019 levels. In terms of the international
segment, as South African air traffic is dependent on its key tourist markets, and particularly the
European market, recovery is expected to reach 2019 levels by latest 2026/27, as the European market

will only reach 2018 levels by 2025.

However, one of the key issues to deal with is to allay uncertainties in the airport and travel environment
by incorporating health measure reform, focus on customer demand and adapt and implement

touchless processing.

Adopt Intemnet of
Things technology in

Airporis’ own

Strengthen health Redesign and adapt

measures; Ensure reputation and
enhanced brand among services and -
cleanlines? atall ghavelliers: Metetlng pr%tl’.!:tt;::sm?rsae:don p : %%sgnegy f;or
stages of the anging customer Touchless
demands employee feadback proceseing

journey

of adaptive digital

Seamless terminal communication
lay-outs; Create and support; Offer a high Focus on
friendiiness of staff

quality free and
unlimited intemet
connection; Provide
real time information

adapt open-air
spaces

The short-term growth rates and long-term forecast, providing various scenarios are below. The long-
term forecast indicates a VV-shaped recovery (with a long tail).
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Passenger growth rates (Short term)
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Recovery for ACSA is expected latest 2026/27, with the domestic segment expected to recover by

2024/25 (which is conservative as GDP is expected to recover to 2019 levels by 2023) and the
international segment by 2026/27.
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ALIGNMENT TO THE MEDIUM-TERM STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK (MTSF) AND
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORT (DoT) STRATEGIC THRUSTS

ACSA is intent on strengthening and contributing to the African and international agenda of a better
Africa and the world. This, in turn, will assist ACSA in contributing to economic growth through tourism
and trade facilitation; particularly harnessing opportunities presented by the African Continental Free
Trade Agreement, cargo exports in economic sectors and destinations targeted for diversification and,
together with the tourism sector, driving growth in domestic and international tourism. ACSA will
continue to contribute thought-leadership to the National Spatial Development Framework through the
development of Aerotropoli in KSIA, ORTIA and CTIA. The Integration of the ACSA airports to provide
affordable, safe, efficient and reliable transport remains our focus.

Medium-term Strategic Framework 2019-2024

The Minister of Transport, the majority shareho!der, outlined the following as our contribution to the
Department of Transport's strategic thrusts:

1. Safety as an enabler of service delivery

e Aviation authorities to act in concert with other law enforcement authorities to arrest the escalation
of crimes against international and domestic fravellers, robbery of valuable cargo, facilitation of
contraband and illegal immigrants.

e 365 Days Action Agenda which seeks to create a vertical alignment of policing activity through
syndicated themes and activities. B

« [n-source security. The annual ACSA investment miust be directed towards creating permanent jobs
and sustainabie livelihoods for those entrusted with securing our airports.

e Rolling out a security model in aviation that is vertically and horizontally integrated with other law
enforcement authorities, initially focusing on passenger security then broadened to inciude cargo
and infrastructure using similar models in the US, Canada and Brazil, which rely on internal
capacity, rather than outsourced security arrangements.

¢ Contribute to a new institutional arrangement that seamlessly integrates transport security and
safety in a single entity.

2. Infrastructure build that stimulates economic growth and job creation

e Wall-to-wall approach to Integrated Public Transport Networks infrastructure planning and delivery
to enable seamless mobility and efficiencies in public transport.

« New institutional arrangement in the form of an Enterprise Project Management Office (EPMO) to
support entities and establish a repository of project management expertise with a mandate to
ensure capital projects contribute towards economic growth and job creation.
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3. Public transport that enables social emancipation and an economy that works

» Seamless integration of public transport across all modes.
* Facilitation of export trade to support economic growth priority sectors.

These strategic thrusts coincide well with the list of recommendations of the ICAO Council Aviation
Recovery Task Force (CART) and Fourth Edition of Take-off: Guidance for Air Travel through the
COVID-18 Public Health Crisis. According to which a safe, secure and sustainable restart and recovery
of the global aviation sector is best supported by an internationally harmonized approach based on the
following ten (10) key principles:

1. Protect people: Harmonized but flexible measures. States and industry need to work together to put
in place harmonized or mutually accepted risk-based measures to protect passengers, crew, and other
staff throughout the travel experience.

2. Work as one aviation team and show solidarity. The respective plans of ICAOQ, states, international
and regional organizations, and the industry should complement and support each other. While national
and regional needs may require different approaches, states should harmonize responses to the extent
possible, in line with ICAO's standards, plans and policies.

3. Ensure essential connectivity. States and industry should maintain essential connectivity and global
supply chains, especially to remote regions, isolated islands and other vulnerable states.

4. Actively manage safety-, security- and health-related risks. States and industry should use data-
driven systemic approaches to manage the operational safety-, security-, and health-related risks in the
restart and recovery phases and adapt their measures accordingly.

5. Make aviation public health measures. Work with aviation safety and security systems. Health
measures must be carefully assessed to avoid negatively impacting aviation safety and/or security.

6. Strengthen public confidence. States and industry need to work together, harmonizing practical
measures and communicating clearly, to ensure passengers are willing to travel again.

7. Distinguish restart from recovery. Restarting the industry and supporting its recovery are distinct
phases which may require different approaches and temporary measures to mitigate evolving risks.

8. Support financial relief strategies to help the aviation industry. States and financial institutions,
consistent with their mandates, should consider the need to provide direct andfor indirect support in
various proportionate and transparent ways. In doing so, they should safeguard fair competition and
not distort markets or undermine diversity or access.

8. Ensure sustainability. Aviation is the business of connections, and a driver of economic and social
recovery. States and industry should strive to ensure the economic and environmental sustainability of
the aviation sector.

10. Learn lessons to improve resilience. As the world recovers, the lessons learned must be used to
make the aviation system stronger.

24|Page

Canfidantinl



{

6. STAKEHOLDERS AND PARTNERS

ACSA’s stakeholder universe is far-reaching and distinctive. Collectively, the stakeholders have a mixed
and varied impact on economic development, social upliftment and environmental protection. Effective
stakeholder engagement has therefore been recognised as a key mechanism with the potential to
complement both market instruments and regulation. Since 2018, we have been on a journey o become
more stakeholder-centric, guided by our Stakeholder Relations Management Strategy.

Cur stakeholders and

Stakehplder fozus

partaers

areas

Examples of engagement

Examples of concerns

Benchmar,

king

Government agencies, | Policy, Industry Quarteriy reviews with | o  Long-term Industry | o Stakeholder Focus
public sector partners, | partnerships, Regulating Committee sustainablity and licence to Groups
private sector partners, | economic regulation, Reports and operate o Tariff Permission
Economic Regulating | operational engagements with the | o  Business growth opportuniies | o Aeronautical
Committes excellence and Department of Labour | o Alignment to the South Revenue
licence to operate Active participation in African Governmenfs | o None-Core
industry forums mandates and social Revenue
Oversight Visite development programmes | o Soclal Retum on
Parliament {(NDP and UN Sustainable Investment
presentation Development Goals)
~ o__Regulatory compliance
Employses, unions, Input: Operations Employes roadshows, | o Falr and transparent o Stakeholder Focus
suppliers internal broadcasts remuneration with job Groups
and Town Halls security and career o Leadership culture
Union consultation progression index
and collaborations o Transformation andeaseof | o Employee
Preferential doing business for suppliers satisfaction survey
procurement o B-BBEE
programmes and
tender processes for
suppliers
“Passengers, alrlines, Output: Clients and Airline operating o Negotiated low airport o Stakeholder Focus
tenants and customers committees charges for airlines Groups
concessionalres External stakeholder ¢ Traffic development and o Airport stakeholder
newsletter, traditional operational efficiency survey
Media and digital o Access o infrastructure, c Passenger
platforms, support and information for Satisfaction Survey
Engagement sessions tenants
o Conducive business -
environment .
o Understanding passenger
and pariner needs
Community, NGOs, Dependent: Vested External stakeholder o Job creation Stakeholder Focus
environmentalists interests newsletter, website o Community deveitpment Groups
and events and programmes B-BBEE
Stakeholder meetings o Transformation and creating ACI Carbon
and task team forums sustainable livelihoods Accreditation
o Environmental sustainability
Media and speciat independent: Brand awareness, o Airline performance Stakeholder Focus
interest groups Influencers networking and o Unethical busiriess’ Groups
stakeholder hospitality practices Passenger
Stakeholder mestings | o  Airport safety and security Satisfaction Survey
Media briefings and a Customer satisfaction Alrport Stakeholder
interviews o Information sharing on Survey
business developments
o Alignment with our business
approach on key issues
Associations, partners | Partnerships Providing input for o Long-term industry Stakeholder Focus
International Civil sustainability Groups
Aviation Organisation | o Compliance with regulator Alrport Stakeholder
(ICAQ) regional licensing requirements Survey
bodies o Industry safety and security
African Civil Aviation o Legally binding service level
Commission (AFCAC) agreements with partners
Airports Coundil o Global Innovation
International (ACY) o Defining future travel
Meeting with airline o Traffic and route
associations development
Meeting with security o Improve passenger
agencies experience
Meeting with Joint o Equity investments and
o venture pariners congcession parinerships
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Stakeholder focus
areas

Cur stakeholders and
pariners

Examples of engagement Examples of concerns Benchmarking

Shareholders, Capital and funding | o Roadshows, resuits o Sound financial o Assurance of annual
investors providers presentations and performance, retum on financial statements
annual general equity and dividends o  Credit rating agency
meetings o Strong governance and assessments
o Rating reviews regulatory compliance o Stakeholder Focus
o Meetings with Groups
institutional
bondholders, funders
and investors

ACSA's stakeholder universe is far-reaching and distinctive. Collectively, the stakeholders have a mixed
and varied impact on economic development, social upliftment and environmental protection. Effective
stakeholder engagement has therefore been recognised as a key mechanism with the potential to
complement both market instruments and regulation.

Our Stakeholder Groups
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GROWTH STRATEGY

The Identification and improvement of revenue growth opportunities continues to be a key objective
of ACSA's strategy. Given the impact of Covid-19 various initiatives continue to receive focus. The
Growth Strategy evolution is illustrated below.

THE 00 STRATEGY EVOLU TGN

Growth Strategy Esh_sﬁil"ﬁifl'-:ii éi!'d""wﬁi

AAA

The monitoring and control over the implementation of the Growth Strategy will be through the
governance framework below, to ensure an effective coordination and allocation of resources.

Gromp Enablers
2021-25

facditated by

COMMITTEE

Leadershin and Tachnical suppert by respective Subjeet Matter Experts/Champions from all Divisions,

s fh Al MLl
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Cargo

The participation of ACSA in the value chain of air freight across the network throughout the years
is limited to rental of facilities to airlines, freight forwarders, cargo, and logistics companies among
others. As The impact of Covid-19 pandemic has had devastating effect on the global air travel
industry and ACSA as the operator of major airports had to provide support to commercial partners
trading across the network in the form of rental reprieves, and deferral. However, even during hard
lockdowns most countries across the globe allowed the movement of goods by air which led fo a
surge in air freight demand as the world coordinate efforts to fight the spread of Covid-19.
Therefore, many airline operators used this as an opportunity to deploy passenger aircraft to
capitalise on air freight demand.

It is to the end that the impact of novel coronavirus compelied ACSA to review the operating model
with the aim to reconfigure the model in favour of one that strike a fair balance on risks and benefils
between ACSA and all users. The expected outcomes of cargo model reconfiguration are:

* Investigation of a potential model where a minimum guaranteed rental plus a volume based
which will ensure a more equitable risk-reward sharing arrangement with users of air cargo
facilities.

= The envisaged cargo model will provide the required rental relief to cargo facility users if air
freight volumes decrease and generate incremental value for all parties when cargo volumes
increase while ensuring a fair balance between risks and benefits for all participants (including
ACSA). i.e., minimum guaranteed rental plus a rate per kilogram or minimum guaranteed rental
plus a percentage of turnover.

ot ot @ Qs o at @ o4 o @ e o
1. Work Straem 4. Develog; Deta Cofioction (8. Cargo Commerciafeation Implomanigtion |
charter detafing SOP3 | (Novetion of lease. agreements) 5. bmptomentation of minimum rentat
i Plus volums besed fes, . .......... ....»
2. Conaofation of 8. Explore Date Caliecton
Cerge axecaion plan Methentema ' Ceego
8. Eciahaide: Consuletion IT.EW&MHIEI |6.wtmdm
permRasnl corgo dete coliezfiny  §l nutorated date collection
. (ol eotution L and biling
Nol Sterted i
in Progness ]
Complate!
Ground Handling

In line with the Recover and Sustain Strategy, ground handling has been identified as a growth arez for
ACSA, and subsequent review of the current Ground Handling service arrangementis across the
network. The primary purpose was to assess opportunities for enhancement of network efficiencies on
ground handling operations with the aim to create value. Seven ACSA airports out of nine have a ground
handling operator, while Kimberly and Upington are supported through the airline self-handling model.

gy (o), P00 Approv 7. Tender Award
i ul i 4. BIC Agproval & Contract M oo el
5. Boand Approval 9. Transhion between GH
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Commercial

Commercial revenues were subdued due to COVID-19 restrictions resulting in rental credits to
concessionaires to sustain contractual rentals due to limited trading conditions. The Non-asronautical
revenue biggest driver is, but not limited to market conditions, passenger traffic, and exchange rates.
There is a positive correlation between passenger volume and revenue growth. The current commercial
contracting model! offered an opportunity to review and diversify ACSA revenue to ensure improved
yield whilst maintaining higher passenger satisfaction.

Given the high dependency on passenger traffic volumes, and the lessons learnt from the COVID-19
pandemic, dependency of the non-aeronautical business on traffic volumes is not sustainable. This Is
further evident in the resilience of the remote portfolios in the Real Estate business. Alternative revenue
generation initiatives which have little dependency on passenger volumes were identified, to diversify
the non-aeronautical revenue business.

Expected Outcomes

Horizon 1: Run Airports- Now fo 2025

« Renewal of tenders, introduction of new concepts in core duty free, specially, and food &
beverage. (R323m)

« Digitize ACSA business extensively to accommodate cross selling platforms (R10m)

« Extend advertising leases for a period of 1 year to 30 June 2022 to allow for the tender process.
introduce co-branding, digitized screens, and passenger profiling. (R6.6m)

+ Introduce new approaches to terminal, diverse and industrial portfolios business aimed at
maximizing value. (R93m)

« Repurpose current parking infrastructure to accommodate innovative options (e.g. e-hailing
companies, car dealerships, VIP parking, etc.) to attract additional revenue streams by leasing

underutillzed parking spaces. (R57m)

Horizon 2: Develop Airports - 2026 to 2030

- Buying into JV opportunities e.g., core duty free and downtown Shop (R881m EBIDTA over 10
years)

+ Integrated transportation system (R65m)

« Create and solidify park ‘n ride opportunities at all airports to turn the precincts into an
intermodal transportation hub, offering all modes of transportation. This will create an
opportunity to invest in digital advertising infrastructure (R50m)

+ Commercialization of e-<commerce platforms and shared in GSM infrastructure (R208m)

+  Fuel Infrastructure and Management; ACSA Hospitality (Hotels), Alternative energy sources;
Residential Property (High End) (R48m).

» ACSA to consider becoming an airport lounge operator (R 10m)

Horizon 3: Grow Footprint - Beyond 2030
+ Core Duty Free and downtown shops.
+  Fuel Infrastructure and Management.

- Alternative energy supply infrastructure
« Mergers & Acquisitions of businesses that complement horizon 3 focus

« Collaborate with Infrastructure Property Development to create new opportunities that are
linked to the aerotropolis strategy
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In Progress

Fuel

The revision of the current fuel throughput arrangement across the ACSA network required z
delineation of the status quo as it relates to the regulated (fuel storage) and unregulated (into plane)
business. As a principle and consistent with best practice ACSA is supposed to apply the NERSA
approved tariff for use of fuel storage facility, as well as charging minimum of 25% revenue from the
transportation of the praduct from storage into-plane service. This should be based on the capital pay-
back, overheads and predetermined margins.

Subsequent to the approval of the proposed business case and fuel throughput operating model by
the ACSA board and consultation with industry stakeholders, the pracess fo appoint a suitably qualified
operator through a bidding process has commenced. A single point of accountability for facilities,
potential environmental impact and service to airlines will encourage transparency on fuel storage,
security, analytics, overheads, and facilities mainteriance costs across ACSA network which is
cansistent with global best practice.

A broader participation of ACSA in the value chain of jet fuel supply across the network will empower
the Company to:

*  Direct the maintenance and regulatory compliance of the facility

« Forster commercial and revenue management of the Operator (cost transparency); and

+ Ensure an effective site management in line with ACSA policies on safety, security and
environment (i.e. environment and hydrocarbon waste; safety: incident management; reliability
engineering)

This will further stimulate the supply/demand of jet fuel to airlines by decoupling thru-putter
requirements from facilities operator requirements.

A comprehensive asset transfer and business transition process is niecessary to prevent
business interruption, suitable onboarding of new operator, and to ensure suitable allocation of
liability for omissions and/or negligence.
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ACSA Tender Process Site and Asset Diligence
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Aerotropolis

The Aerotropolis Vision, Strategy and Objectives are going to be an integral part of national and
local government's economic development frameworks. The Aerotopolis concept aligns o the
country’s national priorities of job creation and spatial transformation. It is in this context that ACSA
has embarked on a journey to not only develop, run and grow airports for the benefit of passengers
and stakeholders; but to contribute towards these national priorities. In the next three years, focus
will be placed on furthering the development of three Aerotropoli centred around ACSA’s largest

airporis:

1. OR Tambo International Airport (Gauteng)
2. Cape Town International Airport (Western Cape)
3. King Shaka International Airport (KwaZulu-Natal)

The following activities will be prioritised:

o Establishment of stakeholder and governance platforms
¢ Air and ground connectivity
« Promotion of infrastructure investment

An airport city model will also be pursued for all six of ACSA's regional airports due to the size
and scope of aviation activities, where the focus for development being on the airport and the

precinct.
The catchment area and economic activities around the secondary metropolitans/cities such as
in the Eastern cape, Free State and Northern Cape are limited, however, all these cities or
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regions can leverage on the airport as a nucleus for seamless flow of goods, people, and
services in and out of the region. The following airports are under consideration and being
explored further for a fit for purpose model:

1. Port Elizabeth: Coega IDZ and vehicle manufacturing
2. East London: East London IDZ and vehicle manufacturing
3. George: tourism, agriculture, real estate
4, Upington: agriculture, logistics and energy, MRO
5. Kimberley: Mining, agriculture, and energy
6. Bram Fischer: Mining, healthcare, agriculture, and logistics
Griwth b
Stralegy Q3
1. Exco 3. Stags I: Locai Govemments a.mw:mmmwmwmuwmmm|
porovet Engagament starting with Golden povemment for the dovelog of nally focused alrport
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Passenger Experience and Mobilisation

Passenger Experience and Mobilisation have been identified as a strategy that will support ACSA’s
‘Recover and Sustain’ strategy in response to the impact that the COVID-19 pandemic has had on our
business operations and revenue. ACSA has identified an opportunity to educate township and rural
communities on the airports, air travel, and the benefits that come with choosing air travel as a preferred
mode of transport.

The company also seeks to play an instrumental role in reviving the township economy by promoting
informal businesses through initiatives such as creating markets for small, medium, and micro
enterprises (SMME) within our airport precincts, as well as promoting localization, and industrialization.
The company also aims to introduce activities and entertainment offerings that allow the public to visit
our airports frequently to expose them to what the airports have to offer thus making our airports
accessible and creating a desire to travelfly and shop at our airports.
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REGIONALISATION AND PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The recovery in terms of passenger volumes, will be achieved through ACSA’s Regionalisation Vision
“Opening up a world of possible connections amongst South Africa’s network of airports, the region,
and the world®. Airport groups enables knowledge sharing and economies of scale. Further,
specialisation and technology are shared, and exireme competition emerges. Making these groups
competitive in the aviation sector domestically as well as globally.

Mamagament tdensgement Managament
Smee) =~ Snwhre2  Shcied S ¢

AIRFORTS

A!RF’ORTS (New Nortal)

;m“nﬂf

Managemsn HMansgament Managemend
Structurg Structre Stucturg

Operations will be managed by a range of detailed lag and lead key performance indicators (KPls) to
track performance in terms of:

Overall performance

Efficiency improvements

Operational planning

Implementation of initiatives.

Monitoring capabilities of Operations Management (OM)

These indicators will also be aggregated into indices for ease of reference for improvements and are
provided below.
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The below indicates the overall performance index for operations efficiency when considering the above

lag and lead measures.
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Operational Efficiency Index

115 1.14
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| 1,06
1,05 -
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TRANSFORMATION N

Advancing the South African transformation agenda continues to be a priority.

HiegTetes traatforma tien sprnma

——————————— e e e e k= = e — —_—

Transformation of our business, our people and society and our environment in an integrated,
collaborative and sustainable approach forms an integral part of our organisation, as well as the
organisation we strive to be, fo effect meaningful and sustainable change. Our transformational
objectives are aligned with our strategic objectives and contribute to our sustainability framework ways
by strengthening the transformation policy and continuous review of our integrated transformation plan.

To ensure a focused and conscious drive, transformation strategic objectives have been identified as
crucial to assist in accelerating the Company's transformation agenda. The advancement of our
transformation agenda spans across four key areas:

38|Page

[al 2F - B PR



Focus Area Measurement

' 1) Increased market +  Number of new black-owned service providers introduced into the ]
access industry I

e % of procurement goods/services issued and completed with |

black-owned partnership requirement '

' 2) Build capacity e Number of black professionals and/or small and medium :
enterprises (SMME) provided with training and up-skilling |
. ___________ opportunifies |
' 3) Contributeto sector ¢ % of sector spend channelled toward SMMESs and black-owned |
participation service providers
* % of sector revenue {(where applicable) provided by black-owned
and SMME vendors

"4) Promoteaccessto % of QSE and EME supported in contract funding through direct
funding spend
¢ Number of black-owned service providers supported with funding
through leveraging of funding network (such as DFls)
o Advancing our transformation initiatives spans across seven key
sectors of our business:
IT
Construction

Property
Advertising
Car rental
Retail

| Ground handling R ) B

Under the current economic conditions, it is imperative we not only focus on compliance, but also on
doing as much as we can to support our people, supplier base and sodiety and minimise our
environmental impact in a sustainable manner. Looking ahead in the next three years, our
transformation commitments will be embedded in our integrated transformation agenda supported by
our transformation working group which will assist in driving these commitments indicated below.

NGNS
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BUSINESS OPTIMISATION

Having purposeful and solid business optimisation building blocks is key. This requires us to ensure we
have the right people, a performance excellence mindset and culture, integrated information technology
and digitisation advances, and an innovative approach. Business optimisation will be realised through
the implementation of three capabilities.

“People and | pigitisation
culture

9
Innovation

PEOPLE AND CULTURE

Our people and culture programme collectively refer to the initiatives undertaken to manage, empower
and improve our human capital.

Areas of focus have been streamlined to:

Dsfine and embed fit-for-purpose organisational cuiture.

Develop strategic workforce planning.

Change management to support the people optimisation initiatives.

Heighten the performance management processes including succession planning.

® @ & o

41|Page

Confidential



_ DIGITALISATION AND INNOVATION

Digitalisation is the IT-led programme to modernise ACSA’s ICT ecosystem, supporting the transition
to be the most sought-after global partner for the provision of sustainable airport management solutions.
Outcomes of an IT assessment highlighted that, historically, the systems have been in the defensive
quadrants, resulting in the IT function not being leveraged to deliver strategic value to the business.

This orientation contrasts with industry trends, which have seen major airports leverage IT systems to
improve efficiency, reduce costs and improve customer services, as well as experience. In line with
becoming a world-class airport operator, IT will be a key enabler to offer passengers and airlines as
well as any potential partners (3PL and 4PL) high quality, secure and efficient services.

In response, ACSA embarked on a digital enablement transformation journey which would have
resulted in a digitally fit and efficient airport operator within smart airports. With the advent of COVID-
19, some of the digitisation was put on hold.

Limited investments will be made to continue to provide value for money and are strategically aligned
to allow ACSA to be more economical (optimised costs), efficient (optimised business processes) and
effective (achieving its objectives) in both the IT and business spheres while ensuring every rand spent
is in support of our broader sustainability goals.

The digital airport experience will continually evolve to meet the needs of increasingly digitally
demanding stakeholders.

The Company's IT Roadmap will:

» Build the agility into the DNA of ACSA, allowing it (through an agile technology platform) to better
transition when changes happen in its environment, especially in support of realising a world-class
airport traveller's experience.

e Act as an innovation catalyst to create new markets and products and allow ACSA to use digital
technology to accelerate our ability to create new capabilities to unlock hidden value and growth in
the existing business.
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9. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Sustainability Strategic objective Key
framework Strategic Definition Link to the Department performance

objective of Transport mandate indicator
name

Impact on Financial Financial sustainability is the ability to * Safety and security * Opex
business sustainability weather unforeseen times of financlal * Economic growth and job allocation
hardship such as COVID-19 and its creation « Capital
impact. « Seamless integration of allocation
public transport across (capex)
The measures are designed to allow the modes * Aercnautical
Company to allocate resources to * Accelerating transformation Revenue
priorities or core activities to ensure long- | towards greater economic
i | term sustainability for stakeholders. participation i
Diversified the | Growing our footprint not only includes * Economic growth and job Non- -
business expanding our geographic presence, but creation aeronautical
portfolio it also includes packaging innovative = Accelerating revenue
products and services towards transformation towards
diversifying our business portfolio. greater economic
participation o B
increase our Increasing our reputation is securingan |+ Safety and security Reputation
reputation emotional bond that ensures people use |+ Seamless integration of index
through our airports, buy our products and public transport across (Stakehoider
demonstrated | services, our investors support us, modes management
business policymakers and regulators give us the plans)
excellence benefit of the doubt and our employees
are aligned and deliver on our strategy. - -
A concerted effort to ensure passenger + Safety and security * Passenger
safety at our alrports after the lockdown |- Seamless integration of satisfaction
was lifted In June 2020. Benchmarked public transport across ¢+ ACl Health
and gligned with intemational standards, modes Accreditation
the focus of the current initiatives is to
prioritise the passenger safisfaction
drivers, which include infrastructure
improvements, security processes,
technological enhancements to ease
passenger facilitation, wellness,

cleanliness and sanitation to create ,
confidence, loyalty and enhance the '
overall customer experience.

|Impactonthe | Reduce | Be a responsible airport operator with the |* Economic growth and job | ACI Carbon
environment environmental | obligation of minimising the impact our creation | Accreditation
impact operations may have on the environment. Footprint level

Commiiting to reduce our carbon
emissions with the goal to become
carbon neutral. In addition, focusing on
energy conservation, climate change,
water, waste, air, air qualify, noise
management and biodiversity.

Impact on Transform Increase participation of designated s Accelerating | « B-BBEE level
people and ACSA groups within the Company's operations | transformation towards * % of black
society business 1. Increasing economic participation in | greater economic business
. . the Company's value chain (supply participation [ share of
chain and commercial) commercial
2. Empower designated groups so . revenue
that they can hamess better work | generated
opportunities (attract, develop and * #of job
retain) opportunities
3. We want fo be a caring citizen-a | created

soclally responsible business in

S S -
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o ' South Africa and In all other areas | — ]
' In which we operate.

Organisational | Business Rapid advances in technology represent a competitive threat and opportunity. Technology
capability digitisation heightens the threat of business disruption and cyber-crime. However, it enables our airports
to improve operational efficiency and management of safety and sscurlty. Furthemors, It
allows us to respond fo increasing demand by our customers and commercial partners for
L | automated services and digital enablement, including data analysls.
People and We are commiitted to attracting and retaining key talent through the effective management of '
culture employment equity, focusing on people with disabilities, youth development, improving the
il lives of our employess and ensuring a stable employee relations environment. B
Knowledge To cultivate a culture of innovation and lead the way in innovative thinking and creative
management | problem-solving. The creation and enablement of an environment o experiment with creative
and innovation | and innovative ideas to deliver sustainable business outcomes.
Supply chain | To enhance corporate and operational supply chain processes in line with best practice ina
management manner that facilitates the development and management of world-class airports
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Key performance indicator

Confidential

Core pillar S‘tr_atetgic {Note — The KPI detail information is
CRIECHYE in the preceding three-year KPI
section)
Covers all Create value KPI OPEX Allocation 877 1745 2 562 3390
three pillars: for our name (Cumulative) 1
shareholders =
Run airports KPI Capital (CAPEX) R54m R135m R278m R798m
Develop name Allocation (Cumulative) L
airports Grow . o
footprint KPI Aeronautical revenue 601 1205 1846 2486
name B .
Diversify the KPl Non-aeronautical revenue 627 1263 1814 2392
business name (Cumulative)
portfolio
Run airporis Increase KPI Reputation Index 80% 80% 80% 80%
reputation name Implementati | Implement | Implement | Implementatio
on of ation of ation of nof
Stakeholder | Stakehold | Stakehold Stakeholder
Engagement er er Engagement
Plan Engageme | Engageme Plan
nt Plan nt Plan
KPI Passenger satisfaction 3,67 3,67 3,67 3,67
name
Covers all Transform KPI -| B-BBEE Level Level 2
three piliars: ACSA name - .
X business
Run airports KPI Black business share of 55% 55% 55% §5%
Develap name commercial revenue
airports Grow generated o I — -
footprint - '
KPI # of job opportunities 5761 9214 12 618 17 064
name created (Cumulative) ) —
KPI ACH Health Accreditation Al 8 Airports Allg Allg All 8 Airports
nzme Accredited Airports Alrports Accredited |
Accredited | Accredited
Caovers all Reduce KPt ACH Carbon Accreditation Maintain ACH
three pillars: environmental | name Footprint Level Level 2
impact Accreditation
Run alrports for at least 3
Develop Alrports
alrports Grow (ORTIA, CTIA, |
footprint KSIA)
e = = . y i |
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Quarterly ministerial mandate KPls

~ Dutputindicator

Annual target

' Leadership, governance and accountability

Quarter2

Quarter 3

Annual report on the

Percentage 100% responses to Bi-annual report on -

responses to Parllament questions the status of status of responses to

Parliament responses to Parliamentary questions

questions within Parliamentary

stipulated timelines questions

Percentage 60% resolution of Bi-annual report on - Annual report on steps

resolution of reported incldents of progress made to taken to ensure

reported incldents of | corruption resolve reported resolution of reported

corruption incidents of incidents of cornuption
corruption -

Ethics committees Operations of ethics Bi-annual report on - Annual report on the

established and committees monitored the status and status and operations of

operationalised operations of ethics sthics committees
committees

Percentage 100% implementation . Develop action | Annual report on the

implementation of of action plans to plans to address | implementation of action

action plans to address audit findings audit findings plan to address audit

address audit ralsed by the findings raised by the

findings AGSA AGSA

Regulatory Audit Unqualified audit - - Annual report on efforts

Outcome by the report with no taken to achieve an

Auditor-General of significant findings unquallfied audit report

South Africa (AGSA) with no significant

findings

Percentage 100% reduction of Bi-annual report on - Annual report on steps

reduction of cases of | cases of wasteful and steps taken to taken to reduce wasteful

wasteful and fruitless expenditure reduce wasteful and and fruitiess expenditure

fruitless expenditure fruiless expenditurs

Percentage 75% reduction of Bi-annual report on - Annua! report on steps

reduction of cases of | cases of iregular steps taken to taken to reduce iregular

imegular expenditure | expenditure reduce irregular expenditure
expenditure
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10. FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Shareholider value creation over the long term is fundamental to our ability to be self-sufficient. ACSA’s
financial independence enables the continuous delivery of major infrastructure requirements against
the demand of the aviation industry, supporting our vision of being a world-leading airport business.
Failure to be self-sufficient would introduce funding risk for future major infrastructure investments.

The advent of COVID-19 with its travel restrictions and health screening requirements has brought
about significant threats to shareholder value creation over the Corporate Pian period and beyond. The
Company has taken a scenario planning approach to inform responses to firstly address short-term
liquidity requirements, then financial sustainability over the long term.

A 24.1%% traffic volume increase is currently assumed with conservative increases thereafter. Resizing
decisions have been taken to safeguard financial sustainability in the form of operating expense
reductions of R1 300 million and an additional RS00 million reductions in employee costs by FY202/23.

The postponement of the FY2021/22 to FY2025/26 permission application as a result of COVID-19 will
also delay the introduction of tariff increases. The plan assumes inflation increases in tariffs to remain
conservative.

The key financial indicators clearly highlight the severity of the impact of COVID-19 and travel
restrictions.

Key financial indicators

7 000 6132 4,0%
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5020 e 1,6% f
5000 ~08% 0.7%
4000 e u%
3422 i~ Fi% o
e V. ]
3000 i - Sl 2 002 2300
2000 A 41% 27 15T . i -4,0%
pad - |
i i B
100 I - 2327 ’ l Ir 143 ,r 362 .6,0%
- [ o - = .;z'm .
218.0% L 2022 2023 2024 2025 -8,6%
-1 000 I = | - 309
_J " 10,0%
-2 00 1 lb’/i"?ﬂ.ﬁ% -1 697 '
-3 000 -2 561 -12,86%
s Total revenue EBITDA Net profit ===~Returr on equity Return on capital employed
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Forecast Budget/Plan

FY2021/22 'FY2022/23 FY2023/24 FY2024/25
Traffic growth 139.8% 24.1% 23.4% 2.2%
cPI 4.4% 4.3% 4.4% 4.5%
Interest rate 10.0% 10.0% 10.0% 10.0%
Tariff increase 3.3% 3.1% 4.4% 4.5%
Dividends* 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

*The Company does not budget for dividends; however, the dividends distribution Is considered
based on audited financial statements considering the prevailing dividends policy.

Budget/Plan

FY2022/23 FY2023/24 FY2024/25
Base BNN Budget 2022 | Budget 2023 | Budget 2024
Non-aeronautical Post-COVID-19 Post-COVID-19 Post-COVID-18
revenue - rebase rebase rebase
Retain R1 300 million | Retain R1 300 million | Retain R1 300 million
Operating expenditure reduction (CPI reduction (CPI reduction (CPI
increases) increases) increases)
R500million R500 million R500 million
reduction on 2020/21 | reduction on 2020/21 | reduction on 2020/21
Personnel costs base base base
Minor salary Minor salary Minor salary
increases increases Increases
Utilities (rates and
taxes; electricity and Estimated tariff Estimated tariff Estimated tariff
water)
Dividends None None None

Capital expenditure

Limited to R1 000
million

Limited to R1 000
miillion

Limited to R1 000
million

1 Dividends are considered upon finalisation of the audited results at the end of each financial year.
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Forecast

FY2021/22
R
PSC Domestic 78.34
PSC International 214.05
Landing fee yield Domestic 3085
Landing fee vield International 14 877.25

Budget/Plan
FY2022/23 FY2023/24 FY2024/25

R R R
80.77 84.28 88.04

220.67 230.28 240.53
3179 3318 3 466

15 366 15 841 16 631

The capital expenditure programme provides for investments of approximately R3.0 billion over the
Corporate Plan period. All major programmes have been postponed due to lower traffic volumes and

the availabllity of funds.

1000 -
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R million

400 -
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1200 - CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
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2024 2025

Refurbishment projects have the largest capex aliocation at 62% as well as the highest volume of

projects.
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FY22/23 PROJECT PIPELINE
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Major projects to be undertaken during the corporate plan period are provided in the graph below.
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The company’s ability to meet all its financial obligations from internal generated funds continue to be
affected negatively by sporadic domestic and global travel restrictions imposed to curb the spread of
the Covid-19 virus. The recent discovery of the Omicron variant saw most the South African’s key travel
markets restating travel bans against country. These developments serve as reminder the aviation
industry continues to operate under highly uncertain environment.

To mitigate the liquidity risks that might arise from business disruptions caused by the Covid-19 induced
travel bans, the company maintained its short-term committed facilities with banks. Airports Company
South Africa renewed its short-term banking facilities amounting to R1.8 billion for a period of 12 months
ending 31 August 2022,

The proceeds from preference shares issuance (R2.3 billion), MIAL disposatl (R1.2 killon) and DBSA
loan (R810 million) enabled the company to meet its financial obligations even under difficult trading
conditions experienced during the 2021/22 financial year. The company is still awaiting approval from
the Public Investment Corporation (PIiC) relating to the preference shares issuance.

in the domestic capital market, public auctions remain dominated by private sector issuers with State-
owned Companies rising funding predominately through private placements. Only few State-owned
Companies managed to raise funding through public auctions over the past twelve months, the recent
issuers to conduct public auctions were the DBSA and Rand Water. The company will continue to
assess the market conditions in the domestic debt capital market with the intension of refinancing the
AIR02 fixed rated bond either through a switch auction and/or outright issuance of newfexisting bonds.

The company will continue to engage proactively with other funders i.e., Development Finance
Institutions and Banks to ensure that the company has a diverse funding source to meet its funding
requirements. This will enable the company to rise funding in a cost-effective manner and achieve
favourable terms. The three-year Borrowing Plan of the company is based on the financial assumptions
outlined in the Corporate Pian.

The funding requirement is based on the following key assumptions over a three-year period:

+ Capital Expenditure Programme amounting to R2.9 biflion (excluding capitalised interest)

+ Debt redemptions totalling R3.3 biltion (including R1.7 billion of the AIR02 fixed rate bond)

» Potential proceeds from PIC preference shares issuance excluded from the Borrowing Plan
(pending the approval).

The company is expected to meet ifs fundifig-requirements over the three-year plan from internally
generated funds and new debt funding amounting to R1 billion. it is worth noting that no new debt
funding will be required over the three-year plan should the entity successfully issue preference shares
to the PIC.

Funding requirements: 2023E—2025E (R million)
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In the first two years of the Corporate Plan, the company will meet its financial obligations from both
internally generated funds and available cash on hand. However, in the last year of the Corporate Plan,
ACSA will require R1 billion in new debt funding.

REVENUE

The Group's revenues comprise both aeronautical and non-aeronautical revenue. Aeronautical revenue
relates to passenger facilitation services for which passenger service charges are collected as well as
airline services in the form of landing and parking fees. Non-aeronautical revenue includes all other
revenue streams, such as concessionaire revenues — retail, car rental, advertising and parking
revenues — as well as office rental and property deveiopment revenue streams.

The Group's forecast revenue of R3,422 million for FY2022 follows the 3.3% increase in aeronautical
charges as granted by the Regulating Committee in the 20192023 Permission and low levels of raffic
with a forecast of 52.4% of F20220 levels. The postponement of the Permission application means that
the fifth year of the 2019-2023 Permission will | come into effect for FY2023 with increases of 3.1%.
This increase, together with the envisioned traffic growth of 24.1%, will result in revenues of R5,020
million.

it is forecast that non-aeronautical revenues will contribute between 44% and 50% to total revenues
during the Corporate Plan period. The composition of the Group's revenue is detailed in the following

graph.
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Aeronautical revenue is expected 10 increase by 54.8% in FY2023 compared with the forecast for
FY2022, owing to a 3.1% increase in tariffs and some recovery of traffic volumes from the lows of
FY2022. it is forecast that fraffic will be 35.0% lower than FY2020 (pre-COVID-19 level).

The drivers of aeronautical revenue are depicted in the graphs below.
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NON-AERONAUTICAL REVENUE

Non-aeronautical revenue is expected to increase by 103.7% in FY2022/23 compared to FY2021/22
and 32.1% lower than FY2019/20. Due to a high level of uncertainty, retail, car rental and car parking
forecasts have been kept the same as the forecast of the previous Corporate Plan.

When a comparison is drawn between the FY2021/22 forecast and the FY2022/23 budget:
* Retail is not expected to fully recover until at least 2026, around 209 shops were open by Q3:2021
representing 59% of 2019 sales capacity.
s Car parking:
* Parking sees an initial 18% increase from FY2022 followed by CPI increases thereafter.
* This is supported by an increase in passenger movement and the rollout of revenue generating
initiatives.
e Advertising:
* Advertising sees an initial increase of 26% in FY2023, a 112% increase in FY2024 and a CP)
increase in FY2025
* This increase is driven by positive growth in passenger projections and is further supported by
the award of a longer-term tenure
¢ Car rental revenue is estimated to increase FY2023 compared to FY2022.
* Property rentals and property development are estimated to remain flat FY2023 compared to the
prior year.
s  Other commercial revenues comprise of permits, recoveries and subsidiary revenues such as hotel
revenues.

Non - Aeronautical Revenue
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#Retail - Carrental  Car parking Advertising « Property rentals  » Other commercial

Operating expenditure for FY2022/23 is estimated at R3 503 million and represents & 9.8% increase
when compared to the forecast for FY2020/22. FY2023/24 and FY2023/24 assume an inflation increase
of only 4.4%,
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The major cost components:

performance bonuses.

s Repairs and maintenance costs increase by 17.5% to R339 million.

Personnel costs (including other employee costs) decrease by 4.26% from R1 369 million to R1
1 310 million. On the back of no allowance for new positions, salary increases and no provision for

« Utilities increase by 12.98% to R186 million in line with an annual tariff increase.

s Security costs increase by 3.0% to R454 million

promulgated by municipalities and property valuations.

against the digitisation strategy.

Rates and taxes Increase by 6.2% to R275 million based on the expected increases as

Information systems expenditure increases by 4.8% to R264 million because of the delivery ~

The top six expenses at a company level over the Corporate Plan period contributes more than 85% to
total operating expenses excluding employee costs.
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The depreciation charge for the FY2022/23 is estimated at R1 109 million. This represents a marginal
difference to the FY2021/22 forecast due to low levels of capital expenditure.

The financing costs are expected to remain elevated amid the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic on the with
low investor risk appetite fowards State-Owned Companies. Moreover, the Central Bank is expected to
gradually tighten monetary policy which will put pressure of financing costs over the forecast period.

A loss of R310 million is budgeted for FY2022/23. Profit levels are estimated in FY2023/24 and
FY2024/25 owing to a recovery in traffic.

DEBT MANAGEMENT

Airports Company South Africa’s debt level increased notably leading up to the 2010 Soccer World Cup
spectacle driven by mega infrastructure programme that the company embarked on. In 2012/13
financial year, the company adopted an Early Debt Redemption Strategy which underpinned the
deleveraging process.

Since the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the company has repaid over R10 billion worth of debt
largely as part of Early Debt Redemption Strategy. This massive reduction in the debt jevel reflects the
company’s prudent approach to debt management. Moreover, the deleveraging process reduced the
company's debt service costs and placed Airports Company South Africa in a much stronger footing to
absorb new debt funding in response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Airports Company South Africa Debt Evolution
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Over the three-year plan, the company will repay R3.3 billion worth of debt comprising of the following
debt instruments:

AIR02 fixed-rate bond R1.7 billion

AIR04 fixed rate bond R544 million

AFD1 loan R164 million

AFD2 loan R585 million

INCA loan R34 million

DBSA loan (amortizing loan) R283 million

The company’s debt level is expected to decrease by R1.2 billion to R8 billion by the end of March
2025, attributable to debt repayments, including redemption of R1.7 billion of AIR02 fixed-rate

bond in April 2023.
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FUNDING STRATEGY

over the forecasted period Minimise funding costs

Meet funding requirements ['»  Match liabllities with assets
L ]
L - | ]
*

e Diversify sources of funding
Optimisation of the capital Projected key credit metrics and loan covenants improve over the
structure - three-year forecast period
Manage the following main e  The credit rating of the Company o
factors affecting funding e  Liquidity (marketability) of listed securities
activities e Investor perceptions and demand
Manage all financlal risks e Interest rate risk ]
related to Treasury activities e Foreign exchange risk
*  Liquidity risk
[_ | = Counterparty risk o ]
DEBT MATURITY PROFILE

The company sfrives to maintain a smooth maturity profile to ensure seamless debt redemptions. The
debt redemption profile is fairly spread across maturities with large redemptions only expected in the
2023/24, 2028/29 and 2030/31 financial years. In April 2023, the company is expected to repay R1.7
bitllion of AIR02 fixed rate bond. In the financial year ending March 2029, the company is projected to
repay R2.9 billion of the AIRLO1 inflation bond. The debt repayment in 2030/31 financial year is currently
estimated at R2.7 billion comprised largely of preference shares including accrued dividends.
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Footnote * Projected inflation accretion added to AIRLOA in 2029E

The Company will repay R3.3 billion worth of debt over the Corporate Plan period comprising of the
following:

¢ AIRO2 fixed-rate bond R1.7 billion

¢ AIRD4 fixed rate bond R544 million

¢ AFD1 loan R164 million

¢  AFD2 lcan R585 miilion

¢« INCA loan R33 million

¢ DBSA loan (amortizing loan) R283 million
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The company minimises the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) by setting a target of gearing
ratio (net/capitalisation) not to exceed 60 per cent. It should be noted this target can only be breached
under exceptional circumstances with the approval of the Board and after obtaining a waiver from

lenders who use gearing ratio as part of their financial covenants.

The net/capitalisation ratio is expected to decrease over the forecast period and remain below the target
of target of 60 per cent as shown in Table 2 below.

Table 2: Estimated Gearing Ratio
2022/23 2023/24 2024125

Net Debt/Capitalization _ 28% 27% 24%

Refer to Annexure G - Borrowing Plan for more detail.

CREDIT RATINGS

Following a rating downgrade on 26 June 2020, Moody's affirmed the company’s global scale rating at
Ba2 on 24 November 2020. The affirmation of ACSA's rating reflects a one-notch uplift to the baseline
credit assessment of Ba3 due to Moody’s assumption of strong support from government. The national
scale rating was upgraded to Aa2.za from Aa3.za in line with the revised mapping for the South African

national rating scale.

The negative rating outlook was left unchanged reflecting the impact of Covid-19 on the company and
the negative outlook on govemment rating. According to Moody's, a rating upgrade is unlikely in the
near term given the negative outlook. However, the credit rating outlook could be changed to stable if:

e Traffic recovery looked more certain;

o Itappeared likely the Company would be able to materially improve its financial profile over the
medium term;

e The liquidity is solid;

e The outlook on the sovereign rating was changed to stable.

Nonetheless, Moody’s could downgrade the company’s ratings if:

There is a delay in passenger traffic recovery, including airlines ceasing operations;
It appeared likely the company’s capital structure could be challenged;

There were concerns about liquidity; and

The sovereign rating'is downgraded.

Table 1: Airports Company South Africa’s credit ratings

Credit Date Rating Long-term Global Outlook
rating Action national scale scale
| agency . B
Moody's 24 November Affirmed Aa2.za" Ba2 Negative
2020

Footnote*: National scale rating upgraded from Aa3.za

Refer to Annexure G - Borrowing Plan for more detail.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company acknowledges the requirement to focus on value creation and maximisation for
shareholders. The dividend policy considers the shareholders’ preference for dividends as a return on
their equity investment in the Company. ACSA did not budget for any dividends, as this will be
considered at the end of each financial year based on the audited results as well as considering the
debt covenants as outlined below are not compromised by the payment thereof, therefore dividends will
not be distributed to shareholders if:

An event of default has occurred and is continuing or is likely to occur before or further to the
contemplated dividend distribution.

Or, on the immediately preceding yearly closing date:

The debt service coverage ratio by available cash or any of the projected debt service coverage
ratios by avaitable cash is less than 1.5 times when calculated for any 12-month period,

Or, on the immediately preceding yearly closing date:

The net debt to capitalisation ratio or any of the projected net debt to capitalisation ratios exceed
65 per cent.

In the last year of the Corporate Plan, the company is expected 1o meet all its debt covenants, however
the decision to pay dividends will be determined at the end of the financial year ended 31 March 2025
after liquidity and solvency tests are fulfilled. It should be noted the payment of preference share
dividends is governed by the provisions of the subscription agreements signed with shareholders.

Refer to Annexure H - Dividend policy for more detail.
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Forecast Budget
FY2021/22 FY2022/23  FY2023/26  FY2024/25
R'm R'm R'm R'm
INCOME
Aeronautical revenue 1608 2 486 3 089 3443
Landing fees 624 905 997 1094
Passenger senvice charges 946 1543 2 049 2303
Parking fees 36 38 42 46
Non-aeronaufical revenue 1816 2534 2 570 2688
Retail 580 882 832 868
Car rental 165 272 208 217
Car parking 314 361 375 390
Advertising 54 74 157 167
Property rentals 658 833 876 859
Consulting revenue 0 0 0 0
Other commercial? 45 112 122 132
TOTAL REVENUE 3422 5020 5658 6132
Other operating income 5 0 0 0
GROSS INCOME 3427 5020 5658 6132
EXPENDITURE
Personnel costs 1369 1311 1358 1425
Operational expenditure 1821 2192 2 298 2 406
EBITDA 238 1517 2 002 2300
Depreciation 1179 1109 1186 1226
PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST AND TAX 941 409 817 1074
Net interest received/(paid) -719 -732 -639 -596
investment income/capitalised interest 63 14 21 23
PROFIT BEFORE TAX -1 587 =309 199 502
Taxation Q 0 56 141
PROFIT AFTER TAX -1 597 -309 143 362
2 Other commercial revenue includes cost recoveries, permit income and subsidiary revenues.
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FY2021/22 FY2022/23 FY2023/24

FY204/25
R'm R’'m R'm R'm
ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 26 340 26 112 25921 25 695
Cther non-current assets 719 79 739 719
Investments - 689 ‘ 719 ' 719 - 79
Current assets 1652 1095 1738 1854
Inventory . 1 [ T —
Taxation prepaid 355 355 355 ass5
Receivables and prepayments 1125 1238 930 1 1
Cash and cash equivalents 171 401 451 491
TOTAL ASSETS 28710 28 826 28 399 28 268
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves 22 120 21811 21 955 22317
Share capital and premium 750 750 750 750
Non-distributable reserves 2643 2643 2 643 2643
Retained earnings 18 727 18 418 18 561 18 923
Non-current Habilitles o 5124 3789 4429 4438
" Retirement benefit obligation 27 27 27 27
Deferred revenue/derivatives 50 50 50 50
Deferred tax 740 740 740 740
Preference shares 2 302 2302 2302 23
Net borrowings 2050 669 1319 1.
“Current liabilities S 1467 3225 2048 ) 1518
Trade and other payables Y 7 765 704
Tax payable o 0 11 28
Current portion of borrowings 797 2 505 1240 696
TOTAL LIABILITIES 28710 28 826 28 399 28 268
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FY2021/22 FY2022/23 FY2023/24 FY2024/25
R'm R'm R'm R'm

Cash received 3427 5020 5659 6131
Cash paid 3190 {3 503) (3 656) (3831)
Cash from operations 237 1517 2003 2301
Taxation 6 - (45) (124)
Dividends = - - -
Changes in working capital:

Receivables (293) (113) 308 (78)
Payables (372) 51 44 489
Cash from operations (426) 1455 2310 2587
investing actlvities {885) (881) (995) {1000)
Financing activities (852) (374) (1263) (1 549).
Net borrowings (195) 373 (646) (977)
Net Interest (656) (717) (617) (572)
Cash flows (2 162) 230 5% 38
Opening cash 2334 171 402 453
Closing cash 171 402 453 491
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11. CONCLUSION

The FY2022/23-FY2024/25 Corporate Plan considers the impact of COVID-19 and the pivoting of the
strategy priorities of ACSA. With a slew of economic and social consequences stemming from the
pandemic, including lower international and domestic traffic volumes, subdued economic growth, and
dynamic market forces like supply-chain and technological disruption, and environmental concerns, the
external environment will continue to be challenging, particularly in developing nations such as South
Africa.

As a result of COVID-19, the Company's Strategy 2025 has been reviewed and reset to navigate
through the trying and difficult economic times to, at best, deliver short-, medium- and long-term value.
The ACSA strategy will be implemented over three timeframes, now-2025 — extend and defend core
business, 2026-2030 build emerging business, and 2030 and beyond — aperate a new ACSA with a
redirected focus and growth trajectory.

However, the building blocks of the new strategic direction will be implemented over the next three
financial years to ensure the sustainability and advancement of ACSA as an airports company, but also
an engine for economic growth of South Africa.

Therefore, the importance of rapid-turnaround and swift implementation of ACSAs new direction is
key.

The Company aims to deliver value creation over time by focusing on:
« Implementing the revised strategy, inclusive of:

% Technology-driven innovation to enhance passenger experience but also
operational efficiencies

< Drive the cargo strategy as a means of stimulating the national economy by boosting
international trade, but particularly intra-Africa trade

4 Form meaningful and impactful partnerships with our stakeholders for long-term
sustainability

¢ Focus on planning for implementation of the Aerotropolis strategy for local
economic development

%« Assessment of opportunities for enhancement of network efficiencies on ground
handling operations with the aim to create additional value to ACSA

Ensure inclusivity in air transport through the Passenger Experience and
Mobilisation Strategy. It has been identified as an opportunity for the Airports
Company South Africa to educate township and rural populations about airports, air
travel, and the benefits that come with choosing air travel as a preferred method of
transportation. ACSA hopes to play an important role in revitalizing the township and
rural economies by promoting informal businesses through initiatives such as creating
markets for small, medium, and micro enterprises {SMME) within our airport precincts,
as well as promoting localisation and industrialisation, among other things.

&

* Implementing the Recover and Sustain tactical plan for financial sustainability

* Entrenching a revised Operating Model and Capability Model to support the revised strategy
to ensure a fit-for-growth perspective

% In particular, the recovery in passenger volumes will be realised through the
implementation of ACSA's Regionalisation Strategy. Knowledge sharing and
economies of scale are made possible by airport groupings, which creates linkages
between South Africa's network of airports, the region, and the rest of the globe.

78|Page



« Refining the Organisation Structure and Governance Framework to support sustained
recovery and compliance

+ Aggressively driving an Integrated Traffic Development, Marketing and Communication
strategy aimed at rebuilding the business

- Identifying and tapping into unconventional markets aimed at diversification of revenue
streams

Considering ACSA will continue to operate under a challenging, unpredictable, and constrained
environment, agility in implementing this Corporate Plan is the key to the future success of the

organisation.
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12. ANNEXURES

Annexure A - Shareholder compact
Annexure B - Governance
Annexure C ~ Anti-corruption management plan
Annexure D - Significance and materiality framework
Annexure E ~ Risk management framework
Annexure F ~ Cost containment plan
Annexure G ~ Borrowing Plan
Annexure H ~ Dividend policy
Annexure | - Employment equity plan
Annexure J - Divisional Priorities
Annexure K — Corporate Plans for Subsidiaries
. JIA Piazza Park (Pty) Ltd
® Airports Company South Africa Global
. Airport Management Share Incentive Scheme (Pty) Ltd
° Lexshell 342 Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd
. Airports Consultancy and Advisory Services (Pty) Ltd

o Sakhisizwe Community Programme NPC
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ANNEXURE A - SHAREHOLDER COMPACT
(Attached separately)
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ANNEXURE B - GOVERNANCE

1. GOVERNANCE PHILOSOPHY

Airports Company South Africa SOC Limited is registered as a public company under the Companies
Act and is listed as a major public entity in terms of Schedule 2 of the Public Finance Management Act
1 of 1899 (PFMA). Sound corporate governance Is implicit in the Group's values, principles and
processes. Open and honest dialogue is the appropriate process to test decisions, reach consensus
and accept responsibility.

Our code of ethics sets out the values that drive the ethical and responsible business conduct of the
Company. Endeavours are made to create fraud and ethics awareness throughout the organisation to
influence ethical behaviour. We are committed to continually enhancing ACSA’s corporate governance
processes in line with best practice in 2 manner which facilitates the development and management of
world-class airports, whilst ensuring that operations are ethically conducted within the regulatory
framework.

Our approach to corporate governance is based on six fundamental principles: accountability,
transparency, responsibility, independence, ethical fairness and social development. These principles
enhance our values expressed in the acronym PRIDE (Passion, Results, Integrity, Diversity and
Excellence). Furthermore, we have a code of ethics approved by the Board and monitored by the Social
and Ethics Committee, while the Audit and Risk Committee looks at legal and regulatory compliance.

2. GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Our Board is responsible for strategic direction and oversight of the Group. The Minister appoints non-
executive Directors and the PIC nominates non-exe_cutive directors for appointment. The Executive
Committee, under the leadership of the CEO, is responsible for the day-to-day management of the
Company.
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To effectively provide oversight and guidance to the Group, the Board remains acutely aware of various
legislations and relevant codes of best practice, including but not limited to:

» Airports Company Act, No. 44 of 1993;

¢ Civil Aviation Act, No. 13 of 2009;

¢ King Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa 2016 (King IVY;
* Protocol on Corporate Governance for the Public Sector 2002;

» Public Finance Management Act, No.1 of 1899:

¢ Treasury Regulations;

e Companies Act, No 71 of 2008;

¢ Income Tax Act, No 58 of 1962;

¢ Value Added Tax Act, No. 89 of 1991; and

¢ Protection of Personal Information Act 2013.

3. BOARD COMMITTEES

The six committees established by the Board play an important role in enhancing standards of
governance and effectiveness within the Group. The establishment of the committees is not an
abrogation of the Board's responsibilities. The committees report back on their activities to the Board
at all meetings. The committees focus on key functional areas where specialist expertise is required.
All the committees are chaired by a non-executive director and the committee members are mostly non-
executive directors. The CEO is a member of the Social and Ethics Commitiee and Board Investment
Commitiee.

To ensure that the terms of reference of the commitiees remain current and comply with best practice,
they are reviewed annually and, where necessary, amended. The commitiees are:

« Audit and Risk Committes:

Board Economic Regulation Committee;

Board Investment Committee;

Information, Communication Technology Committee;

Human Resources, Remuneration and Nominations Commitiee; and
e Social and Ethics Committee.

* 8 »

The Committee is constituted as a statutory committee of Airporis Company South Africa SOC Limited
in line with the Companies Act and Public Finance Management Act and is accountable in this regard
to both the Board and our shareholders. If is a committee of the Board in respect of all other duties the
Board assigns to it and has been delegated extensive powers to perform its functions in accordance
with the Companies Act, PFMA and National Treasury Regulations.

The Audit and Risk Committee meets at least quarterly to consider, among others, annual and interim
financial statements, accounting policies, internal audit plan and progress reports against the plan,
external audit strategy, findings of external and internat auditors and management’s response plans to
the findings, management of strategic enterprise-wide risks within the risk management framework and
their impact on achieving the Group’s strategy, adequacy of controls combined assurance and supply
chain management. The committee also monitors governance and reports received on the Vuvuzela
Hotline.



All members of this committee are independent: directors. Both external and internal auditors have
unrestricted access to the Chairman and may meet privately with the committee when required, but

formally at least once a year.
The Auditor-General South Africa is the current auditor of the Company.

Board investment Commitise

The primary purpose of the Committee is to assist the Board in discharging its duties relating capital
projects, commercial activities, diversification of revenue, investments and treasury activities of the

Company.

The Committee is accountable to the Board and makes recommendations for approval by the Board.
The Committee operates independently of management and is free of any organisational impairment.
The Committee acts in accordance with its delegated authority of the Board as recorded in its Terms of

Reference.
Board Economic Regulation Comimitiee

The Board Economic Regulation Committee has oversight over the development and implementation
of the economic regulatory strategy and ensures compliance with all regulatory legislation and/or
requirements and any matters incidental thereto. At the core of its function is the deliberation of the
approach leading to the permission application which is submitted to the Regulating Committee which
determines airport tariffs for the Group. The Commiitee does not assume the functions of management,
which' remain the responsibility of the Executive Directors, officers and other members of senior

management.
Human Resources, Remuneration and Nominations Committee

The committee ensures that employees are fairly rewarded for the value they create, and the amount
and types of pay used to motivate and compensate employees protect value for shareholders and other
stakeholders, both today and in the future.

The commitiee assists the Board on matters of strategic remuneration, retention of employees,
composition of board committees, recruitment of Executive Directors and performance management.
The committee ensures that an adequate and appropriate succession plan for the CEO, CFO and
Executives is in place. In addition, the committee provides guidelines and procedures to ensure that
human resourcing and remuneration strategies are aligned to the Company’s objectives, including
addressing past workplace inequalities.

The commitiee assists the Board in ensuring that the Company remunerates fairly, responsibly and
transparéently to promote achievement of strategic objectives and positive outcomes in the short,

medium and long term.
Sodial and Ethics Commitiss

The committee is responsible for monitoring the non-financial aspects of the Group's sustainability,
specifically the Group's performance in terms of social, ethical and environmental indicators. The
committee is the social conscience of the Company in ensuring that it conducts its business as a
responsible corporate citizen, and creates value and contributes to the health of our economy, our
people, our communities, broad-based black economic empowerment (B-BBEE), health and safety
practices, and the environment and all matters incidental thereto, namely:

Ethics

Social and economic development
Good corporate citizenship
Stakeholder relationships

Labour and employment

Fanfidential



Information, Communication Technology Committee

The key mandate of this committee is to oversee that the information and communication technology
(*ICT") policies and practices comply with best practice and that the IT Strategy of the Group is
implemented.

The primary function of the Committee is to ensure implementation of the Company's overall IT strategy:
robust information security and protection of intellectual property in ICT systems; oversee that the IT
innovation strategy and related policies are in place; and ensure opporiunities to improve performance
and sustainability of the Company through the use of ICT are exploited.

4. EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The executive committee deals with all the general management activities involved with leading and
managing the Company towards achieving our core outcomes whilst upholding all the applicable
legislation and regulation that pertains to our operation. This committee is chaired by the CEQ and is
supported by other executive led operational management subcommittees to effectively manage the
business.

5. ETHICS MANAGEMENT

King IV defines corporate governance as the exercise of ethical and effective leadership by the
governing body towards the achievement of an ethical cuiture, good performance effective control and
legiimacy. The Board is accountable for ensuring that management actively cultivates a culture of
ethical conduct that is adhered to by alt employees and associates of Airports Company South Africa.
This is attained by delegating oversight of ethics management to the Social and Ethics Committee of
the Board.

Our code of ethics ouflines standards expected from Directors, managers, employees, service
providers, suppliers and trading partners. This code entrenches our values of behaviour.

Training and awareness
We conduct ongqing_,ethics training for employees and external parties (Stakeholders) including training-

on our code of ethics, gift and entertainment policy, conflict of interest, anti-corruption management
plan, Domestic Prominent Influential Person that is politically exposed persons and whistieblowing.

Ethics Management programme

The Ethics Institute conducted an ethics technical gap analysis and ethics risk assessment. The gap

analysis assesseg the extent to which we have implemented the basic elements of an ethics rigk.
management programme. The outcome of the gap analysis and risk assessment shaped our ethics

management strategy and determined the scope and content of subsequent ethics management
interventions. We will continue to:

« Train employees including relevant stakeholders on ethics related policies and matters;

¢ Monitor implementation of the ethics programme through submission of a comprehensive report on
trends, fraud and corruption cases to the Social and Ethics Committee for review;

¢ Actively engage with divisional appointed ethics champions to promaote and support sthics initiatives
in business units;

¢ Maintain and accelerate ethics communication for awareness; and

¢ Ensure recently approved conflict of interest policy and the code of ethics are embedded within our
operations.

Whistleblowing and fraud prevention programmes



We have a whistleblowing policy and function in place that provides employees with various avenues,
such as our anti-corruption hotline, to report any unethical conduct. The anti-corruption hotiine is
independently administered by an external company that submits daily reports for review and
investigation. A preliminary Investigation is conducted to establish whether there is a prima facle case
of misconduct. If there is, a further investigation is conducted with recommendations of appropriate
action including, where necessary, referrals to external law enforcement agencies.

Confidential
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ANNEXURE C - ANTI-CORRUPTION MANAGEMENT PLAN

1. INTRODUCTION

We have developed the Anti-Corruption Management Plan (ACMP) with an aim of complying with the
PFMA and Treasury Regulations obligation of ensuring that the Accounting Authority implements
controls that ensure that Fraud and corruption risk assessment is conducted regularly to identify
emerging Fraud and Corruption risks of the institution. A risk management strategy, which must include
an Anti-Corruption Management Plan, shall be used to direct Compliance and Ethics effort and priority,
and to determine the skills required of managers and staff to improve controls and to manage these
risks. The risk management strategy must be clearly communicated to all officials to ensure that the
risk management strategy is incorporated into the language and culture of the institution. This document
should be read in conjunction with the HR Manual, Conflict of interest policy, Whistle blowing policy,
Supply Chain Management policy, Code of Ethics, Gift and Entertainment policy as well as the Domestic
Prominent influential Person policy.

The Anti-Corruption Management Plan (ACMP) is a dynamic plan that shall continuously advance as
the Company makes change and improvements in its drive to promote ethics or ethical conducts, as
well as to fight fraud and corruption.

The terms “corruption” and “fraud” in this document include, but are not limited to the foliowing acts:

a) Any dishonest, fraudulent or corrupt act;

b) Theft of funds, supplies or other assets;

c) . Financial misconduct relating to the handling or reporting of money, financial transactions and
other assets;

d) Receipt of money in exchange for divulging Company information;

e) Unauthorised disclosure of classified information to external parties;

f) Irregular acceptance, request or offering of anything of material value to or from contractors,
suppliers, or other persons providing services to the Company;

a) Embezzlement of funds;

h) Irregular destruction, removal or abuse of records, furniture and equipment;

i) Deliberately omitting or refusing to report or act upon reports of any such irregular or dishonest
conduct;

i) Bribery;

k) Conspiracy to commit fraud and or corruption;

1) Acts of financial misconduct contemplated in terms of sections 83 -85 of the PFMA,

m) Incidents of unauthorised, irregular or fruitiess and wasteful expenditure as defined by the
PFMA; and

n) Any similar or related irregularity.

The main objectives of the ACMP are as follows:

a) Create a culture that is intolerant to fraud, corruption, theft and maladministration and
encourage employees, stakeholders to behave ethically in their details with or on behalf of the
Company; and

b) Prevent, detect, investigate and resolve fraudulent and corrupt activities.



2. THE STRATEGY

Airports Company South Africa supports and fosters a culture of zero tolerance of fraud and corruption
in all our activities. The primary objective of the ACMP is to change the attitudes of employees, service
providers and other stakeholders towards corruption and fraud. The first step in bringing about such
change Is by creating awareness. Awareness is created through education and communication and is
essential to the whole ACMP. All components depend on each other for the fulfilment of the ACMP. The

following are components of the ACMP:
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Demonstrating leadership to combat and eradicate corruption by continually improving
governance and risk management processes;

Creating a climate that promotes transparency, accountability and integrity;

Maintaining effective systems of internal controls and compliance with those controls;
Conducting independent periodic fraud and corruption risk assessments to identify
opportunities for fraud and corruption;

Implementing prevention and minimisation procedures in day-to-day operations;

Establishing budgetary and financial transparency and strong financial management systems;
Enacting and enforcing a disciplinary code that will deal effectively with corruption offences:
Eliminating conflicts and/or potential conflicts of interest by adopting and enforcing effective
guidelines, ethical regulations and a Code of Conduct for all Directors and employees;
Promoting transparency in policies and procedures for procurement;

Maintaining adequate and accurate financial records and adhere to prescribed International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS);

Enforcing a code of ethics containing a set of values in which management believes, and
require their employees to subscribe to;

Promoting good standards for corporate governance and the protection of shareholder value;
Cultivating and maintaining an environment in which dishonest and fraudulent behaviour is
actively discouraged; ,

Prohibiting individuals found guilty of corruption from doing business with Airports Company
South Africa. Record blacklisted vendors in the delinquency register to discourage the
Company from conducting future business with those entities;

Supporting accountability and oversight mechanisms such as the Compliance and Ethics as
well as an independent Internal Audit and external audit function.

Adopting mechanisms and procedures for the public and personnel to report fraudulent and
corrupt practices. These mechanisms include measures to protect witnesses and whistle
blowers against victimisations, harassment or occupational detriment;

Facilitating the cooperative investigation of cases involving fraud and corruption;

Providing assistance in the investigation, recovery, seizure, freezing, forfeiture and confiscation
of property in respect of the proceeds of corruption as well as the reciprocal enforcement of
forfeiture and other such orders;

Establishing mechanisms to monitor implementation of these principles, including a reporting
and evaluation process; and

Providing an independent probity audit to ensure that procurement guidelines and procedures
are adhered to for the procurement of goods or services of a high value or great significance.

3. LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK

The ACMP incorporates principles contained in the following legislative framework:
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Instruments

Bill of Rights

Applicable
Legislation/Regulation
The Constitution of the Republic
of South Africa, 1996

Purpose

Bill of rights is a cornerstone of
demacracy in South Africa. It enshrines
the rights of all people in our country and
affirms the democratic values of human
dignity, equality and freedom.

Anti-Corruption

Public Service Anti-
Corruption Strategy
(DPSA:2002)

The Strategy provides a framework for the
Public Service through which corruption is
addressed in a systematic and
coordinated manner using a three-fold
approach of preventing, combating and
creating awareness of corruption.

“Public Finance

Public Finance Management
Act, 1999 (Act 1 of 1999)

Establishes the framework for
accountable management of public funds
and provides for criminal Prosecution of
Heads of Department if found guilty of
financial negligence, unadithorised,
fruitiess or wasteful expenditure.

I Transpareﬁcy ‘The Promotion of Access to Promotes transparency within Airports
Information Act, 2000 (Act 2 of Company South Africa.
2000)

[ Accountability The Promotion of Administrative | Promotes fair administrative procedures

Justice Act, 2000 (Act 3 of 2000)

and redress for citizens. The Act requires
government to follow fair procedures
when taking decisions that affect the
public or an individual. Citizens have the
right to request written reasons for
decisions they disagree with, which
enables one to judge whether the decision
was influenced by corruption.

Whistle-blowing

Protected Disclosures
Amendment Act No. 05 of
2017

Promotes whistie-blowing as a
preventative anti-corruption measure and
protects whistle-blowers from
‘occupational detriment” as a resuit of
blowing the whistie in good faith.

Corruption

| Financial
Misconduct

Professional Ethics

Information
Security

| Treasury Regulation

The Prevention and Combating
of Corrupt Activities Act, 2004
(Act 12 of 2004)

Provides effective legislation to combat
corruption in all its forms. Reintroduces
the common law act of bribery.

Monitor the incidents and trends of
financial misconduct and make
recommendations thereto.

| Minimum Information

Code of Conduct for the Public
Service

Standards

_and integrity in the workplace.

The Code of Conduct and its explanatory
manual is a useful guide in the promotion
of good governance and ethical conduct
of public servants. It promotes honesty

The Minimum Information Security
Standards provides the necessary
procedures and measures to protect
information pertaining to the Republic of
South Africa.

' Protection of
personal
information

Protection of Personal
Information Act No. 4 of 2013

It promotes protection of personal
information processed by the public and
private bodies. It introduces minimum
requirements for processing of personal |
information. |




" Integrity Public Sector Integrity To strengthen measures and standards

Management Framework for managing integrity and-promoting
(DPSA: 2013) ethical conduct in the public Sector. This
Framework entails measures for
managing unethical conduct that may
arise as a result of financial interests,
gifts, hospitality and other benefits, post-
! public employment and remunerative

| work outside the public Sector. Further

: proposals are made in respect of

| deployment of ethics officers in the public

Sector and minimum conduct
requirements.

International Instruments

South Africa, as part of the global community, has signed and ratified international instruments in the
fight against fraud and corruption. We take cognisance of such. The instruments include the following:

4.

The United Nations Convention Against Transnational Organised Crime;

The United Nations Convention Against Corruption (UNCAC);

The Organisation of Economic Cooperation and Development Convention on Bribery of Foreign
Public Officials in International Business Transactions;

The African Union (AU) Convention on Preventing and Combating Corruption; and

The Southern African Development Community (SADC) Protocol Against Corruption.

PRINCIPLES OF FRAUD PREVENTION STRATEGY

The anti-fraud and anti-corruption components of this Plan are lllustrated in figure 1 below. Airports
Company South Africa’s ACMP comprises of the following key principles of a Fraud and Corruption
Prevention Strategy:

a) Prevention;

b) Detection;

c)

Investigation; and

d) Resolution.
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Figure 1: Components of the principles of a Fraud Prevention Strategy

A PREVENTION

We will ensure that preventative mechanisms are in place to prevent opportunities for fraud and
corruption. Below (figure 2) are the key features of the prevention component.
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Figure 2: Prevention component with its features
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Ethical Culture

Our Code of Conduct sets out the values that drive the ethical and responsible business conduct of the
Company. It is expected that all employees and stakeholders commit to the Code of Conduct by taking
accountability and responsibility for their own actions. Further to providing all current and new
employees with a copy of the code, we secure signatures from all employees as an indication of their
understanding of, and commitment to, the Code of Conduct. We are establishing the following to
communicate the principles contained in the Code of Conduct:

a) Include relevant aspects of the Code of Conduct in awareness presentations, training sessions and
communication programmes to create awareness thereof among employees and other
stakeholders. Further objectives of this fraining will be the following:

» Helping employees to understand the meaning of unethical behaviour in line with the
expectations of Airports Company South Africa;

» Presenting case studies which will assist in developing behaviour to articulate and encourage
attitudes and values which support ethical business conduct;

=  Helping employees to understand issues involved in making ethical judgements; and

s Communicating the implications of unethical behaviour and its impact on individuals, the
workplace, professional relationships, Airports Company South Africa as an entity and external
stakeholders.

We will ensure that all employees submit declarations of private business interests (actual or potential
conflicts of interest), A centralised record will be kept, and we will annually secure the services of an
independent service provider to test and ascertain whether conflicts exist or not,

Creating Awareness

An anti-fraud and anti-corruption awareness programme will be rolled out across Airports Company
South Africa in conjunction with identified units. Although the roll out of the programme will be
coordinated by the Compliance and Ethics division with assistance of Corporate Services, the creation
of awareness among all employees is the responsibility of all managers.

The creation of awareness among employees will address the following issues:
a) What constitutes fraud and corruption;

b) Fraud and corruption risk factors and main indicators of fraud and corruption;

c) Specific fraud and corruption risks to which we may be exposed, thus enhancing the prospect of
detecting irregularities earlier;

d) Employee awareness of the current systems and internal policies and procedures as they relate to
fraud and corruption, and their rights should they blow the whistle on such acts; and

e) Employee awareness of their responsibility to report fraud and corruption within their work
environment and encouraging employees to blow the whistie using the available reporting channels.

Education

A mixture of both virtual and formal fraud and corruption training sessions will be conducted for all our
employees. Above-mentioned awareness campaigns will also contribute to the education of employees.

Communication Strategy
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A communication strategy to create awareness among employees, the public and other stakeholders
will be implemented to facilitate a culture where all stakeholders strive to contribute towards the success
of the ACMP. This will increase the prospect of fraud and corruption being reported and improve our
prevention and detection ability.

Communication strategies that will be used include among others:

a) Posters, newsletters and pamphlets to market the Code of Conduct, Fraud Hotline and the ACMP.
These will be aimed at internal and external stakeholders.

b} Screensavers with appropriate anti-corruption and pro-ethics messages;

c) Attachments to tender invitations relating to our stance on fraud and corruption, where such
irregularities can be reported and the actions which will be considered;

d) Appropriate attachments to offers of employment and inclusion of appropriate items in induction
and training programmes;

e) Prudent terms in contracts with providers relating to the offering of gifts to employees of the Airports
Company South Africa;

f) Signing of declarations of commitment to the ACMP and the Code of Ethics by all employees:

g) Endorsements of correspondence directed at service providers with anti-corruption and pro-ethics
messages; and

h} Publishing our commitment to anti-corruption and our progress in the implementation of the ACMP
in the Annual Report.

Improved Policies and Procedures

It is essential that our policies and procedures reflect the values held by the Company, reguiate
processes and ephance the ethical culture of Airports Company South Africa. Fundamentally, ali our
employees must comply with the principles inherent in the PFMA and the supporting Rules and
Treasury Regulations. They are also expected to adhere to the organisation's policies, procedures and
other relevant government legislative prescripts.

We have several systems, policies, procedures, rules and regulations designed to ensure compliance
with relevant legislations and prescripts.

Our management is committed to improving awareness and knowledge of the relevant systems,
policies, procedures, rules and regulations. We will engage in clearly defined communication and
training strategies to create awareness of existing and new policies and procedures to ensure that all
employees are made aware of, and adequately trained in the implementation of policies and procedures
relevant to their duties and responsibilities, including:

1. Provisions for all employees to acknowledge, in writing, that they have read the policies and
procedures applicable to their duties, have undergone relevant training and/or are aware of
these policies and procedures;

2. The keeping of adequate records serving as proof that employees have been made aware of
the policies and procedures relevant to their duties; and

3.. The development and distribution of a regular communiqué outlining the importance of
complying with policies and procedures and the implications of non-compliance for employees.

A structured monitoring mechanism will be developed for keeping proper record of approved policies
and procedures, those that are being updated and newly introduced policies and procedures to set clear
targets and monitor progress.



We will ensure that policies and procedures are easily accessible by all employees.

Management will be held accountable for failure to complying with, and implementing our systems,
policies, procedures, rules and regulations and for preventing fraud. This will be addressed in job
descriptions and performance contracts.

Employee Screening and Vetting

The risk of employing corrupt and/or unsuitably qualified persons is inherently high in all organisations.
To address this risk, we have implemented a security screening process of employees consisting of
qualification verification, credit check, reference and criminal record checks.

We will include in employment contracts as well as in the code of ethics, a clause that reserves our right
to conduct lifestyle audits of employees where there are informed suspicions of possible fraud and

corruption.

Risk Management

We acknowledge that the company faces diverse business risks from both internal and external sources
and to comply with the requirements of the Treasury Regulations to the PFMA, the company conducts
annual risk assessments. With risk management being an on-going and dynamic process, the outputs
and information thereof are used to assist management with the following:

1. Prioritising areas for attention and subsequently developing appropriate controls to limit the
material risks identified; and
2, To enable management to continually assess and update the risk profile of the Company.

The fraud and corruption risk register will be shared with management as a means of creating
awareness about fraud and corruption risks and schemes facing Airports Company South Africa.

Employees will be informed regularly of fraud and corruption risks as contained in the risk register to’

enhance prospects of detection.

We will consider updating the current fraud risk register with operational fraud and corruption risks. The
fraud risk register will be updated on an annual basis along with other business risks.

B. DETECTION

Detection invb!V’és establishing means by which to expose instances of fraud and corruption. Thé four
features for the Detection component are illustrated in figure 3 below. N
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Figure 3: Detection component with its features
Case Management Database

We keep a consolidated record of allegations of fraud and corruption perpetrated against it. This assists
in identifying patterns and trends that might indicate control or procedural weaknesses, syndicate
activity or collusion.

We shall develop a detailed case management database of all cases identified through the various
detection channels availzble to us. The database shall include the results of investigations conducted
and the outcome of resolution processes, including disciplinary and recovery processes. The database
shall ensure that;

1. There is a record of all allegations;

2. We can track the progress of each allegation;

3. Weaknesses and recurring risks are systematically revealed and reported on; and

4, Feedback is provided to employees on the management of fraud and corruption allegations.

Internal Audit

Qur Internal Audit function operates in accordance with an approved Internal Audit Charter and a
Coverage Plan. It reports administratively to the CEO and functionally to the Chairman of the ARC. The
Internal Audit function must assist the executive management and the Board to maintain efficient and
effective controls by evaluating the adequacy and effectiveness of such controls and by making
recommendations for enhancing or improving said controls.

In accordance with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of internal Auditing
Standards (lIAS), Internal Auditors may not be held accountable for the detection and prevention of
fraud; however, they are expected to exercise due professional care and to be alert to any symptoms
of fraud and corruption when conducting their normal duties.

We do not have internal investigative capacity. As such Internal Audit is responsible for obtaining the
services of independent experts to assist with conducting forensic investigations where appropriate.

We will regularly re-emphasise to all managers that consistent compliance with internal controls is one
of the fundamental controls in place to prevent fraud and corruption. Managers will be encouraged to




strive to identify and address causes of internal control weaknesses in additlon to addressing identified
control weaknesses.

Management Action

The identification, detection, investigation, prevention and resolving of fraud and corruption cases are
line function. None of the actions performed by the Internal Audit and the Ethics function should lessen
this responsibility. Managers will be made aware through education and training campaigns about their

non-negotiable responsibility to:

1. Establish and maintain an ethical culture in their divisions/units;

2. Assess, be aware of, and report fraud and corruption risks in their area of responsibility;

3. Ensure compliance with policies, establish processes, systems and procedures to prevent
possibie fraud and corruption; and

4, Prevent and detect fraud and corruption within their division/units.

Continuous education training and awareness campaigns will assist management to fulfil their
responsibility by providing them with information on ethics, what constitute fraud and corruption,

disciplinary processes, etc.
Whistle Blowing and Reporting Mechanisms

Whistle blowing is a valuable detection, prevention and deterrent mechanism in as far as fraud and
corruption are concerned. Our Whistleblowing Policy provides for overall guidance for the reporting of
concerns. It furthermore encourages and enables staff to raise concerns within us.

We have reporting lines, authority levels and responsibilities for actions in the case of a suspected fraud
and corruption. We will be consistent in taking allegations seriously, protecting the identity of people
who prefer anonymity, ensuring confidentiality, and following through with investigations, disciplinary
actions and other means of resolution or recourse.

Education, training and awareness wiil be provided to all employees and stakeholders on available
reporting channels and on our Whistle Biowing Policy.

C. '~ INVESTIGATION

investigation Is the actual and possible forensic investigation of acts of fraud
and corruption. There are two features _o!tg\e investigation component as illustrated in figure 4.

interna! Co-operetion with
Investigation Other Agencies
Capecity

Figure 4: Investigation component with its features
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Internal Investigation Capacity

We have an internal investigative capacity. As such it appoints independent external experts to
conduct forensic investigations into reported allegations of irregularities, fraud and corruption.

Investigation outcomes will not be disclosed to or discussed with anyone other than those who have a
legitimate need to know. This Is important to avoid damaging the reputations of suspected persons,
particularly those who were subsequently found innocent of wrongful conduct, and to protect us from
potential civil liability.

Cooperation with Other Agencies

We will refer cases for further criminal investigation to the relevant Law Enforcement Agency as well as
the Liaison with other external forensic audit firms. Formal relationships with relevant agencies and
institutions will be built to enhance investigative and resolution capacities and to improve turn-around
time in finalising cases.

D. RESOLUTION

Resolution is the process of resolving verified cases of fraud and corruption in terms of disciplinary or
criminal action and the recovery of losses. The four features of the Resolution component are illustrated
in figure 6.

Distiplinary Action

fmproved Controls

Covil Recovery

Crimunal
Frosecution

Referral to ather
Agencies

Figure 6: Resolution component with its features

Any fraud and corruption committed by an employee or any other person will be pursued thorough
investigation and to the full extent of the law, including (where appropriate) consideration of:

a) In case of employees, taking disciplinary action within a reasonable period after the incident;

b) Instituting civil action to recover losses;

c) Initiating criminal prosecution by reporting the matter to the SAPS or any other relevant Law
Enforcement Agency; and

d) Any other appropriate and legal remedy available.

Disciplinary Action

11
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We recognise the fact that the consistent and efficient application of disciplinary measures is an integral
component of effective fraud and corruption prevention. We shall initiate and accelerate the following
steps to expedite the consistent, efficient, effective and speedy application of disciplinary measures:

1. On-going training of managers in the application of disciplinary measures and the disciplinary
process, and sustaining this training; '

2, Developing and enhancing a process/system to facilitate the consistent application of
disciplinary measures;

3. Regular monitoring and review of the application of discipline with the objective of improving
weaknesses identified; and

4. Where managers are found to be inconsistent and/or inefficient in the application of discipline,

we will consider firm action.

Where cases of alleged fraud or corruption have been referred to Law Enforcement Agencies for
criminal prosecution, internal disciplinary action will still be taken against offenders, with both processes
running concurrently. A finding in one process may not have an impact on the finding in the other.

Improved Controls

In respect of all reported incidents of fraud and corruption, managers are required to immediately
implement corrective measures, review, and where possible, improve the effectiveness of the controls

which have been breached to prevent similar irregularities from taking place.

The process of enhancing processes, systems and internal controls should be aligned to the prevention
and detection components, specifically policies and procedures.

We shall continue to emphasise to all managers that employees’ consistent compliance with internal
controls is one of the fundamental controls in place to prevent fraud and corruption. Managers shall be
encouraged to identify and address the causes of internal control weaknesses, in addition to addressing

confrol weaknesses.

Furthermore, we shall develop a formal system by which the performance of managers is appraised by
considering the number of audit queries raised and the level of seriousness of the consequent risk to
Airports Company South Africa as a result of an identified internal control deficiency. This is intended
to raise the level of manager accountability for internal controls.

Where managers do not comply with basic internal controls, e.g. non-adherence to the delegation of
authority limits, firm disciplinary action will be considered.

Civil Recovery

Procedures for determining liability and recovery of losses or damages suffered as a result of a
fraudulent or corrupt act committed by an employee or non-employee will be considered for
development and implementation. Currently this is based on the disciplinary code and procedures and
debt recovery processes of Airports Company South Africa. We will enforce civil recovery where

necessary.
Criminal Prosecution

We shall develop procedures for the reporting of cases of fraud and corruption that involve R100 000
or more by the CEO or a delegated official, to Law Enforcement Agencies in terms of the Prevention
and Combating of Corrupt Activities Act, 2004 (Act No. 12 of 2004).

12
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In instances where we have suffered losses through criminal acts or possible criminal acts or om issions,
the matter will be reported in writing to the SAPS in compliance with Treasury Regulation 12.5.1.

Monitoring

We will maintain a consolidated record of allegations of fraud and corruption by means of a fraud and
corruption information management system to limit the risk of threats to Airports Company South
Africa being overlooked.

5. STRUCTURE AND ANTI-FRAUD AND —-CORRUPTION RESPONSIBILITIES

The responsibility for preventing, detecting and monitoring fraud and corruption risks in Alrports
Company South Africa lies with every Airports Company South Africa Director and employee. See
Annexure A for the detailed responsibilities of stakeholders in this regard.

6. MONITORING AND MAINTENANCE

Progress with the implementation of the ACMP will be monitored by the Social and Ethics Committee.

The CEO is the custodian of this Plan and is responsible for its administration, revision and
interpretation. The ACMP shall be reviewed rl'egularly and appropriate changes applied when required.

7. ADOPTION

,:/ -~ P =
e

5By .
Ch_el(liu‘r@n’o‘(th/l oard

Chief Executive Officer
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ANNEXURE C1: STRUCTURE AND ANTI-FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION RESPONSIBILITIES

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (“The Board”) is responsible for setting the direction and strategy of the
Company, as well as overseeing planning, optimal allocation of resources, the maintenance of ethical
business practices, effective risk management and communication with all stakeholders. The Board
must therefore retain full and effective control over Airports Company South Africa and ensure
compliance with all relevant laws, regulations and codes.

The Board will be responsible for the following:

a) Setting the “tone at the top” and taking a leadership role in promoting ethical behaviour within
Airports Company South Africa;

b) Monitoring of the levels of risk tolerance as far as fraud and corruption is concerned;

¢) Monitoring that fraud risk assessments are performed annually and on an on-going basis;

d) Monitoring that management considers and implements appropriate fraud risk response;

e) Ensuring that it receives assurance regarding the effectiveness of risk management process;

f) Disclosing its view on the effectiveness of our risk management processes and the integrated
report;

g) Ensuring continued operation of an adequate system of internal control to protect us against
fraudulent and corrupt activities including threats to the computer systems; and

h) Reporting on significant risks that may affect decisions of shareholders.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee ("EXCO") will be responsible for the following:

a) Setting the "tone at the top” and taking leadership role in promoting ethical behaviour within Airports
Company South Africa;

b) Formulating policies regarding the prevention of fraud and corruption, detection of fraud and
corruption and responding to fraud and corruption;

¢) Ensuring the implementation and continued operation of an adequate system of internal control to
protect Airports Company South Africa against fraudulent and corrupt activities including threats to

our computer systems;

d) Ensuring that employees within their area of responsibility receive appropriate fraud and corruption
awareness training and understand our code of ethics; and

e) ldentifying and managing potential fraud and corruption risks in their area of responsibility.

Audit and Risk Committee

Our Audit and Risk Committee (“ARC") considers annual and interim financial statements, accounting
policies and the safeguarding of assets, audit plans and the findings of external and internal auditors.
This committee also monitors governance and ethical standards.

The responsibilities of the ARC will include, among other, the following:
a) Review of our fraud risk management framework and related strategies, to direct Internal Audit
effort and priority;

b) Assist the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQO”) in determining the skills required to improve controls and
to manage fraud related risks;
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¢) Evaluate the effectiveness of monitoring systems pertaining to fraud related risks and the results of
management's investigation and foliow-up on alleged fraud and related matters; and

d) Review and comment, where appropriate, on cases of alleged fraud, corruption and related matters
when referred to it by the CEO or his/her delegates.

Social and Ethics Committee

The Social and Ethics Committee (“SEC") monitors certain Airports Company South Africa activities,
having regard to any relevant legislation, other legal requirements and prevailing codes of best practice.
The SEC is also responsible for coordinating and overseeing the implementation of the Plan and as
such its responsibilities will involve the following, among others:

1. Facilitating and coordinating the implementation of tasks and responsibilities contained in the
Plan;

2. Evaluating policies In Airports Company South Africa and ensure that fraud and corruption risks
are identified and prevented;

3. Developing implementation plans for Fraud Management Policies, setting out targets for anti-
fraud and anti-corruption activities and reporting dates for these activities;

4. Ensuring that the fraud risk register is updated on an annual basis;

5. Monitoring that all fraud and corruption cases reported are investigated and resolved:

6. Developing fraud prevention awareness campaign to promote fraud awareness and monitor
implementation;

7. Monitoring that fraud prevention and compliance with the Plan is inherent in performance
agreements for all managers and senior managers; and

8. Providing the Board, CEO and ARC with quarterly reports on progress with implementation of
the Plan.

Anti-Corruption Steering Committee

The Anti-Corruption Steering Committee (“ASC”) evaluates and classifies all hotline calls received,
agree on treatment plans for these, and report to EXCO and the Board through the SEC and the ARC.

The role and responsibilities of the ASC involves the following, among others:

a) Providing guidance to EXCO on classifying and prioritising reported concerns and submissions to
enable subsequent.investigation;

b) Ensuring the appropriateness of the ACMP through the development, maintenance and submission
for approval to EXCO of the Plan;

c¢) Ensuring the appropriateness of a prioritisation method for all received calls through the
development, maintenance and submission for approval to the EXCO of the prioritisation process;

d) Evaluating and classifying all reported calls;
e) Monitering and reporting on all reported calls;

f) Monitoring the performance and delivery of the selected forensics service providers during
investigations; and

g) Analysing the trend on reported cails and report on these to EXCO. EXCO will recommend these
reports to ARC and SEC.

Internal Audit
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Internal Audit has the mandate to independently appraise the appropriateness, adequacy and
effectiveness of our systems of internal controls and reporting on these to management and the ARC.
The other major areas of activity are identifying and reporting on error, fraud and discrepancies, and
monitoring corporate governance.

The forensic function is housed under Internal Audit. Furthermore, Governance develops and
coordinates the implementation of the ACMP. The capacity to implement certain elements of the Plan
may be allocated to other Divisions but are coordinated by Internal Audit.

Management

Management plays an integral role in the implementation of controls to monitor our day-to-day
operations and as such management will be responsible for:

a) Ensuring that appropriate Intemnal controls are in place to minimise fraud and other corruption risks;
b) Ensuring that internal controls are operating effectively;

c) Providing ethical advice and support to staff;

d) Providing input for developing fraud and corruption control strategies and an implementation
timetable as required to address fraud and corruption risks identified in their area of responsibility
during risk assessments; and

e) Providing progress reports on the implementation of fraud and corruption control strategies if
requested.

Employees

Our employees play a pivotal role to the success of the Plan in that they are required to:

a) Report suspected fraud and corruption within Airports Company South Africa;

b) Support and comply with the requirements of the ACMP;

c) Actin an ethical and professional manner,

d) Comply with our legal requirements, directives, policies and procedures;

e) Actin our best interest at all times;

f) Maintain and enhance our reputation; and

g) Perform their duties with required skill, care, diligence, honesty, integrity and impartiality.
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Qur external stakeholders

We expect all our external stakeholders to act with honesty and integrity in their interaction with the
Company and to report any suspicions or knowledge they may have of fraud and corruption against
Airports Company South-Africa. Our stakeholders fall within the stakeholder groups outlined in the
stakeholder map below.

Taking into consideration the stakeholder map, the following are the anti-fraud and anti-corruption
responsibilities of our stakeholder groups: :

Our Stakeholder Our Stakeholders Anti-Fraud and Anti-Cofruption
Groups Responsibility N
Enabling » Shareholders » Office of the Public Services Commission
Resources * Government must communicate report incidents of fraud
| « Board of Directors and irregularities received via NACH to
« Investors /Lenders Airports Company South Africa

¢ Law enforcement agencies and other
agencies to collaborate and provide us with
support with regards to fraud intricate
investigations i.e. syndicate fraud cases

« Government to further develop and/or
update fraud related policies and
legisiation that enables us to successfully
fight against fraud and corruption

Value Creation « Unions ¢ To comply with our policies and
= Suppliers procedures
o Airlines « Conduct themselves with integrity and
* Passengers honesty when dealing with Airports
+ Retailers Company South Africa =
¢ Distributers « Blow the whistle on fraud and corruption

 Create awareness among its employees
on the acceptable conduct when dealing
with us
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Our Stakeholder Our Stakeholders Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption |
Groups B o Responsibility
Soclal ¢ Media Responsible media reporting as far as
Responsiveness » Academia / Research fraud and iregularities are concerned at
’ » Activists/Special Airports Company South Africa
Interest Groups Blow the whistle on fraud and corruption
+ Community
+ NGO's
| = Environment

Industry Structure + Partner Comply with our policies and Procedures

¢ Peer Institutions Conduct themselves with integrity and honesty

» Associations when dealing with Alrports Company South

» Professional Bodies Africa

o JVs Cooperation and integrated efforts in the fight

+ Compefitors against fraud

» Tourism Bodies
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ANNEXURE D - SIGNIFICANCE AND MATERIALITY FRAMEWORK

1. PREAMBLE

Whereas in terms of section 54(2) of the PFMA before a public entity conclude certain listed significant
transactions, the accounting authority of that public entity must inform the relevant treasury and apply
to the executive authority for approval of that transaction.

Therefore, the parties hereby agree to set out the guidelines for the treatment of material and significant
transactions and to determine significance levels for the Airports Company South Africa in terms of
Section 54(2) as well as materiality levels as they relate to material losses in terms of section 55(2) of
the PFMA.

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

“Corporate plan” shall mean a corporate plan submitted annually in terms of section 52 of the PFMA
“DOT” shall mean the Department of Transport

“Executive authority” shall mean the Minister of Transport

“Accounting Authority” shall mean the board of directors of the Airports Company South Africa

“PFMA” shall mean Public Finance Management Act No 1 of 1999

2. PURPOSE

The purpose of this framewaork is to:

1. Set out guidelines for significant transactions in terms of section 54(2) of the PFMA that Airports
Company South Africa must seek for approval from the Minister of Transport as outlined in
Table A.

2, Outlining & pracess to be followed and information needed to be submitted in support of an
application in terms of section 54(2) of the PFMA; and

3. Setting significance and materiality levels for transactions for the purposes of section 54(2) of
the PFMA.

4. Set out materiality levels for losses for purposes of section 55(2) of the PFMA.

3. BACKGROUND

Section 54(2) of the PFMA states that “before a public entity concludes any of the following
transactions, the accounting for the public entity must promptly and in writing inform the relevant
treasury of the transaction and submit relevant particulars of the transaction to its executive authority
for approval of the transactions:

a) Establishment or participation in the establishment of a company;

b) Participation in a significant partnership, trust, unincorporated joint venture or similar arrangement:
¢) Acquisition or disposal of a significant shareholding in a company;

d) Acquisition or disposal of a significant asset;

e) Commencement or cessation of a significant business activity; and

f) A significant change in the nature or extent of its interest in a significant partnership, trust,

unincorporated partnership, trust, unincorporated joint venture or similar arrangement.

Section 55 of the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), 1 of 1999, requires the accounting authority
of a public entity to submit to the executive authority responsible for that public entity:
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(i) an annual report on the activities of that public entity during the financial year;

(i) the financial statements for that financial year after the statements have been audited; and

(iil) The report of the auditors on those statements.

Paragraph 27.1.10 of the Treasury Regulations (TR) states that the Audit Committee of a public entity
must:

report and make recommendations to the accounting authority;
report on the effectiveness of internal controls in the annual report of the entity; and
comment on its evaluation of the financial statements in the annual report.

In addition, TR paragraph 27.1.12 requires the Audit Committee to communicate any concerns it deems
necessary to the executive authority and the auditors.

The executive authority may, based on the above information, decide to conduct further investigations
into the activities of the public entity. It is therefore important that all reports include all material financial

as well as non-financial information.

TR paragraph 28.3 states. that the accounting authority must develop and agree a framework of
acceptable levels of materiality and significance with the relevant executive authority. Although this
paragraph refers to section within the PFMA that specifically compels entities to report on certain
material transactions and / or events the framework should not be limited to these transactions and / or

events.

The material and / or significant information specifically mentioned in the PFMA and TR is included
below:
$55 (2) (b) (i) of the PFMA: “The annual report and financial statements referred to in subsection
(1) (d) must - .
a) e
b) Include particulars of -

() Any material losses through criminal conduct and any irregular expenditure and
fruitless and wasteful expenditure that occurred during the financial year;

TR 28.2.1: “Any matferial losses thfough criminal conduct and any irregular and fruitless and
wasteful expenditure must be disclosed as a note fo the annual financial

statements of the public entily.
TR 29.1.1(f):  The corporate plan must cover a period of three years and must include -

() a materiality / significance framework, referred to in Treasury Regulation 28.3.1”

TR 30.1.3(e): “The strategic plan must -

(e) include the materiality / significance framework, referred to in Treasury Regulation
283.1

4. GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES
The parties agree that:

Airports Company South Africa shall follow the procedures as set out In this framework in making an
application for approval for significant transactions.
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For the purpose of the guidelines and transactions listed in the table below, qualitative and quantitative
guidelines may either be applied concurrently or separately as the context requires.

In so far as the quantitative guidelines relating to the total assets, total revenue and profit after tax are
concerned where rand values are used, these may be adjusted annually in accordance with the
information contained in the latest annual financial statements.

5. PROCEDURE FOR NOTIFICATION OR APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL
Phase one: Pre-Notification

In so far as significant transactions are covered in the corporate plan that will serve as pre-notification
for an in-principle approval, provided that all the information required in terms of 6.1.3 is fully set out in
the corporate plan.

In so far as the significant transactions are not covered in the corporate plan, Airports Company South
Africa shall notify the Minister of Transport by a letter seeking as in-principle approval.

The letter shall contain the following information:

1. Airports Company South Africa’s objectives on wanting to pursue the transaction and its relation
to the core business of the entity.

2. The anticipated transaction process, phases, milestones and timelines.

3. The profile of interested parties, purchasers and information regarding any unsolicited
expression of interest received (where applicable).

4. The impact of the transaction on Airports Company South Africa and Government.

The DoT shall consider the application for in-principle approval and advise Airports Company South
Africa in writing whether or not the in-principle approval has been granted within 30 days.

Phase Two: Final application for approval:

Airports Company South Africa shall upon finalising the significant transaction’s details and structure
apply to the Executive Authority in writing for approval of the transaction.

The application shalil include a certified board resolution and such information pack containing the
materials on which the Board based its resolution. The company secretary or duly delegated official
shall sign the extracts on behalf of the Board.

The Department of Transport shall then deterimine whethé} Airports Company South Africa’s Board has
considered the following:

1. Compliance with applicable laws. _

2. Financial viability (i.e. cash flow analysis; estimates of future revenue; investment analysis vs.
investment framework; fair value of the transaction).

3. Risks pertaining to the proposed transaction and strategies to mitigate those risks.

Airports Company South Africa shall copy the final application with the board resolutions and submit
these directly to the National Treasury.
The DoT shall on receipt of the application for final approval consider the following:

1. Whether the Board has complied with the list of considerations outlined above, as well as an
applicable legislation in respect of each transaction.
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2. Whether, based on the information recelved, the transaction is financially viable or whether

Airports Company South Africa will achieve fair value through the specified transaction.

All material liabilities (actual or contingent) and risks resulting from the transactions.

Industry and /or sector impact and considerations; and

5. Whether the Board has established strategies and / or measures to mitigate any risk identified
in the transaction.

W

The DoT shall use its best endeavours to process the application timeously, within 30 days of recsipt
as specified in section 54(3) of the PFMA advise Airports Company South Africa if the transaction

cannot be processed within this time-period.

Should the DoT require further information from Alrports Company South Africa to process and finalise
the application, the 30-day period shall be extended by such period as it takes for the DoT 1o receive

the information.

The DoT shall advise Airports Company South Africa in writing whether the application has been
approved or not approved.

Should approval not be granted, the DoT shall furnish reasons in writing for not approving the
transaction.

Phase Three: Post application principles

Alrports Company South Africa shall report on a quarterly basis on the progress made in executing the
transaction and the fulfiilment of any conditions that were part of the approval.

Should the transaction not be concluded within six months of approval, Airports Company South Africa
should provide the DoT with a report detailing the reasons thereof.

Should Airports Company South Africa make an application or submit reports fo the regulatory
authorities, it will furnish a copy of such to DoT for information purposes.

6. MATERIALITY

We have adopted International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as a recognised reporting
framework. Materiality in the context of IFRS is similar to Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP) (applied in ferms of public sector reporting) on the Presentation of Financial Statements states
that information is material If its non-disclosure could influence the decision-making and evaluations of
users about the allocation and stewardship of resources, and the performance of the entity, made on
the basis of the financial statements. A misstatement is material if it could also influence the decisions

or assessments of users.

Assessing materiality depends on the size and nature of the omission or misstatement judged in the
particular circumstances. In addition, the characteristics of the users of the information must be
considered. Users are assumed to have a reasonable knowledge of accounting, the business and
economic activities of the entity and possess a willingness to study the information with reasonable
diligence. The assessment should therefore consider how users with such sttributes could reasonably

be expected to be influenced in making and evaluating decisions,

7. FACTORS CONSIDERED IN DETERMINING THE MATERIALITY LEVELS

Nature of the Company’s business
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The nature of our business may have an impact on the framework. We should be guided by its public
accountability and the sensitivity of our account, activities and functions regarding matters of public
interest.

The materiality framework also impacts on the information reported to its executive authority because
the reported information influences the decisions and actions taken by the executive authority.

Statutory Requirements

The framework could be influenced by considerations such as the legal and regularity requirements.
We should therefore consider all the appropriate laws and regulations when developing the framework.

Risk associated with our business

There is an inverse relationship between materiality and the level of risk. The lower the risk the higher
the materiality level, and vice versa. We need to consider various risks when developing a materiality
framework. This could include:

Risk B | Explanation )
Operational risk | The risk arising from the day to day operational activities
_ which may result in a direct or indirect loss
| Liquidity risk The Inability of our company to meet obligations when they
are due
Credit risk The risk that a borrower or debtor fails to meet when the
o obligation is due ‘
Human resources risk The risk that adequate quantities of appropriate qualified and
skilled staff and resources are not available within our
| | company
| Legal and documentation risk The risk that a transaction or contract could not be
- consummated because of some legal barrier
Regulatory and compliance risk The risk of incurring penalties or restrictions as a result of
o - non-compliance with legal requirements
| Information risk The risk that confidentiality will be: breached or the |
- 3 | unavailability of information when required
Insurance risk The risk that the we are not adequately insured against
losses or claims '
‘Technology risk The risk that systems are not adequately monitored,
accounted for or serviced to deliver a service
... Reputational risk o | The risk of damaging the Company's image ]

Quantitative and qualitative factors

When setting the framework, we should take both quantitative (amount) and qualitative (nature) factors
into consideration.

Quantitative factors related to the size of the company or the value of an item to the value of the financial
statements. The two aspects that should be considered when determining the materiality figure is the
amount of the item to the financial information and second the special characteristics of the item.
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As a guide the rand amount (before any qualitative adjustments) may be calculated as follows:

Element % Range to be applied [ Airports Company South Africa |
against Rand value in AFS Rand value applied per 2019/20 AFS
(rounded) J
Total assets 1% - 2% R318m 0 R636m |
Total revenue 0.5% - 1% R36m 0 R72m ) ‘-
Surplus / Deficit | 2% - 5% R24m 0 R60m

From a company perspective, quantitative materiality is set at R60 million.
From a company perspective, significance level is set at R600 million.

Qualitative materiality focuses on the inherent nature of the item under consideration. These items do
not necessarily influence the reasonableness of the financial statements, but due to their nature they
are of importance to the users of the financial statements. The following factors could be taken into
consideration when determining qualitative materiality:

a) Statutory requirements: compliance with legislative requirement, regulations, policy control
measures, procedures, instructions and authorisation (including budgets) which reasonably have

direct financial impact;

b) Unusual items: items that are of a non-recurring or exceptional nature or arise from unusual
circumstances,

c) Degree of estimation: the risk of material misstatement

d) Related amounts: the relationship of the item to other amounts that appear in the financial
statements

e) Critical points: an item that would otherwise be regarded as insignificant, may, it corrected or
disclosed, have a critical impact on the overall view; and

f) Disclosure requirements — deviations from accepted accounting practices.

Nature of the transactions

The Company should consider the importance of the transaction, {i.e. the transaction’s impact on the
Company as a whole), as well as any possible impact the transaction could have on a decision or action
taken by the Company's executive authority in the development of the materiality framework.

A distinction shidtild also be made between transactions that are operational in nature and tranéaéiions
that are approved within a very specific framework, i.e. the annual budget, the Company’s corporate

plan, or strategic plan.
8. EVALUATING THE FRAMEWORK

The significance and materiality framework must be updated annually before the start of the financial
year, taking into account the results of the previous year’s audit and any new developments in the

Company.
The following additional qualitative items are to be considered in establishing materiality:

No. | Reference | Nature of Qualitative guidelines Quantitative
- transaction videlines
1 54(2)@) | Establishmentor | e Participation as a founding | »  Anylevelof
participation in shareholder; or shareholding; or
the establishment | ¢« Having a right to acquire e Any level of loan or
. | of a company. ___shares; or | quasi-equity
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[ No.

N

| Reference | Nature of

-

542X) |
significant

similar
arrangement.

Participationina | e

partnership, trust,
unincorporated
joint venture or

| Qualitative guidelines
_ | transaction |

| Quantitative

guidelines

Having a right to hominate
a director; or

Where Airports Company
South Africa commits to
enter into 2 management
contract in respect of the
company

Partnership, trust, |

unincorporated joint
venture or similar
arrangements that is
established, located or
intended to operate
outside the Republic of
South Africa; or

Airports Company South
Africa’s contribution in a
partnership, trust,
unincorporated joint
venture or similar
arrangements includes
Airports Company South
Africa's proprietary
intellectual property; or
Participation in a
partnership, trust,
unincorporated joint
venture or similar
arrangement that may
result in anti-competition
behaviour and for is
subject to competition
commission regulations.

finance obligation |

by Airports
Company South
Africa arises; or
Airports Company
South Africa
commits to
guarantee any
obligations of the
company (includes
financial
performance
guarantee) at any
level.

""" | Acquisition or
disposal of
significant

company

shareholding in a

Acquisition of any level or
shareholding in a
company where such
acquisition is not in pursuit
of Airports Company
South Africa’s core
business; or

Acquisition or disposal
where Airports Company
South Africa’ s ownership
contro! and right to pass or
block a special resolution
is affected; or

Acquisition or disposal of
any level of shareholding
in a company domiciled
outside of the Republic of
South Africa

Airports Company
South Africa’s
contribution results
in disposal /
disbursed of assets
in excess of 1% of
the total assets; or
Airports Company
South Africa enters
a long-term
contract with the
partnership, trust,
unincorporated joint
venture or similar
arrangement more
than 0.5% of the
total revenue

Acquisition or
disposal of more
than 20% of the
issued shares in a
company; or
Where Airports
Company South
Africa already owns
shares in the
company,
acquisition or
disposal of the
number of shares
that will give rise to
a shareholding
more or less than
20% of the issued




No. | Reference | Nature of Qualitative guidelines Quantitative
i transaction - uldelines
shares in a
N B company.
| 4. 54(2)(d) Acquisition or Acquisition or disposal of Significance level is
f disposal of a assets which are located R500 million
significant asset in a foreign jurisdiction,
(NB: for the however excludes office
purpose of this equipment and motor
subsection, vehicles necessary to
assels include conduct business ina
both current and foreign jurisdiction; or
non-currént) Disposal of assets that
impact or has a potential
impact on the continued
abllity of Airports
Company South Africa to
do business or provide its
core service; or
Disposal of non-core
assets in line with Airports
Company South Africa’
strategy; or
Commercial agreements
which allow for the right of
use of a third party of
Airports Company South
Africa’s brand, logo,
licences and similar rights,
inteliectual property;
. . trademark and patents. ‘

5 54(2).(e) | Commencement Commencement or Significance level is
or cessation of a cessation of a business set at R500 million
significant activity outside of the
business activity; republic; or
and Cessation of a business

activity where such
cessation has or may have
an adverse impact on its
key stakeholders.

6 54(2)(f) A significant Changes that affect Significance level is
change inthe . Airports Company South set at R500 million
nature or extent Africa’s ownership control
of its interest in a type reserved through the
significant Trust deed, the
partnership, trust, partnership or joint venture
unincorporated agreement; or
joint venture or Change that involves the
similar partnership, trust,
arrangement unincorporated joint

venture or similar
arrangement commencing
or ceasing to do business |
N o outside South Africa. l
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ANNEXURE E - RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview

The effective management of risk is a key element to the successful achievement of the Airports
Company South Africa corporate plan. This framework document provides a guideline to ensure the
integration of risk management processes into established company business processes. The intent is
to provide a reference point for alignment of effective management of risks and the achievement of
business objectives.

The framework is based on the outcomes of best practice reviews, maturity assessments and
continuous interaction with the Company's governance structures e.g. individual Executives, Exco
committees and Sub-committees as well as the Board Audit and Risk Commitiee.

Purpose

To guide the implementation of the Enterprise Risk Management Policy, to ensure Airports Company
South Africa SOC Limited becomes a Risk Intelligent organisation. The risk intelligence measure is
detailed in the Airports Company South Africa SOC Limited Enterprise Risk Management Plan.

Risk intelligent means the ability to:

o Think holistically about risk and uncertainty;

¢ Speak a common risk language;

¢ Effectively use forward-thinking risk concepts and tools to make better decisions:
¢ Alleviating threats;

e Capitalising on opportunities;

s Creating iasting value;

s Ensure sustainability; and

¢ Continuous learning.

Objectives of the Framework
The objective for implementing this Enterprise Risk Management Framework is to:

o Provide support in the achievement of objectives, through transparent identification and
management of acceptable risks and opportunities;

+ Enhance risk response decisions through encouraging pro-active management;

« Reduce operational surprises and losses; (.

« Improve the identification of opportunities and threats:

« Improve deployment of capital through support for effective decision making;

¢ Ensure compliance with laws and regulations;

¢ Increasing probability of achieving objectives; and

« |Improve stakeholder confidence and trust.

Benefits of Implementing an Integrated Risk Management Framework

+ Aligning risk appetite and strategy;

o Pursuing objectives through transparent identification and management of acceptable risk:
¢ Enhancing risk response decisions through encouraging pro-active management;

¢ Reducing operational surprises and losses;
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Improve the identification of opportunities and threats seizing opportunities;

[ ]

¢ |mproving deployment of capital;

 Ensuring compliance with laws and regulations and improving reporting;
¢ Increasing probability of achleving objectives; and

¢ Improve stakeholder confidence and trust.

Conclusion

The framework discussed in this document provides details of the management of risk in terms of the
mandate of the Risk Management Department. We have applied as our foundation the principles of the
Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (PFMA), the Companies Act, 2009, the International
Organisation for Standardisation (1ISO) 31000:2009 and guidelines of international risk benchmarks in
developing this Enterprise Risk Management Framework. This framework is based on current best
practice and shall adapt through on-going benchmarking and networking.
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1. INTRODUCTION

We have adopted an integrated process to effectively manage risk within our business that has an
impact — positive or negative on the achievement of our strategic objectives. Risk can have negative

consequences or shall result in opportunities for us if well identified and managed. This document -

outlines the framework we adopted to ensure the effective management of risks to achieve desired
results.

2. INTEGRATED ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
The Integrated Enterprise Risk Management framework supports the following:

» Effective management of risks across the organisation;
s An integrated approach to managing risk;
 Compliance to applicable legisiation.

The framework shall be separated into two (2) distinct components:

o Four (4) pillars or building blocks which provide for the foundations and organisational
arrangements for designing, implementing, monitoring, reviewing and continually improving risk
management throughout the organisation. The foundations include the policy, objectives, mandate
and commitment to manage risk. The organisational arrangements include plans, relationships,
accountabilities, resources, processes and activities; and

¢ The risk management process or methodology, which is the systematic application of management
standards, procedures, guidelines and practices to the activities of communicating, consulting,
environmental analysis, and identifying, analysing, evaluating, treating, monitoring and reviewing
risk.
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Governance, Roles and Accountabilities

Assurance of good corporate governance shall be achieved through the regular measurement,
reporting and communication of risk management performance. Whilst the Board has the ultimate
responsibility for risk management, the Board Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) is constituted as a
committee of the Board operating as an overseer of the risk management process. The Risk
Management Department shall monitor and review the organisation’s risk management processes,
system and performance and report this to Exco and ARC on a regular basis.

The detailed roles and responsibilities of the identified role players are outlined in section 7.

Commit and Mandate

Airports Company South Africa SOC Limited Leadership is committed to the management of risks to
ensure the achievement of its objectives. Through the ERM policy, management has committed to the
adoption of a structured approach to risk management; using consistent approaches to the assessment,
treatment and to effectively communicate on the management of these risks. The policy is aligned to
the Public Finance Management Act of 1999 as amended and other relevant legislative requirements.

The Organisation has committed to managing risk to be within defined appetite and tolerance levels
as detailed in the Risk Appetite and Tolerance Framework document - JO10 003FW. Implementation
-of the Enterprise Risk Management Program

To implement the ERM process the organisation will focus on defining the context for risk management
process by developing a risk management plan, conducting training and awareness to ensure that the
components of the risk management process are understood as well as ensuring risk management
support is provided to the relevant stakeholders/users on an ongoing basis. The ERM team is
responsible, in consultation with business, for the design and coordination of the ERM training program.
Training will be carried out as per the Risk Management training plan.

Defined performance, maturity roadmap, benchmarking and reporting -

To achieve the end-state of a risk intelligent organisation, the Risk Management Department, at least
annually, performs maturity assessments to evaluate our progress. Performance shall be measured,
reported against approved risk management plans and key performance indicators as part of the annual
performance management process using a risk management adopted maturity evaluation process. In
addition, benchmarking of best practice to evaluate our position regarding our abilty to reach and
sustain a world class status. These initiatives are conducted continuously.

Combined Assurance

Combined Assurance is governed by the Combined Assurance Framework — JO50 001FW. In terms of
the Combined Assurance Framework, the Group Risk Department is a critical function in the support of
implementing, embedding the Combined Assurance model and reporting thereof to the Audit and Risk
Committee. Group Internal Audit is responsible for championing the implementation of the Combined
Assurance Plan.

The Enterprise Risk Management Framework focuses on the identification, the assessment and the
implementation of responses to the risks facing the entity; the Combined Assurance Framework focuses
on ensuring that an appropriate level of assurance is provided on the effectiveness of the risk
management process and the controls implemented.

INTEGRATED ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The risk management process that is adopted throughout the Group is founded on the 1SO 31000
Risk Management Standard. All steps in the risk management process shall be applied.
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RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS

FSTABLISH THE CONTEXRT

RISKIDENTIFICATION

MONITOR AND

REVIEW

11717173
117170

Communication and Consultation (Stakeholder Engagement & Reporting)

Stakeholders are persons, organisations, divisions, operating units, departments, functions, etc. That
shall affect, be affected by, or perceive themselves to be affected by a decision or activity. Their needs,
expeclations, concerns, values, perceptions, judgements about risk have a direct impact on the
achievement of the organisation’s strategy, objectives or departmental Key Performance Indicators.
Stakeholders comprise both internal as well as external parties.

Whilst external stakeholders are not directly engaged in the Company's operations, they are affected
by the Company (customers, suppliers, competitors, etc.) and have the ability to directly influence the
business environment (government, regulators, etc.). Furthermore, they can infiuence the Company’s
reputation, brand, and trust (communities, interest groups, etc.).

Internal stakeholders comprise the human forces working within the entity that directly influence the
organisation (Board of Directors, Management, and Other Personnel).

The risk assessment process, therefore, commences with the identification and analysis of relevant
stakeholders, their objectives, expectations, concerns and needs. This helps to ensure that the interests
of all stakeholders are understood andconsidered and bring different areas of expertise together for
analysing risks. Effective external and internal engagement, communication and consultation shall take
place to ensure that those accountable for implementing the risk management process and
stakeholders understand the basis on which decisions are made, and the reasons why particular actions
are required. The total risk management process shall involve the continual consultation and

communication with relevant stakeholders.
An inclusive and consultative approach has many potential benefits as listed below:

o It is pivotal in establishing the environment or the context, both internal and external, in which the
organisation operates;

« It ensures that the interests, concerns and expectations of all relevant stakeholders are understood
and considered;

« It drives the adequate identification of risks and bring different areas of expertise together for
defining risk criteria, analysing risks, and in evaluating risks;
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* It secures the endorsement and support for risk treatment plans; and

* ltenables seamless change management during the risk management process.

Establishing the business context

The business context refers to the trends, relationships, and other factors that influence, clarify, or drive
change to an organisation’s current and future strategy and business objectives. Change may happen
quickly and in unanticipated ways. New risks can emerge at any time causing disruption and changing
the status quo with many interconnections and interdependencies.

The effective application of risk management from both a strategic as well as operational perspective,
requires placing the organisation, division, department or function into context from both an external as
well as internal perspective. This enables the organisation to effectively articulate the environmental
factors that influence its objectives and provide for the effective alignment and cascade of strategic
objectives into operational objectives. Thus, the external and internal business contexts describe the
environment in which the Company operates and gives impetus and defines the external and internal
parameters to be considered for setting the scope and risk criteria for the risk assessment phase (i.e.
the identification, analysis and evaluation of risk).

Establishing the external context

The exterrial context describes the external environment in which the organisation seeks to achieve its
objectives. Understanding the external context is important to ensure that the objectives and concerns
of external stakeholders are considered when developing risk criteria. It is based on the organisation-
wide context, but with specific details of legal and regulatory requirements, stakeholder perceptions and
other aspects of risks specific to the scope of the risk management process.

The external context can include, but is not limited to:

» The sqgial and cultural, political, legal, regulatory, financial, technological, economic, natural and
competitive environment, whether international, national, regional orlocal;

s Key drivers and trends having impact on the objectives of the organisation; and

+ Relationships with, perceptions and values of external stakeholders,

Establishir_)g_ the Internal Context

The internal environment comprises any influence inside the entity that shall affect its ability to achieve
its strategy and business objectives. It describes the internal infrastructure and resources environment
in which the organisation seeks to achieve its objectives and comprise the broad categories as listed
below: -

“Category  Characteristics of internal Context

| Capital Assets, including cash, equipment, property, patents

People | Capabilities, understood in terms of resources and knowledge, skills, attitudes, relationships, |
core values, and culture

Process Governance, organisational structure, roles andaccountabilities; standards, guidelines and ‘
models adopted by the organisation; activities, tasks, policies, or procedures; changes in
management, operational, and supporting processes, information flows and decision-making
| processes (both formal andinformal)

Technology | Information systems, new, amended, or adopted technology

L | - o |

Confidential



P

The risk management process shall be aligned with the organisation's culture, processes, structure and
strategy. As risk management takes place in the context of the objectives of the organisation; The
analysis of the internal context aids in driving the following:

o Considering objectives and criteria at all levels within the organisation in the light of objectives of
the organisation as a whole; and

» Recognising opportunities to achleve strategic, project or business objectives.

Business risks result from core business activities and business components, including its strategies,
processes, products, functions, and organisational structure. The events present in the business
environment shall look to both the past and the future as it may have an impact on the Company
achieving its business strategy and shall be potentially positive or negative.

Events that have a potentially negative impact may prevent, degrade or delay the achievernent of
objectives. These events represent risks, which require management's assessment and response.

Events with a potentially positive impact shall result in the creation, enhancement or acceleration of
achieving objectives. These events represent opportunities or offset the negative impact of risks. Those
representing opportunities are channelled back to the Company’s strategy or objective-setting
processes, so that actions shall be formulated to seize the opportunities, whereas events potentially
offsetting the negative impact of risks are considered in management's risk assessment and response.

Risk Assessment

This component of the Framework focuses on enterprise risk management practices that support the
Group in making decisions and achieving strategy and business objectives. Because risk emanates
from a variety of sources and requires a range of responses, the process of identifying, analysing,
evaluating and responding to risk is undertaken across the entity and at all levels. To that end, the
Company's operating model is used to implement an iterative process, with the inputs in one step of the
process typically being the outputs of the previous step. This process is performed across all levels and
with responsibilities and accountabilities for appropriate enterprise risk management alignment with the

severity of the risk.

Risk Identification

Risk identification requires the appropriate knowledge of the activity or operation and functions as a
fundamental aid in generating a universe of risks based on the business strategy, risk appetite, the
analysis of the external and internal business context or environment and the performance model
criteria. The risk universe represents the range of all potential business risks as well as areas of
opportunities facing the organisation in achieving its business objectives and satisfying the needs of
key stakeholders. A variety of approaches are available for identifying risks as illustrated and explained
below (refer to Risk Management Standard 4: Risk Identification for more guidance):
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Process | inputs | Approaches Outputs
Risk |« Strategy and Data tracking e Risk
Identification business objectives Interviews universe
. Risk appetite and Facilitated workshops
tolerance (i.e. Questionnaires and
acceptable variation surveys
in performance) Process analysis
e Analysls of business ¢  Leading indicators
. context
. Performance model
criteria !
. Risk Management ‘
Standard 5: Risk
Identification ‘
s  Workshops

Bring together individuals from different functions and levels to draw on the Group’s collective knowledge and
develop a list of risks as they relate to the enfity's strategy or business objectives;

Interviews

Solicit the individual's knowledge of past and potential events. For canvassing large groups of people,
questionnaires or surveys may be used;

Process Analysis
Involves developing a diagram of the process to better understand the inter-relationships of its component

relevant business objectives;
Key Risk Indicators

Key Risk Indicators are qualitative or quantitative measures designed to identify changes to existing risks. Risk
indicators shall not be confused with performance measures, which are typicaily retrospective in nature:

Data Tracking

Data Tracking from past events shall help predict future occurrences. While historical data typically is used in
risk assessment—based on actual experience with severity—it shall also be used to understand
interdependencies and develop predictive and causal models. Databases developed and maintained by third
party service providers that collect information on incidents and losses incumed by indusiry or region may
inform the organisation of potential risks.

Risk identification typically shall occur as a workshop involving all relevant stakeholders and can be supported by
the other approaches. Comprehensive identification of risk Is critical to effective risk management as risks not
identified shall not be subjected to further analysis. Risks shall be recorded in a Risk Register in terms of:

A description of the risk;

The risk category;

The risk owner;

Its causes;

The nature and extent of consequences;
The existing controls;

The control owner(s};

Treatment strategy/plan; and
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Target date for regolution.

Precise wording in describing risk shall be applied to articulate the difference between an actual risk and other
considerations, those being:

Potential root causes that shall influence the severity of a risk;

Potential impacts of a risk being embedded in the description; and

-]
s Potential impacts of ineffective or failed risk responses and controls.

Accordingly, the Company shall apply standard sentence structure when describing risk during the Risk
Identification phase, for example:

The possibllity of [something happening - describe the potential event] and leading fo [describe specific business
objeclives set by the organisation] which is caused by [describe the risk source.]

Risks shall be described using a standard taxonomy as detailed in Risk Management Standard four (4): Risk
Identification (see Table 1: Risk Categories) which provide for standard definitions and categories for different risks.

Risk Analysis

Risk Analysis is preceded by the risk Identification process. This step involves developing an understanding of the
ldentified risk. The risk is analysed for proper understanding of the risk so that appropriate risk treatment plans can
be further developed. The risk event can have multiple consequences and affect multiple objectives.

The analysis in accordance with the Airports Company South Africa SOC Limited methodology considers:

Rigk Control Effectiveness considers the existing controls and assesses the controls’ effectiveness to
reduce the impact and/or likelihood of the risk occurring (e.g. Policies, procedures, process, structures
etc.) The table below outlines the current control effectiveness evaluation criteria

Score | Rating Description

Critical improvement | Controls and/or management activities are non-existent or
opportunity have major deficiencies and don't operate as intended

2 Significant improvement | Limited controls and/or management activities in place, high
opportunity lavel of risk remains

3 Moderate improvement | Key controls and/or management activities in place, with
opportunity moderate opportunities for improvement identified
Limited improevement | Controls and/or management activities properly designed
opportunity and operating, with opportunities for improvement identified
Effective Controls and/or management activities properly designed

and operating as intended

Consequence Rating Criteria: these assist with categorising the impacted area should the risk materialise
and to standardise the risk rating. The Company identified and described eight business areas that should

be considered when defining the impact, namely:

a) Financial loss
b)
c)
d)
e)

f)
g)

Service non-availability

Non-compliance

Occupational Health and Aviation Safety
Environment damage

Reputational Damage

Information Technology

10
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® The consequence criteria are defined with the determination of the risk appetite and tolerance guideline,
outlined in the Risk Appetite and Tolerance Framework document JO10 003. Refer to document J040 003

for detailed outline of the tolerance levels.

¢ Thelikelihood rating considers the potential factors of the risk identified and their likelihood of occurrence
In the next twelve months. This should then indicate the probabllity of the risk occurring. Table 3 outlines
company’s fikelihood rating methodology.

Table 3: Likelihood rating

Score Rating Percentagu
Expected > 85%
Highly likely 55 - 85%
Likely 25 - 54%
Slight 5-24%
Not likely <6%

Risk Evaluation

Risk Evaluation invoives prioritising the risk and the response based on a timeframe and organisational level
response to risks that have been subjected to risk analysis rigor as mapped on a ‘heat map' or risk matrix in
accordance with Table 3 Risk Matrix explained in Standard 6 Risk Analysis. Accordingly, the results of the risk
analysis shall be subjected to risk evaluation, to make decisions about whether further treatment is required, which
risks naed treatment and treatment priorities.

§
!

et !

° Signeigam

Unikeely Siighe Lixoly Highly  Likely Expectes
(<5 (8%-26%) (25%-54% ) ES%-85%) {+85%;)
. i

In ensuring alignment with the risk appetite and tolerance, the fbliowing Airports Company South Africa SOC
Limited Priority table should provide guidance on whether the risk is acceptable, tolerable or unacceptable as per
approved Risk Appetite and Tolerance framework Priority Table:

‘ Priority | Tolerance Recommended I Action description
Level levels action

— — - =

Unacceptable Improve Management should take immediate
control action to reduce residual risk exposures

environment | by improving controls (new and existing) |
|

11
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Risk

Treatment

i

. Acceptable Monitor Management should monitor the risk

Tolerable Cautiously Management should operate cautiously
operate and monitor controls to reduce risk
exposure to acceptable levels

exposure to remain within acceptable
levels

Risk treatment: The evaluation criteria provide direction on the risk treatment to be actioned by the
relevant risk owner. This will ordinarily include controls that should be put in place to reduce the risk
exposure to acceptable levels or take advantage of the identified opportunities where an opportunity
has been identified.

Characteristics of good risk treatment:

Eliminate or reduce either the likelihood and/or impact of the risk, that is the treatment plan
should be aimed at treating the root cause and/or have contingencies In place shouid the
risk materialise e.g. insurance;

Balance the costs and efforts of implementation against the benefits derived (Cost vs Benefit
Analysis);

Consider values and perceptions of stakeholders;

Consider the company’s risk appetite and tolerance;

The treatment action shouid be time-bound, to snsure accountability.

In instance where the risk treatments ongoing, ongoing reporting needs to take place and
risk exposure must be reviewad or assessed to measure effectiveness of such a risk

treatment plan; and e
The treatment options are not necessarily mutually exclusive,

Monitor and Review of the risk profile

The rigk profile monitoring process considers the progress made on treatment plgps and emerging trends due to
any extemal and/or intemmal factors. The process monitors the following factors:

Implementation of treatment plans;

Positive or negative trends;

Performance of controis;

Risk performance against appetite and tolerance levels (Priority level);

Consider any environmental trends e.g. changes in business environment may impact the risk or

negatively; and
o Identify emerging risk.

Both monitoring and review is a planned part of the risk management process and involve regular checking or
surveillance. It is done continuously as part of the management process; however, risk owners are required to
regularly provide update on the performance of the risk profile.

Monitering happens at every stage of the risk process. This will ensure that information provided aligns with

business initiatives.

12
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Risk Management Process Output: Risk Register

A risk register is a document used as risk management tool and to fulfil regulatory compliance acting as a
repository for all risks identified and includes additional information about each risk. The below table
demonstrates the link between the ERM process and the output, risk register

13, pig anzlyss 4, Eivk Evaluation 5, Ritk Treatment 6. Ktk Monfioeinz

2, Fisk dentfication

L i‘;'.gbﬁ:!: Contest

APPENDIX E1: THE GOVERNANCE OF RISK IN AIRPORTS COMPANY SOUTH AFRICA

The Business Risk Governance Structure

The Board of Directors is accountable for risk management within the business entity. The Board utilises the Board
Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) to provide assurance that an effective and measurable risk management process
is in place. The Group Executive: Governance and Assurance has functional accountabllity within the Company for
Risk Management and is also represented on the Board Audit and Risk Committee as an official.

The Group Executive: Govenance and Assurance is the Board Audit and Risk Committee co-coordinator. In
consultation with the Chaimnan of the Board Audit and Risk Committee a yearly plan is produced which allows
presenting of deliverables, approvals and issues that the committee shall attend to during the year, noting that ad-
hoc issues shall arise.

Each Group Executive of a Business Unit is accountable for his/ her own risk management process and plan
execution, Each Business Unit manager/functional manager is also accountable for their own business area or
function, thus responsibility flows right throughout the organisation.

Froma stakeholder management perspective, stakeholders are categorised into extemal and internal stakeholders.
Stakeholder identification and communication are essential to maintain positive on-going relationships between the
BUs; Special Projects, the Group Risk Management teams and all their stakeholders, and to inform stakeholders
of issues that shall arise during the year, as well as the implementation progress.

it is important to note that there are other technical structures in place that deal with speciglised araas of risks such
as environmental management, safety management, financial management, insurance etc. as per statutory
requirements and other best practice standards indicated in the Enterprise Risk Management Department
Enterprise Risk Management Policy — J010 001P. This Framework supports the implementation of these processes
as desmed appropriate for the risk profile of the organisation.

13
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4.6

Risk Governance Structure

Accountability and Responsibility- RACI

The following is a high-level of accountabilities and responsibilities for role payers within the risk management
process. The table below gives a detailed breakdown on the roles and responsibillties with regards to Risk
Management execution responsibilities. The RACI is defined as follows: R= Responsible, A= Accountable, C=
Consulted and 1 = Informed.

E
2
2 o -
2 w o ®
& B E | & E | % £
DUTIES % E 582 ] 'E_ o | & 2 g
o e 2 2 [ o 2
¢c8g |ESE P |2 sl2 [Eg]|5
d8c|=28E8 |2 [E|5 |32 |5
o EES -] = 2 % | = E
322 |2¢c § = & w EE|E
e 2 & = © o @2 2 = g S Q 3
- CEol o = = 5] ﬂ
| A R C C I | l
| A R ¢ |c |1 |t |1
| A R c |c |1 |1 I
1A R c R 1 ! 1
| c c R A |l i |
€
g A R C R R |t | |
t :
©
a
]
(=1
o
&
m
5 1A R c {c |1 |y i !
i
a
g AT BT T g T
§ | e
Ensuring that the Risk Management
framework, methodology, definitions and
§ Risk Management Information System | ¢ ¢ R AlC ! !
£ . | (CURA), for Risk and Compliance
2 £ | Management are implemented and o 1
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DUTIES

p Manager: Risk

Management
oard Audit and Risk

Risk Management Forum
Board of Directors

fune Management

Group Executive:
Govamance and
Assurance

Grou

Department
JBU Risk champlons
IBU Executives

B

ommittee

|

operating fully within the Business units.

Compite BU Risk Management Plan for
Implementation of the Risk and | C c R A |C | i
Compliance methodology

Coordinate, in conjunction with the Risk
Management department, the specific
training for line management on the Risk | 1 C C R A |l i i
Management methodology, tools and
CURA

Continuous Communication on Project
progress and advancements throughout | | C c R A |l | i
the BU

Monitoring and reporting on progress of
the Business unit implsmentation of the
new Risk Management methodology to

the BU Govemance structures, I ¢ ¢ . AlC ! t
Management committees and the Risk

Management Department.

Establish Risk Culture within the BU
through Change management initiatives

Govemance reporting to the Risk
Management Depariment ! ¢ ¢ R Alc ' |

Ensure ad-hoc Risk Management
initiatives are performed when requested | | C Cc R A |C I 1

by senior management

Implement CURA within the BU. 1 | A ¢c |R |clc i 1

Attend the Group Risk meetings I 1 l R C |1 | 1

Facilitates Risk Workshops in line the
Risk methodology ! ¢ ¢ R A|C ! 1

Enable an effective Risk Management
capabillity through the provision of

appropriate resources, aligned to the I ¢ : ¢ A IR ! !
Group Risk Strategy

Group Executive

Level

Risk owners shall report to EXCO, Board | | c ¢ |lc [a|r |1 l
and BU Forums on their allocated risks
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT PRINCIPLES

For Risk management to be successful it is important to have a set of Risk Management principles, which forms
the basis for risk management implementation as well as performance and maturity reporting throughout the
Organisation.

Airports Company South Africa SOC Limited adopts the following risk management principles which are
standards pertaining to ISO 31000:
Risk Management Creates and Protects Value

Risk management contributes to the demonstrable achievement of objectives and improvement of performance
in, for example, human health and safety, security, legal and regulatory compliance, public acceptance,
environmental protection, product quality, project management, efficiency in operations, business continuity,
govemance and reputation.

Risk Management is an Integral Part of all Organisational Processes

Risk management is not a stand-alone activity that is separate from the main activities and processes of the
Organisation. Risk Management is part of the responsibilities of management and an integral part of all
organisational processes, including strategic planning and all project and change management processes.
Risk Management is Part of Decision-Making

Risk management helps decision makers make informed choices, prioritise actions and distinguish among
alternative courses of action.

Risk Management Explicitly Addresses Uncertainty

Risk management explicitly takes account of uncertainty, the nature of that uncertainty, and how it can be
addressed.

Risk Management is Systematic, Structured and Timely

A systematic, timely and structured approach to risk management contributes to efficiency and to consistent,
comparable and reliable resulis.

Risk Management is Based on the best Available information

The inputs to the process of managing risk are based on information sources such as historical data,
experience, stakeholder feedback, observation, forecasts and expert judgment. However, decision makers
should inform themselves of, and should consider, any limitations of the data or modelling used or the possibility
of divergence among experts.

Risk Management is Tailored

+  One Risk Management policy statement expressing a clear mandate ensuring line management
accountability for risk management;

¢ A common approach to risk analysis and risk prioritisation;
¢ A common language for risk management;

* The use of one risk management information system with appropriate functionality to support and drive
consistency; and

»  Organisation-wide requirements to gather and report risk information for governance purposes.

-An active means to share good risk management practice and learning’s Risk management takes human and
cultural factors into account.

Risk management recognises the capabilities, perceptions and intentions of external and internal people that
shall facilitate or hinder achievement of the organisation's objectives.

19
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Risk Management is Transparent and Inclusive

Appropriate and timely involvement of stakeholders and decision-makers at all levels of the organisation,
ensures that risk management remains relevant and up to dete. Involvement also allows stakeholders to be

properly represented and to have their views taken into account.

Risk Management is Dynamic, lterative and Responsive to Change

Risk management continually senses and responds to change. As extemal and intemal events occur, context
and knowledge change, monitoring and review of risks take place, new risks emerge, some change, and others

disappear.

Risk Management Facilitates Continual iImprovement of the Organisation
The Company shall develop and implement strategies to improve their risk management maturity alongside all
other aspects of their organisation.

Business Units, Airports and any Special Projects shall be accountable for the impiementation of the risk
management policy & procedures and are required to create and maintain risk management plans to ensure

compliance. -

PROCESS MONITORING

Audits to ensure the effectiveness of enterprise risk management shall be initiated by the Executive Committes,
Group Executive: Governance and Assurance, the Board Audit and Risk Committee, Business Unit Risk
Committees, or the Group Manager: Risk Management. This shall be in addition to the annual audits scheduled

by Group Intemal Audit.

20

Confidential



ANNEXURE F — COST CONTAINMENT PLAN

1. INTRODUCTION

National Treasury instruction No. 02 of 2016/2017 requires the development of a cost containment
pian on an annual basis, which must form part of the public entity’s strategic and / or annual
performance planning exercise. The cost containment plan must set out specific measures to be taken
to improve cost-efficiencies, the effectiveness of supply chain management processes and
procedures, the elimination of wasteful expenditure and to ensure that value for money is achieved in
the delivery of programmes and services. The cost containment measures must be appropriately
prioritised per division and such measures must be effectively monitored and reported on monthly and
in the annual report.

2. COST CONTAINMENT IN AIRPORTS COMPANY SOUTH AFRICA

Airports Company South Africa continues to identify cost reduction measures to lead to cost
effectiveness and efficiency. As a result, the company introduced measures over and above those
proposed by National Treasury in its National Treasury Instruction 01 of 2013 to improve profitability
and self-sufficiency, while leading to increased tax revenues and dividends for National Treasury.

The cost containment measures are contained in the annual cost containment plan.

3. ANNUAL COST CONTAINMENT PLAN: 2022723

Cost containment measure Cost item impacted Division Due date

1. Motivations for consulting _
fees Consulting fees Company Implemented

Motivation in the form of business
cases indicating alignment to
strategic objectives and approval

| Telephone, cellular phone
and data facilities
Advertising expenses
Hiring of venues
Conferences and events

. Travel and subsistence

| 3. Video conferencing !
technology introduction Travel and accommodation | Company Implemented

Implementation of technologies in
meeting rooms to facilitate video
conferencing. [

by the CEO and CFO.

2. Cost containment awareness | Consulting fees ]
Catering expenses Company Implemented

Nationai Treasury instruction No. Entertainment expenses

03 of 2017/18 compliance through | Alcohol expenses

budget guidelines and financial Social functions

controls. Corporate branded items
Newspapers and other
publications

4. Energy efficiency
programme {consumption Electricity All airports Iimplemented
reduction) -
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Cost containment measure | Cost item impacted Division Due date

Switching off geysers during ) o

certain time periods when hot

water is not required ,

Reducing the operating times of air

conditioning units in terminal

buildings

Replacement of luminaire with LED

technology

Implementation of motion sensors

on escalators

Implementation of occupancy

sensors in buildings

Standardisation and specifications

for future buildings in line with best

practice in energy efficiency

5. Solar plants at airports

Redundancy of supply and Electricity Company George -

reducing reliance on the grid Implemented
Upington-
Implemented
Kimberiey-
Implemented
Bram Fischer -
Implemented
East London -
Implemented
Port Elizabeth-
Implemented

6. Revlew of security costs

Complete understanding of all Security costs Enterprise March 2023

security cost elements and related security and

drivers airport

Benchmarking scope and market management

rates per service on a per airport

basis

Introducing centre of excellence

led standardisation and efficiency

programme
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ANNEXURE G - BORROWING PLAN

1. INTRODUCTION

As per the provision of the Section 66 of the PFMA, the company is required to develop a three-year
Borrowing Plan on annual basis, predicated on the operational requirements, capital expenditure, debt
service costs and ftraffic growth forecast. The ongoing Covid-19 pandemic continues to have a
negative impact on the business operations and threatens long-term financial sustainability of the
company. The recent discovery of the Omicron variant saw the majority of South Africa’s key travel
markets restating travel bans against the country. These developments confirm the heighten level on
uncertainty that the aviation sector continues to operate under, which necessitate the Airports
Company South Africa to be more proactive rather than reactive in implementing its Borrowing Plan.

During the financial ended March 2021, Airports Company South Africa disposed its shareholding in
MIAL for R1.3 billion, issued R2.3 billion worth of preference shares to government and borrowed
R810 million from the DBSA. The proceeds from the MIAL disposal, preference share issuance and
DBSA Loan have enabied the company to meet its financial obligations, even under difficult trading
conditions experienced during the 2021/22 financial year.

The borrowing activities of the company will continue to be affected largely by the following factors:

Credit rating of the company;

Liquidity (marketability) of its listed securities;
Investor perceptions of the company;

¢« Economic conditions.

L

The Borrowing Plan is required in terms of the Public Finance Management Act and the Treasury
regulations (29.1.3). Moreover, the company is required to submit a quarterly report reflecting updates
on the borrowing activities.

In terms of Treasury Regulation 29.1.6, the Borrowing Plan should include:

¢ Terms and conditions on which maney is borrowed;

¢ Proposed domestic borrowing;

« Short, medium and long-term borrowing;

« Borrowing in relation fo a pre-approved corporate plan;

¢ Maturity profile of debt;

¢ Confirmation of compliance with existing and proposed loan covenants;
¢ Debts guaranteed by government;

« Motivations for government guarantees;

* Executive Authority's approval of borrowing programme.

The purpose of this document is to outline a Borrowing Plan necessary to fund the company's capital
and operational requirements for the three-year period ended 31 March 2025 in line with the
requirements of the Public Finance Management Act and the Treasury Regulations.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS ON WHICH MONEY IS BORROWED

The company's Borrowing Plan has been prepared in line with principles outlined in the Board
Approved Treasury Risk Management Policy Framework. The company’'s funding activities are
undertaken using a combination of authorised funding instruments listed in the Borrowing Policy.

The Policy Framework ensures prudent management of the company's financial risk exposure,
funding, cash and investment activities whilst ensuring that the company has a stable and healthy
balance sheet. This is achieved by maintaining appropriate gearing levels in line with Board approved
Borrowing Policy and by ensuring that an optimal capital structure is maintained.

Canfidamiial



The main objective of the Borrowing Plan is fo ensure the company’s strategic imperatives are funded
in prudent manner by achieving lowest funding cost possible and favourable terms and conditions.

2. CURRENT ECONOMIC CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Global Economic Overview and Outlook

The Covid-19 pandemic has caused unprecedented global economic contraction and reversed the
gains made over the years with millions of people around the globe losing their livelihoods.

Currently, the global economy is expected to increase at a 5.6 percent annual rate in 2021 according
to the World Bank, the fastest pace in 80 years following a recession, despite the resurgence of the
pandemic. Renewed outbreaks of the virus are prompting some countries to restrict their activity,
creating bottlenecks and straining supply lines.

Global economic growth continues to be robust, aided by government and central bank support and
advancements in vaccines. However, while global GDP is moving towards its pre-pandemic level, the
recovery continues to be unequal, with countries emerging from the crisis confronting a variety of
obstacles. COVID-19's fault lines appear to be more persistent—near-term divergences are predicted
to have a lasting effect on medium-term performance. The gaps are primarily caused by vaccine
access and early policy support. Recoveries in emerging market and developing economies will
continue to fag those in advanced economies.

According fo the International Monetary Fund (IMF), the global economic growth is anticipated to
record 5.9 percent growth in 2021 (0.1 percent lower than in prior forecasts), more optimistic than the
World Bank, and 4.9 percent in 2022, The lower revision for 2021 involves a downgrade for advanced
economies — owing in part to supply disruptions — and for low-income developing countries, owing
mostly to deteriorating pandemic dynamics. Demand has increased as restrictions have been
removed, but supply has been slower to adapt. Although pricing pressures in the majority of countries
are likely to ease in 2022, inflation forecasts are quite uncertain. These increases in Inflation are
occurring while employment remains below pre-pandemic levels in many economies, putting
policymakers in a difficult position.

For low-income countries, this is largely countered by the more optimistic outlook for some commodity-
exporting emerging market and developing nations in the short term.

The rapid spread of Delta and the potential of new variations, which has realised in the form of the
Omicron-variant, have heightened concerns about the pandemic's viability. Policy choices have
become increasingly difficult due to a lack of manoeuvrability.

Economic expectations are as follow:

e Giobal economy expected to record am at least 5.6 percent growth in 2021 and 4.9 percent in
2022,

o US - IMF projects a 6.0 percent growth rate in 2021, followed by an expansion of 5.2 percent in
2022,

e Eurozone — is projected to rebound in 2021 expanding by 5.0 percent increasing at a decreasing
rate by 4.3 percent in 2022,

s China — is expected to grow by 8.0 percent in 2021 which is lower than anticipated due to down-
scaling of public investment, and 5.6 percent in 2022.

The African and South African Economic Overview and Outlook

COVID-19 effects could reverse hard-won gains in poverty reduction in Africa over the past two
decades. In 2020, economic activity in Africa was stifled by a global epidemic triggered by COVID-
19. Africa's real GDP is expected to expand by 3.4 percent in 2021, following a contraction of 2.1
percent in 2020. The region's three major economies—Angola, Nigeria, and South Africa—have
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mostly recovered from a 4.2 percent decline in 2020. This anticipated recovery from the worst
recession in more than half a century will be bolstered by the resumption of tourists, a rise in
commodity prices, and the removal of pandemic-induced restrictions. Some relief was provided in
terms of fiscal stimulus packages. Fiscal stimulus programs range from around 32 per cent in Mauritius
to 10 per cent in South Africa to less than 1 per cent in Tanzania,

However, global economic conditions are no longer as favourable to emerging and developing
economies as they were earlier this year. Further, the outlook is fraught with uncertainty due to both
global and local challenges. The risks to the outiook are skewed to the downside and include persistent
procurement and logisticai barriers to vaccination, further increases in food prices that could
exacerbate food insecurity, rising internal tensions and conflicts, and more severe long-term damage
from the pandemic than anticipated.

The economic impact of the pandemic differs by country. Taurism-dependent economies are expected
to rebound from an 11.5 per cent decline in 2020 to grow 6.2 per cent in 2021, oil-exporting economies
are expected to recover from a 1.5 per cent decline to grow 3.1 per cent; other resource-intensive
economies are expected to recover from a 4.7 per cent decline to grow 3.1 per cent; and non-resource-
intensive economies are expected to recover from a 0.9 per cent decline to grow 4.1 per cent.

Southern Africa was the hardest devastated region by the pandemic, with an economic drop of 7.0
per cent projected for 2020. it is expected to rise at a 3.2 per cent annual rate in 2021 and a 2.4 per
cent annual rate in 2022.

Figure 1: GDP contractions in Africa
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South Africa’s growth is predicted to reach 5.2 per cent in 2021, aided by a gradual relaxation of
COVID-18 limitations and higher metal prices according to the South African Reserve Bank (SARB).
The annual growth rate of GDP in 2021 indicates a solid recovery from the pandemic's economic
effects. While expansionary monetary and fiscal policies have boosted activity, GDP will remain much
lower than it was in 2019 through 2022. Economic growth is predicted to slow to a crawl during the
next two years, in line with the low pace of potential growth. GDP growth is anticipated to reach 1.7
per cent in 2022 and 1.8 per cent in 2023. GDP growth is expected to be 2.0 per cent in 2024.
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Increased fiscal pressures and slow growth in public investment continue to cast doubt on South
Africa’s near-term growth prospects. Significant structural barriers to potential growth persist, notably
labour market rigidities, as seen by persistently high levels of unemployment.

3. DEBT MANAGEMENT REVIEW -

Airports Company South Africa’s debt level increased notably leading up to the 2010 Soccer World
Cup spectacle driven by mega infrastructure programme that the company embarked on. in 2012/13
financial year, the company adopted an Early Debt Redemption Strategy which underpinned the

deleveraging process.

Since the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the company has repaid over R10 billion worth of debt
largely as part of Early Debt Redemption Strategy. This massive reduction in the debt level reflects
the company’s prudent approach to debt management. Moreover, the deleveraging process reduced
the company’s debt service costs and placed Airports Company South Africa in a much stronger
footing to absorb new debt funding in response to the Covid-19 pandemic.

Figure 2: Airports Company South Africa Debt Evolution
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Over the three-year plan, the company will repay R3.3 billion worth of debt comprising of the following
debt instruments:

AIR02 fixed-rate bond - R1.7 billion

AIR04 fixed rate bond - R544 million

AFD1 loan - R164 million

AFD2 loan - R585 million

INCA loan - R34 million

DBSA loan (amortizing loan) - R283 million

The company's debt-level is expected to decrease by R1.2 billion to R8 billion by the end of March
2028, attributable to debt repayments, including redemption of R1.7 billion of AIR02 fixed-rate bond in

April 2023.
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4. CREDIT RATING REVIEW

Foliowing a rating downgrade on 26 June 2020, Moody's affirmed the company’s giobal scale rating
at Ba2 on 24 November 2020. The affirmation of ACSA’s rating reflects a one-notch uplift to the
baseline credit assessment of Ba3 due to Moody’s assumption of strong support from government.
The national scale rating was upgraded to Aa2.za from Aa3.za in line with the revised mapping for the
South African national rating scale.

The negative rating outlook was left unchanged reflecting the impact of Covid-19 on the company and

the negative outiook on government rating. According to Moody’s, a rating upgrade is unlikely in the

near term given the negative outlook. However, the credit rating outlook could be changed to stable

if:

o Traffic recovery looked more certain;

» It appeared likely the Company would be able to materially improve its financial profile over the
medium term;

¢ Company's liquidity is solid;

o The outlook on the sovereign rating was changed to stable.

Nonetheless, Moody's could downgrade the company’s ratings if:

¢ There is a delay in passenger traffic recovery, including airlines ceasing operations;
« |t appeared likely the company's capital structure could be challenged;

» There were concerns about liquidity;

o The sovereign rating is downgraded.

Table 1: Airports Company South Africa’s credit ratings

Credit Rating Long-term Global Cutlook
rating Action national scale ‘scale

agen Cy )
24 November Affirmed za* B Negative
2020 |
Footnote®: National scale rating upgraded from Aa3.za

On 06 December 2021, Moody's announced its completion of the periodic review of Airports company
South Africa ratings. However, this announcement does not constitute a credit rating action or
indication of whether a rating action will be taken in the near future. The credit metrics of the Airports
Company South Africa are expected to improve over the forecast period which will is credit positive
for outlook of the company’s ratings. However, the risk of downgrade of the company'’s rating remams
given the negatlve ‘outlook and uncertain trajsctory of traffic recovery.

5. CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The company minimises the weighted average cost of capital (WACC) by setting a target of gearing
ratio (net/capitalisation) not to exceed 60 per cent. It should be noted this target can only be breached
under exceptional circumstances with the approval of the Board and after obtaining a waiver from
lenders who use gearing ratio as part of their financial covenants.

The net/capitalisation ratio is expecied to decrease over the forecast period and remain below the
target of target of 60 per cent as shown in Table 2 beiow.
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Table 2: Estimated Gearing Ratio

2022/23 2023/24 2024125

Net Debt/Capitalization 28% 27% 24%

6. FUNDING REQUIREMENTS

The company’s ability fo meet all its financial obligations from internal generated funds continue to be
affected negatively by sporadic domestic and global travel restrictions imposed to curb the spread of
the Covid-19 virus. The recent discovery of the Omicron variant saw the majority of the South African’s
key travel markets restating travel bans against the country. These developments serve as reminder
the aviation industry continues to operate under highly uncertain environment.

To mitigate the liquidity risks that might arise from continuous business disruptions caused by the
Covid-19 induced travel bans, the company maintained its shori-term committed facilities with banks.
Airports Company South Africa renewed Its short-term banking facilities amounting to R1.8 billion for

a period of 12 months ending 31 August 2022.

The proceeds from preference shares issuance (R2.3 billion), MIAL disposal (R1.2 billon) and DBSA
loan (RB10 million) enabled the company to meet its financial obligations even under difficult trading

conditions experienced during the 2021/22 financial year.

The company is still awaiting approval from the Public Investment Corporation (PIC) relating to the
preference shares issuance. It should be noted that the company started engaging with PIC on the
possibility of issuing preference shares as part of the shareholder support mechanism at the same
time when government was approached on the similar transaction. However, the process has taken
longer than initially anticipated given the PIC's internally governance processes requirements. The
main hurdle was the completion of the due-diligence process which was not cited as a requirement

during the initial engagements.

On 27 May 2021, the company held a due-diligence session with PIC which was subsequently
completed and submitted to the Management Committee together with the funding request. in October
2021, the Management Commitiee approved'the due-diligence report together with the funding
request and recommended the submission to the Investment Committee. It is important to note that
the Investment Committee’s approval will be subjected to the approval of the shareholder
(GEPF). The Investment Comimittee is expected to consider Airports Company South Africa’s funding
request in February 2022. Therefore, the company intends to conclude the transaction with the PIC

before the end of the 2021/22 financial year.

In the domestic capital market, public auctions remain dominated by private sector issuers with State-
owned Companies rising funding predominately through private placements. Only few State-owned
Companies managed to raise funding through public auctions over the past twelve months, the recent
issuers to conduct public auctions were the DBSA and Rand Water. The company will continue to
assess the market conditions in the domestic debt capital market with the intension of refinancing the
AIRO02 fixed rated bond either through a switch auction and/or outright issuance of new/existing bonds.

The company will also engage proactively with other funders i.e., Development Finance Institutions
and Banks to ensure that the company has a diverse funding source to meet its funding requirements.
This will enable the company to rise funding in a cost-effective manner and achieve favourable terms.
The three-year Borrowing Plan of the company is based on the financial assumptions outlined in the

Corporate Plan.
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Table 4: Gross Funding Requirements

AR O 0 U q 024

Cash Carried Forward 960 718 439
EBITDA 1517 2002 2 300
Capital Expenditure o -881 - 995 -1000
Loan Redemptions -296 -2139 -887
Net Interest Payout -558 -491 -372
GRU Disposal* 37 37 37
WC Changes -62 352 411
PIC Preference Shares o 0 0 0
Subscription B

Tax Payout/Refund 0 -45 -124
Cumulative Gross Funding 718 - .561 805
Requirement

surplus/(shortage)

New Gross Funding 0 1000 0
Cash Position afier Gross 718 439 805
Funding

Footnote: assuming exchange rate of R$2.8 against the Rand
The funding requirement is based on the following key assumptions over a three-year period:

s Capital Expenditure Programme amounting to R2.9 billion (excluding capitalised interest)

o Debt redemptions totalling R3.3 billion (including R1.7 billion of the AIR02 fixed rate bond)

o Potential proceeds from PIC preference shares issuance excluded from the Borrowing Plan
(pending the approval).

Figure 3: Planned three-year Capital Expenditure Programme (R million)
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The company is expected to meet its fﬁnding requirements over the three-year plan from internally
generated funds and new debt funding amounting to R1 billion. It is worth noting that no new debt
funding will be required over the three-year plan if the entity successfully issue preference shares to
the PIC.
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Figure 4: Funding requirements: 2023E-2025E (R million)
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In the first two years of the Corporate Plan, the company will meet its financlal obligations from both
infernally generated funds and available cash on hand. However, in the last year of the Corporate
Plan, ACSA will require R1 billion in new debt funding.

Figure 5: Funding requirement per financial year: 2023E-2025E

3500

3000

2500

2000

1500

1000

500

0 =
2022/23 2023724 2024/25

#:Cash from operations  » Debt

The following funding options will be considered over the three-year Borrowing Plan, and utilisation of
each funding sources will depend highly on the market conditions and accessibility:

Tap existing and new bonds (including private placement) and borrowing facilities;

Issue a new ACSA benchmark bond(s) depending on investor demand and pricing;

Issue commercial paper to cater for interim funding shori-falls;

Maintain adequate level of bank credit facilities both from local and international banks:

Loans from both local and international financial institutions particularly commercial banks and
Development Finance Institutions;

Export Credit Agencies (ECAs).

10
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The company borrows its funds both in the domestic and foreign markets comprising of both short and
long-term maturity brackets. It should be noted that the Borrowing Plan does not make provision for
foreign debt funding. The proposed borrowings for the forecasted period based on the expected
funding requirements, are shown in table 5 and 6.

Table 5: Gross Borrowings Consideration Values (ZAR million)
DOMESTIC PORTION

FOREIGN PORTION

TOTAL Accrued
OPENING 2 Prefs
GROSS New Debt g’:epayme réf:;zn share ge:t :?epaymen
DEBT dividen ~°
ds
23
2023/ 8593 1000 | -1 125 233 0 277
24 861
2024/ 8002 | O -692 252 0 -
25 - 133 - ] 195 |
TOTA 1 000 -2 572 377 700 0 -
L 749

Table 6: Net Borrowings (ZAR million)
TOTAL NET

BORROWING

DOMESTIC PORTION

: Short-term Long-term

FOREIGN PORTION
Srlrt-term Long-term

7. GOVERNMENT GUARANTEE

The company intends to rise funding on the strength of its balance sheet without soliciting a
guarantee from any its shareholders including government. However, the company may
approach any of its shareholders for support which includes guarantee shouid the operating
environment deteriorate materially given the ongoing the Covid-18 pandemic, or should lenders
demand a guarantee as part of the conditions precedent.

8. DEBT MANAGEMENT

Liquidity Management

The company will endeavour to rise funding in the domestic debt capital given favourable terms and
conditions relative to other sources i.e. banks and DF| loans. In addition, the debt capital market allows
the company to reach diverse mix of investors and achieve longer tenor. In 2019/20 financial year, the

2022/23 -296

2023/24 ‘ T 1139 0 -861 0 277
2023/24 -887 0 -692 0 195 J
TOTAL -2 322 0 - 5_72 | B 0 749 ‘
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AGCSA updated its R30 billion Domestic Medium-Term Programme (DMTN) registered with the JSE
with the sole intention of aligning it with the new JSE Debt listing Requirements.

The company still has adequate room to issue additional funding under the DMTN programme with
the unutilised facility amounting of R25 billion.

Although the conditions have improved somewhat over the past two years, the primary debt issuance
in the debt capital remain dominated by private sector issuers while State-owned Companies continue
to rise funding largely through private placements. The bulk of the bond issuance was concentrated
in the 3 to 5-year maturities. Airports Company South Africa will continue to assess the market
conditions in the domestic debt capital market with the intension of refinancing the AIRD2 fixed rated

bond maturing in April 2023.

On the 4 June 2021, the company received a letter from DBSA expressing interest to further
participate in the funding of Airports Company South Africa’s Capex programme amounting to
about R1 billion subject to the following conditions:

¢ Funding to be limited only to capex projects that deemed critical and intended amongst others,
meet regulatory and safety standards, and ensure operational efficiently;

¢ Confirmation of improvement in, amongst others, in passenger traffic volume and operations;

¢« DBSA conducting detailed legal, financial, technical, socio-economic, institutional, legal, and
environmental due diligence.

Airports Company South Africa will only consider the DBSA loan offer should the domestic debt capital
market prove challenging or the refinancing of the AIR02 fixed rate bond fails to materialise.

To alleviate unforeseen short-term liquidity pressures the company will make use of its committed
banking facilities while rolling auctions in commercial paper may be used to mitigate refinancing risk
emanating from utilisation of these facilities. The company will also continue to engage proactively
with other funders i.e., Development Finance Institutions Banks to ensure that the company has
diverse funding sources to meet its funding requirements.

Table 7: Borrowing facilities

Borrowing Facilities Facility Amount Utitised Available

| DMTN R30 billion RS billion R25 billion

Interest Rate Risk

The company manages its interest rate risk by setting thresholds for both fixed rate and floating rate
'debt. The fixed rate portion of debt is set not to be less 50 per cent while the floating interest rate
portion is set not to exceed 50 per cent. The current fixed rate portion after swaps of 100 per cent
(excluding inflation linked debt) of total debt portfolio is in line with the policy guidelines. The current
interest rate composition of the debt portfolio will change if the company successfully issues
preference shares to the PIC given the floating rate that shares will attract as stipulated in the approved

subscription agresment.

12
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Figure 6: Interest rate composition of the debt portfolio
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Debt Refinancing

The company endeavours to maintain a smooth maturity profile to ensure seamless debt redemptions.
The debt redemption profile is well spread with large maturity redemptions expected in 2023/24,
2028/29 and 2030/31 financial years. In April 2023, the company is expected to repay R1.7 billion of
AIR02 fixed rate bond. In the financial year ending March 2029, the company is projected to repay
R2.9 billion of the AIRLO1 inflation bond. The debt repayment for the 2030/31 financial year is currently
estimated at R2.7 billion comprised largely of preference shares including accrued dividends. The
company will continue to assess the market conditions in the domestic debt capital market with the
intension of refinancing the AIR02 fixed rated bond maturing in April 2023.

Investment Plan

Over the three-year forecast period, surplus cash will be invested in line with Board approved
Investment Policy to achieve the following objectives:

¢ Capital Preservation;
« Liquidity to meet debt maturing obligations, capital and operational expenses;
« Enhance risk-adjusted returns and grow interest income.

Available cash is invested in various financial instruments to achieve investment portfolio
diversification. Moreover, surplus cash is invested in line with thresholds set out in the Board Approved
Investment Policy to ensure returns optimisation within acceptable risk limits such as:

« Weighted average duration of 180 days;

« Limits in respect of fixed deposits and liquid tradable assets;
Counterparty limits;

Credit rating limits;

Asset allocation.

® @ @

The company will continue to invest available cash over the three-year plan in the following approved
financial products:

e Term investments,;

¢ Income funds;

s Money market funds;

¢ Call deposits;

¢ Debt capital markets instruments such as bonds;

13
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s Government backed Investments such as the T-Bills;
o Commercial Paper.

In line with the investment Policy, the company Surplus cash can be invested 100% in money markets
with a minimum of seventy percent (70%) and maximum of thirty percent (30%) in capital markets.
These limits exclude the Debt Redemption Plan as a separate Asset Allocation limit is assigned to the

plan as per the policy.

Debt Redemption Strategy

Over the years the company has implemented various Debt Redemption Strategies to ensure
seamless debt redemptions such as switch auctions, buybacks and fingfencing of funds for debt

repayments.

Given the challenging business conditions, the company liquidated the AIRL01 Hedge Strategy which
was intended to partially cover the redemption of AIRLO1 Inflation linked bond. An alternative
redemption strategy for the AIRLO1 inflation linked bond will be revisited once the company is in a

much better financial position.

Nonetheless, the Immediate risk that needs urgent attention is the refinancing of the AIR02 fixed rate
bond maturing on 31 April 2023. Unfortunately, the company has been unable to set cash aside over
the past two years for the redemption of the AIR02 bond due the Covid-19 induced liquidity pressures.
Consequently, the AIR02 fixed rate bond presents a material refinancing risk and will potentially affect
the liquidity test that is performed as part of the going concern assessment. The following refi inancing
options will be considered during the first half of the 2022/23 financial year.

o Switch auction of the AIR0Z2 fixed rate

A switch auction is an excellent way of lengthening the maturity of profile of debt portfolio by
switching a bond that is close to maturity date into a longer-dated debt instrument. In 2014,
the company successfully executed a similar switch auction strategy to refinance the AIR03
fixed rate bond. The switch auction of the AIR03 fixed rate bond was a resounding success
supported predominately by asset managers. The participation by commercial banks was
muted given that they tend to hold debt instruments that are close to maturity date for liquidity

purposes.

The noteholders of the AIR02 fixed rate bond are shown in Figure 7 below (as at 31 December
2021). Although a sizeable portion of the AIR02 bond is in the hands of banks, the bulk of the

holding is held in nominee accounts on behalf of clients such asset managers. Therefore, the -
investor appetite to participate in the switch auction can only be gauged once noteholders are -

engaged.
Figure 7: Top noteholders of the AIR02 fixed rate bond

Standard chartered bank | ' 5 17%
Nedcor CIB treasury ° . 159!
Old Mutual Life _]_. 14%
Sbsa Financial Markets , 1%
GEPF 9%

Absa bank itd 6%

0% 2% 4% 6% 8% 10% 12% 14% 16%  18%
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e Blended switch auction and new issuance auction

This strategy involves combining a switch auction with outright issuance of a new bond,
opening the auction to both existing noteholders of the AIR02 bond and other potential
investors. The existing noteholders of the AIR02 will have an option to switch into a new bond
while new investors can participate in the outright auction of the new bond. The proceeds from
the outright auction of the new bond will then be used to repay the remaining balance (after
switch) of AIR02 fixed rate bond.

It is important to note that the allocation of bids received for both the switch and outright
auctions will done on a competitive basis. By opening the auction to both the noteholders of
the AIRO2 and other interested investors will increase the chance of success. Nonetheless,
the market conditions will be the determining factor from both the pricing and tenor point of
view. To entice investors to participate in the auction, the company will also consider issuing
Sustainable Finance Products that incorporate Environmental Social and Governance (ESG)
criteria.

e Use proceeds from to DBSA loan to partially repay the bond

The company received a letter from the DBSA expressing interest to further participate in the
funding of Airports Company South Africa’s Capex programme amounting to about R1 billion.
it worth noting that the DBSA loan cannot be used for general corporate purposes but to fund
Capex programme.

Subsequently, the proceeds from the loan can be used to cover capex which will then release
funds earmarked for Capex expenditure to repay the AIRO02 fixed rate bond. However, the
proceeds will not be adequate to repay the entire R1.7 billion outstanding on the AIR02 fixed
bond since the loan will only be limited fo Capex programme of R1 billion. Therefore, the
DBSA loan could be used together with other refinancing strategies outlined above. The
advantage of making use of the DBSA loan is the longer tenor and competitive pricing that
could potential be achieved. In February 2021, the company concluded a 7-year loan
agreement with DBSA at competitive rate of 8.2 per cent.

Debt Maturity Profile

The company strives to maintain a smooth maturity profile to ensure seamless debt redemptions. The
debt redemption profile is fairly spread across maturities with large redemptions only expected in the
2023/24, 2028/29 and 2030/31 financial years. In April 2023, the company is expected to repay R1.7
billion of AIR02 fixed rate bond. In the financial year ending March 2028, the company is projected to
repay R2.9 billion of the AIRLO1 inflation bond.

The debt repayment in 2030/31 financial year is currently estimated at R2.7 billion comprised largely
of preference shares including accrued dividends. The ARIO2 fixed rate bond presents a material
refinancing risk given the ongoing financial impact of the covid-19 pandemic on the company.

The company strives to ensure that new debt funding does not coincide with existing debt maturities
in order to maintain a smooth debt maturity. The proposed maturities for new debt funding are shown
in Figure 8 below. It should be noted that debt funding in the shorter maturities will only be considered
if there is a lack of demand for longer dated maturities.
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Figure 8: Debt maturity profile
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Footnote * Projected inflation accretion added to AIRLO1 in 2029E

The Company will repay R3.3 billion worth of debt over the Corporate Plan period comprising of the
following:;

AIRO2 fixed-rate bond R1.7 billlion

AlR04 fixed rate bond R544 million

AFD1 loan R164 million

AFD2 loan R685 million

INCA toan R33 million

o DBSA loan (amortizing loan) R283 million

Foreign Debt Funding Opportunity

No foreign debt funding envisaged over the three-year Corporate Plan; however, the company will
continue to explore opportunities in the foreign market i.e. international bond market, Bank Loans and
Export Credit Agencies. The objective is to make sure that the company is able to diversify its funding
sources and is well prepared to raise funding offshore should the need arises.

Active Investor Relations

ACSA Treasury will continue to engage existing and potential investors with the intention of instilling
investor confidence which will potentially increase investor's appetite for ACSA’s credit. As resuilt, the
company will ensure that investors are kept abrést of any material developments within the company
timeously and in a transparent manner. The company will continue to make use of following
communication channels to engage with investors:

¢ Annual Road Shows;
s Regular updates by announcement through JSE SENS;
+ Upload of information of the Investor Web Page;

The company will continue with its annual road shows program to domestic investors including one-
on-one meetings with investors.

9. BORROWING FACILITIES

Current Banking Facilities

The company has secured R1.8 billion worth of short-term committed banking facilities with Nedbank,
RMB and Standard Bank. Airports Company South Africa maintains shori-term committed banking
facilities for bridging finance purposes and to comply with the requirements of credit rating agencies.

16
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The credit facility amount is reviewed on an annual basis to reflect the size of capex programme and
short-term liquidity requirements. The current facilities will expire on 31 August 2022 and the company
intends to renew the credit facilities for another 12 months for an amount of not exceeding R2
billion.

The company will strive to meet its financial obligations from available cash and Internal generated
funds. Therefore, the company will only utilise short-term banking facilities under unavoidable and
exceptional circumstances

Table 9: Bank Facilities as 31 December 2021

Financial Utilised Available

Facility Amount

Institution (Rm) (Rm) (Rm) Type Utilisation Interest
RMB : R650 RO R650 Committed Determined on drawdown
Nedbank R650 RO R650 Committed Determined on drawdown
pandard | Rs00 RO R1800 |Committed  [Determined on drawdown
TOTAL R1 800 R1800 |R1800

To support business operations, the company will issue bank guarantees and letter of credit whenever
required by suppliers to facilitate transactions undertaken in the ordinary course of business. The
approval of bank guarantees, and leiters of credit shall be as per Board approved Delegation of
Authority. The company has a performance guarantee for the Gru Concession totalling BRL151 million
(R400 million) which is renewed annually. The company will renew this performance guarantee
unless an agreement is reached with Invepar as the buyer of the ACSA’s shareholding in the
GRU concession to take over the obligation. Moreover, the company will maintain other
uncommitted facilities such as derivative facility, asset-based finance facility and credit card facility to
facilitate business operations.

10. RISK MANAGEMENT

Policy Review and Governance

The Financial Risk Management Committee chaired by the Chief Financial Officer, and the Board
investment Commitiee which is 2 Sub-committee of the Baard play an oversight role on the treasury
operational activities. This includes review of treasury- operatlonal reports and assessment of all
treasury related risks to ensure that these risks are managed effectively.

The committees review the following Board approved policies to ensure appropriate risk management
practices are in place to govern Treasury activities:

Treasury Risk Management Framework;
Cash Management Policy;

Investment Policy;

Borrowing Policy.

-

Hedging of Treasury Risks

To mitigate Treasury related risks such as foreign currency and interest rate risks, the company make
use of hedging instruments approved in the Treasury Risk Management Framework. it is worth noting
that hedging strategies are only executed after obtaining necessary approvals in line with the
Delegation Levels of Authority. In addition, the accounting and risk implication of each is analysed
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before each hedge strategy is recommended to the Board. The main objective of hedge strategies is
to bring certainty of future cash flow and to minimise volatility in the Company’s income statement.

Debt Covenants

The AFD has granted ACSA a grace period of additional 12 months from June 2022 until June 2023,
relating to the required levels for the historical and projected Net Debt to EBITDA ratio and historical
and projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio. The approval is on condition that the company provides
a 12-month cash flow forecast every six months.

Although the credit metrics are expected to improve over the forecast period, it is envisaged that the
Net Debt to EBITDA ratio will remain in breach in the first two years of the Corporate Plan while the
Debt Service Coverage ratio will be in breach in 2023/24 financial year. The Net Debt to EBITDA ratio
and Debt Service Coverage ratio are expected to fall back within thresholds in the last year of the
three-year plan. Given the high level of uncertainty relating to the trajectory of traffic growth amid the
Covid-18 pandemic, the risk of material breach in financial ratios beyond grace period of June 2023
remains. As result, the company will engage with the AFD on the possibility of extending the wavier
should the future projections continue to point to a breach in financial covenants.

Table 10: AFD Loan Covenants including preference shares as debt instrument

Requirements

Covenants 2022123  2023/24  2024/25

- 2020/21

Above Investment
Credit Ratings Grade — National Scale | Aa2.za | Aa2.za Aa2.za Aa2.za
(BBB)
Net Debt/Capitalization | Shall not exceed 65% | 27% 28% 27% 24%
Net Debt/EBITDA tslr::IL notexceed4 | .o |571x |407x | 3.47x
0, .
Government Shareholding :;:ZSt S0%plusone |, eu | 746% |748% | 74.6%
- ; 2.90x 1.01x 2.08
Dsbt S_erwce Cover Retio Not less than 1.5 times | 3.10x *
by Available cash

Note: Financial covenant calculations are based on the formulas as agreed with lenders

-

11. CONCLUSION Lk

The implementation of the Borrowing Plan activities will be undertaken within the parameters set out
in the Board approved Treasury Risk Management Policy Framework. The proposed funding
strategies will ensure that the company meet its short-term liquidity requirements and achieve long-
term financial sustainability. ACSA Treasury will ensure that the implementation of the funding
strategies comply with governing legislation.
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Appendix A: Three Year Gross Funding Requirements

(ZAR Million) 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Cash Carried forward — 31 March 2022 960 718 439
New Gross Funding R 0 1000 0

'EBITDA 1517 2002 2300
Capital Expenditure -881 - 895 -1 000
L.oan Redemptions -296 -2 139 -887
Net Interest Payout on existing debt -558 441 -272
Net Interest Payout on new debt 0 -50 -100
GRU disposal 37 37 37
Shareholders’ preference shares subscription 0 0 0
Tax Payout : o -45 124
Dividends Payout 0 0 0
WC Changes -62 352 411
Cash Position after Gross Funding 718 439 805
Inflation accretion y-o-y 118 125 133
Accrued dividends on preference shares 214 233 252
Total Closing Gross Debt incl preference 9374 8593 8 092
shares D S |




Appendix B: Summary of Current Borrowing as at 31 December 2021

[ Maturity | Financial h Outstanding | Interest | WACOF
Issue Date Institution/ | Type
Date Instrument Amount Rate NACS
FIXED RATE DEBT
30 Apr 08 | 30 Apr23 | AIRO2 Listed Bond | v} 7120000001 4 oot 14.68%
20 May 14 | 20 May 24 | AIR04 Listed Bond | 1044000000} g o5 9.25%
29 May 14 | 29 May 30 | AIR0S Listed Bond | 1252000000 60001  10.00%
28 Apr 09 | 15 Nov 23 | AFD DFi Amort. | R287434589| 10.350% |  10.350%
12 Apr 11 | 12.Jan 26 | AFD2 DFi Amort. | 1023750000 40 550%|  10.550%
26 0ct 00 | 26 Oct20 | AIR04U Fxed Rate | RS00000000| 41 5a0%|  11.500%
Preference | Preference | R2485 499 193
05-Mar-21 | 05-Mar-31 Shaas e 8.200% 8,200%
02-Feb-21 | 30-Nov-27 | DBSAloan | DBSAloan | O100000001 5500 | g 744%
FLOATING RATE DEBT BEFORE SWAPS
18 Dec 08 | 30/Nov 23 | INCA/Saniam | i | AT R57692308|  5.84% 5.97%
INTEREST RATE SWAPS
30 Nov 09 | 30 Nov23 | Nedbank | Notional R38461538| 11.44%|  11131%
INFLATION LINKED DEBT
Listed
30 Apr08 | 30 Apr28 | AIRLOT il R1747780604|  3.64% 3.64%
TOTAL FUNDING R9 321 772 814 WACOF 8,907%




ANNEXURE H - DIVIDEND POLICY

Airports Company South Africa acknowiedges the requirement to focus on value creation and
maximisation for shareholders. The policy takes into account the shareholders preference for
dividends as a return on their equity investment in the company.

In determining an appropriate dividend policy, the following factors are taken inte account:

[ ]

Economic factors such as economy growth, traffic growth, level of interest rates etc.;
Current financial position and forecasted financial performance;

Compliance with debt covenants;

An optimal capital structure;

An investment grade credit rating;

Funding requirements of our capital expenditure programme;

Economic regulatory environment;

Financing of new investments opportunities that meet the Company's hurdle rates defined using
the Weighted Average Cost of Capital; and

Shareholders preferences and National Treasury guidelines on financial distribution palicy for
Government Business Enterprises (July 2005).

The above factors support a prudent approach to the declaration of dividends. This approach is
necessary to meet shareholders expectations and ensure flexibility in negotiating dividend targets on
a case-by-case basis consistently and predictably. The targets shalt be negotiated with reference to
after - tax profits, underlying cash position, capital structure and the preferences of the shareholders.
Consideration of underlying cash position is important as increases in reported profits may not be
supported by increased cash flow.

The dividend policy shall be addressed in the Corporate Plan covering a period of three (3) years and
agreed between Airports Company South Africa and its Board representing shareholders in the
Shareholder Compact.

A dividend shall be paid only if the following conditions are met:

There are adequate retained earnings left after we have financed investments projects that meet
hurdle rates using the Weighted Average Cost of Capital. The adequacy of retained earnings shall
be measured by reference to the net debt to capitalisation ratio (level of gearing) for the year
following the dividend declaration.

There is sufficient cash to meet operational needs (working capital requirements), as contingency
for financial flexibility and as well as to make the agreed dividend payments. This shall be reviewed
on an annual basis.

Fulfilment of required debt covenants (Refer Appendix A),

An optimal capital structure, the Net Debt to Capitalisation ratio shall not exceed 60%. The capital
structure and debt to capitalisation ratie shall be reviewed periodically and linked to the investment
cycle.

The Net debt to Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) shali not
exceed three (3) times.

A long - term credit rating of minimum AA - or equivalent for the company and the country.



o Our Board has approved the declaration and resolved that considering all reasonably foreseeable
financial circumstances of the Company after the distribution; Airports Company South Africa shall

pass the solvency and liquidity test.

The dividend pay-out ratios shall be as follows:

+ Dividend Payment in an amount ranging from 10% to 25% of the net income (dividend pay - out
ratio); caiculated as dividend payment divided by profit after - tax.

The distribution shall be executed in line with the Company’'s Memorandum of Incorporation.

Our management acknowledges that the implementation of this Policy is their responsibility and is
committed to it. This policy shall be reviewed by Management and Board of Directors on an annual

basis and made available to any interested parties on request.



ANNEXURE | - EMPLOYMENT EQUITY PLAN - FY 2018, 2019, 2020 AND 2021

1. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY

Transformation of the aviation sector plays a significant role in South Africa. While Airports Company South Africa,
as a leading Airports Operator with a globai footprint, contributes to the country’s economic growth, it is also
concemed with the way such contributions promote access to economic opportunities and financial inclusion to
improve the overall standard of living in the wider South African society while reducing inequality.

Our transformation approach supports both national strategic priorities as well as its own purpose of using aviation
expertise to do good for all stakeholders in South Africa. Our focus is to build an aviation sector that contributes
meaningfully to a better life for all South Africans.

At Airports Company South Africa, transformation transcends compllance and goes beyond the numbers. A
robust govemance approach is applied to our fransformation efforts. There are several structures that debate,
critique and approve each of the transformation initiatives. These receive support from our Executive and Board
Comnmittees, primarily through the committees listed below:

¢ The Employment Equity and Training and Development Committees, which are responsible for the
implementation and monitoring of the Employment Equity and Skills Development programmes, ensuring full
integration of all transformation and Human Resources pracesses and initiatives across the Company;

« The Transformation and Sustainability Committee, a commiitee which provides oversight of the Company’s
activities in the field of transformation, human capital development and sustainability, and monitors progress
in terms of our transformation agenda.

The Board, Executive Committee and Management fully embrace the transformational focus and is a key strategic
partner that regularly menitor the transformation progress.

We also operate within the legislative framework that Government has put in place to drive transformation in the
country, such as broad-based black economic empowerment. Our Employment Equity Plan 2016 — 2021 has
taken amendments, aimed at integrating B-BBEE into the economy more comprehensively, into consideration
and we aligned our transformation objectives accordingly.

2. WORKFORCE PROFILE REPRESENTATION

Qur quantitative targets reflect its intention o make progress in transformational categories with the goal to align
closer to the National Economically Active Population (EAP) per occupational level.



Table 1: Workforce Profile Representation

Male Female Foreign Black
Year Repr.

A C | w A C I w Male | Female ’err .

1192 | 217 [ 102 | 118 | 1059 | 162 | 45 105 |0 2 2777
Target 2017

30.7% | 7.2% | 3.4% | 3.9% | 35.3% | 54% | 1.5% | 3.5% | 0.0% | 0.1% 92.5%

1211 | 218 [ 102 [ 121 | 1003 | 167 | 46 106 (0 -3 2837
Target 2018

395% | 7.1% | 3.3% | 3.9% | 35.6% | 54% | 1.5% | 3.5% | 0.0% | 0.1% 92.4%

1181 | 187 [ 101 | 118 | 1083 | 172 | 47 107 |0 3 2771
Target 2019 :

39.4% | 6.2% | 3.4% | 3.9% | 36.1% | 5.7% | 1.6% | 3.6% | 0.0% | 0.1% 92.4%

1172 (191 (102 | 116 | 1087 | 172 | 47 108 | 0O 3 2771
Target 2020 -

39.1% | 6.4% | 3.4% | 3.9% | 36.3% | 5.7% | 1.6% | 3.6% | 0.0% | 0.1% 92.5%

1167 | 192 | 100 | 116 | 1092 | 173 | 48 1068 |0 3 2772
Target 2021

38.9% | 6.4% | 3.3% | 3.8% | 36.4% | 5.8% | 1.6% | 3.5% | 0.0% | 0.1% 92.4%
EAP 428% | 5.2% | 1.7% | 5.1% | 36.0% | 4.4% | 1.0% | 3.9% | 0.0% | 0.0% 91.1%

1. Gender Representation - FY 2018, 2019, 2020 and 2021 Plan

Our joumey on gender transformation demonstrates our intention to make significant progress, which is included
in the graphic representation bslow:

Graph 1: Gender Representation

Gender Representation

60,0
-—54-8-—-—'—5415.‘-—0——-5-3,8——.—32&—.:%‘- B 547
40,0 45,2 45,8 46,2~ il i A 16 45.3
- Male
20,0
Female

Sep-16  Target 2017 Target 2018 Target 2019 Target 2020 Target 2021 EAP

The quantitative and qualitative targets contained in our successive Employment Equity Plan demonstrate our
approach to improve gender representation towards a goal of achieving 50 percent female representation per
occupational level. Our successive Employment Equity Plan have been designed not only to focus on numbers
but to introduce initiatives such as women empowement programmes to achieve meaningful transformation.

3. EMPLOYMENT EQUITY OUTLOOK

The Employment Equity Plan 2016 — 2021 ensures a sustainable and representative transformation approach to
sustain our business in a global competitive market. To achieve this, consideration is given to the overall country
transformation agenda, socio-economic circumstances, in-depth analysis of past achievements, shortfalls and
challenges, supported by extensive consultation with all relevant stakeholders, ranging from employee surveys,
detailed auditing of Company policies and procedures, to the setting of new targets.

The maturity of the National Employment Equity and Training & Development Committee, with guidance from the
Executive Committee and other intemal govemance structures will lead engagements towards positive progress
on the Company successive Employment Equity Plan.



1. Quantitative Targets

A well-dsfined target setting framework was developed for the design of the successive Employment Equity Plan
to provide a progressive approach towards the achievement of equitable representation in line with the
economically active population per occupational level. The target setting approach considered the workforce
profile analysis to determine the Company profile per occupational category and is based on the following
principles:

Comment

Relevant business factors impacting on sustainability, potential growth and
_ e | transformation that will influence the plan.

Impact of Business Status on Translation of the status into requirements for employess either in higher
growth numbers or different occupational skill levels.

Factor

Business Status

Considering impact of economic conditions as articulated in the Company

Economic conditions strategic plan.

Only vacancies which are appfoved in the budget are included in the
Open Vacancies plans. Plans are concluded in line with this allocation, noting the new
operating model in the business.

Any project or strategic staffing is aligned to the EE Plan, considering
Strategic Staffing (if applicable) | available skills poo! in the market. This is supported by Affirmative Action
measures and development where applicable.

The future retirements inform the planned targets and allows for
improvement fram a succession perspective.

Retirements

Development plans and succession plans allows for consideration of
impact of promotions on representation in the plan .

Development and Promotions

Succession plans informs the talent poo! from designated employees as a
Scarce and Critical Skills priority. The talent pool is continuously considered and monitored to
ensure business continuity.

Representation of Persons with Disability is considered per work

Persons with Disability environment as to increase opportunities and capacity in this
representation.

| S— = B — — —

2. Persons with Disability Representation and Reasonable Accommodation

The integration of Persons with Disabilities into the workplace, requires specific attention and in this regard, we
monitor the representation and development continuously. We specifically allocate budgets focused on training,
reasonable accommodation and integration of Persons with Disabilities into the workplace. Periodical audits will
be conducted to ensure employees declare their disabilities accurately and in line with the correct definitions as
set out in the Employment Equity Act.

The representation of Persons with Disability in the successive Employment Equity Plan will remain 2.5% of the
total workforce for each year of the plan.

3. Affirmation Action Measures to enable the Employment Equity goals

By sharing available skills, experiences and abilities in our diverse employee base, we can hamess the
opportunities that exist for viewing things from different perspectives and developing innovative solutions and
processes. Diversity management is achieved by developing work environments where employees from diverse
backgrounds and perspectives feel valued, respected and able to contribute to their full potential,

Well-defined affirmative action measures are therefore key to unlock a diverse work environment, free from
discrimination where employees can realise their full potential. Diversity is important to the business whether
employees are working together from diverse backgrounds or seeking outstanding talent to help the organisation
drive innovative solutions. Plans to achieve Employment Equity targets include eliminating barriers to employment
equity and implementing positive measures to address under-representation.



In considering the targets and objectives of the successive Employment Equity Plan the following key affirmative
action measures, among others, have been identified fo continue to accelerate transformation not only intemally
in the organisation but also supporting our role in the broader society.

4. Unlocking Skills and Young Talent Development

We view skills development as a central lever in achieving transformation in a sustainable manner. We focus on
the development of our employees as well as improving skills and creating meaningful opportunities within the
country at large. This approach will not only underpin our sustainability but will ensure that the country moves a
step closer to mesting the objectives outlined in the National Development Plan. Insight into the elements of our
training and development approach is reflected in different sections in this document. The key initiatives that we
will drive fo support the transformation agenda are as follows:

A. Elevating the Company’s education level — Employee Bursaries

We will continue to offer bursaries to employees who wish to pursue further education in fields that are aligned
with the nature of the business. This initiative will contribute to boosting the skills that the Company requires to
meet our objectives. It is envisloned that this will contribute positively to the literacy levels of the organisation and
provide employees with appropriate education qualifications that will prepare them for more complex and

specialised roles.

B. Professional Registration and Continuous Professional Development

To strengthen the professional layer of the organisation as well as improving representation of designated groups
within professional spaces, we will focus on supporting our employess in obtaining professional registration to
relevant professional bodies in disciplines such as engineering, finance and human resource. We will further
support already registered professionals with thelr continuing Professional Development.

C. Leadership Development

Leadership development remains a strategic priority for the Company and an important element of improving
transformation. We have engaged in coaching programmes to embed a leaming culture and ensure sustainable
transformation. We intend to implement leadership development programmes tailored to address transformation

in the following leadership levels:

A Supervisory Development Programme (SDP) targeting front line managers;

A Management Development Programme (MDP) aimed at middle management; and
An Executive Development Programme (EDP) focused on the senior leadership team.

This forms an.integral part of our talent and succession management approach, particularly noting the importance
of bullding a future leadership pipeline.

D. Junior Professional Development

(i) Trainees

We provide development and employment opportunities to graduates within professions that are formally
registered with professional bodies such as Engineering and Property Development. The graduates are given
permanent employment and provided with supervised work experience that ieads to them being professionally
registered with their respective professional bodies.

(i) Apprenticeships

The Artisan®skill In the electrical maintenance field is strengthened through a structured apprenticeship
programme for intemal employees as well as unemployed youth interested in being qualified electrician. '



{iii) Youth and Youth Development

We have a number of initiatives to promote the empowerment and the development of youth in South Africa. The
focus will continue to be on raising awareness on available career opportunities In aviation, provide bursary
support to those studying towards qualifications that feed the national critical and scarce skills as well as provide

meaningful work experience for first time job seekers.

s Career Awareness and Guidance

| .
| Initiative

Description

The Joint Aviation
Awareness
| Programme (JAAP)

JAAP is a programme designed to bring awareness on existing careers within the
aviation industry. We participate in the planning of the JAAP initiatives and actively
exhibits at JAAP career events. JAAP reaches children who live in remote and rural
areas where exposure to aviation related careers is limited.

Technogir

The Intematuonal
Career Aviation Day
(ICAD)

|

This is run in partnershlp with Oweso Consulting. The aim is to raise awareness of
careers in scarce fields and ultimately increase the number of girls who actively
pursue these careers. This is a four year programme where participants spend three
structured weeks per year with a mentor who take them through an interactive job
shadowing / exposure programme. Once the girls are ready to move into tertiary
institutions, those that choose the engineering stream will be considered for a
Sakhisizwe Bursary which may eventually lead to full time employment when
opportunities exist.

This event aims to bring awareness to young psople, especially in rural areas on
existing careers within the aviation industry.

° Bursary and Study Support
S ! — = S
lnltiatwe B Descnphon_- i B
Airports Company We offer children of employees who are at entry level to junior management bursary
South Africa Children's | support for their children perusing studies within the identified scarce and critical
Bursaries skills. Part of the programme is to provide workplace exposure as vacation work to
provide them with practical work exposure. The ultimate intention is to provide
permanent employment where opportunities exist.
Tutorials school Study support sponsorship has been extended to high school pupils who wish to
children improve their accounting, mathematics and, or science subjects through formal
tutorials.
Sakhisizwe .. The objective of this initiative Is to develop aviation related skills for the broader
‘South Africa focusing on previously disadvantaged youth. Sakhisizwe, under the
Airports Company South Africa’s administration, provides full sfudy support to
| Engineering students which lead to meaningful work opportunities.
—_— ——— S
. Work exposure and job opportumtles
S _ — :
Initiative ‘ D_escnptlon ) o ) _1
Leamerships 'l Leamership programmes for both employed and unemployed leamers are
| conducted in the following disciplines: Customer Care, Business Administration, Fire |
and Rescue as well as Security.
Internships Graduates within various professions that are found in the Company are provided
with a fixed-term employment contract employment and provided with supervised |
work experience. |




E. Talent Management and Transformation (Diversity and inclusivity)

We regard Talent Management as one of the business levers the organisation pulls for the benefit of the three
stakeholders, i.e. employees, the organisation and the soclety at large. At a socletal level, this lever is geared
towards achieving the governmental triple challenges, which are poverty, inequality and unemployment. The
following three (3) outcomes depicts Talent Management as a driver and in particular the beneficiaries of talent

management programs:

I ‘Employees

As an organisation our focus is to create an environment where all employees regardless of race, background,
gender etc. feel welcomed, respected and enabled to perform to the best of their abilities. To further the
transformation objectives, a consideration is made of the number of future vacant positions and the relevant plans
are put in place to ensure that we accelerate the development of identified employees. Furthermore, we conduct
performance coaching with line managers to teach them practices that reduce bias when they evaluate the
performance of their team members. In addition, we monitor the talent acquisition trends to ensure that we use
all the opportunities to build a transformed and inclusive workforce.

il Organisation

In addition, & more diverse workforce appeals to a diverse talent pool, therefore, the organisation will be able to
tap into a much bigger talent pool in the market. To this effect, the organisation has embarked on a process to
develop an Employee Value Proposition.

fii. Society

Several interventions are underway to deal with Inequality in all its forms in the organisation. For an example, an
exercise has been concluded to ensure that there is pay parity within the organisation and several interventions
have been implemented to assist low eaming employees to pay for their children’s education, to efford housing
and assist them with transport to and from work. in addition, the organisation participates in several programmes
to expose young talent to experiential tralning to give them a head start In securing employment.

= Rewards and Benefits

Central to the organisation's Total Rewards philosophy is the commitment to remunerate employees fairly and
transparently to attract, motivate and retain talent We aim to offer employees a Total Rewards offering which
includes a competitive salary and incentives, professional advancement opportunities, recognition for exceptional
performance, benefits which support a better life for employees and a culture and environment which promotes
employee well-being.

iv. Housing Project

We value our employees and acknowlédiqg;meir pursuit towards bettering their lives and the lives of those around
them. As such we are focused on providing solutions that will help our employees live a more comfortable life. A
decision was therefore taken to increase home ownership through an improved employee housing assistance
programme which includes an upfront housing subsidy to assist with the deposit and upfront costs involved with
purchasing a home, monthly housing allowance which has been improved to assist with monthly bond and rental
payments. Furthermore, the housing project makes provision for a debt reconciliation for employees that are
unable to purchase property due to bad debt levels.

v. Empioyment Equity and Improvement Communication

Employment Equity awareness is vital to the institutionalisation of a diverse culture. We recognise the importance
thereof and will create awareness through the following platforms:

Annual programmes for all staff to create awareness and improve diversity;
Increased line management engagement and conversations with staff on Employment Equity;
Explore the results of Employment Equity surveys at intermittent intervais to address issues related to
employment equity amicably; and

e Continues the inclusion of Employment Equity and diversity awareness in orientation programmes of
new staff.



F. 2022 and BEYOND

Airports Company South Africa will develop and conclude its next S-year successive Employment Equity
Plan during quarter 1 of the 2022 FY which will continue to focus on confributing towards the country’s
aconomic growth, promote access to economic opportunities and financial inclusion and to improve the
overall standard of living in the wider South African society while reducing inequality.
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PRECINCT 2A

RESOLUTION TO WIND UP PRECINCT 2A

F ) r, { 1M :
\ \._ Wi .
INVESTHENTS
WRITTEN RESOLUTIONS OF THE SHAREMOLDER OF THE COMPANY ADOPTED IN ACCORDANCE
WRH THE MERORANOUN OF INC v RO OF THE COAARY ARG THE COLTIEES
ACT RO 71 OF 2000 ("COMPANIES ACT, '

PREAMBLE

The foliowing resciutions are submited fix the wrtien spproval of the sharehoider of ths Company in temms
of saction 80 of the Companiss At

4. The below resviutions {"winding up resolutions”} are propased in order to authorise the winding up of
the Company in accordance with secions 78(1 {{a){) and 80(1) of the Companies Act,

2. Alrporis Company South Africs SOC Limited ("ACSA”} i the only sharehaider of the Company.

3. ACSA holds 100 ordinary shaces representing 100% in valbe of sharsholders and voies in respect of
each of the below winding up resolutions in eccordance with the Mol.

HOW THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED THAT:

A. The winding up of the Compsny, as & shareholder's winding up in jerms of sections TR{1Ye)i} and
801%) of the Compenies Act, be e is hereby epproved
B. Any director of the Compeny be and i hereby individustly suthordsed, Instrusted and empowered to do

gl such things, sign &1l such documents end geocure the doing of 8t such things and the signature of ot
such goouments 8s mey he necessery or dasirabie on behall of the Compeny lo give effect Io the

winding up of the Conipary.

C. The liguidstor be speciically autherissd, ypon batoming enliled 1o adl In terms of seclion 80 of the
Companies Act., to exercise the powers refervad 1o In the said section 80 of the Companies Ant

KAME VOTEIN ABSTARED ~VOTE SIGHATURE DATE
FEVOUR LGAINST

M Mpofu
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OVERVIEW & BACKGROUND

Precinct 2A Investments (Pty) Ltd (“Precinct 2A" or “P2A") is a 100% subsidiary of Airports Company South Africa
(ACSA) which was formed in 1998. It is a company through which Airports Company purchased approximately 237
hectares of land in 2007 from Denel primarily for aeronautical masterplan. The greater extent of the land is to
strategically enable the long-term master plan of OR Tambo International Airport to accommodate future aviation
activities. The remaining developed and undeveloped land of approximately 100 hectares has been earmarked for
commercial property development opportunities. Precinct 2A was established as a ring-fenced infrastructure owner to
“house” immovabie assets purchased from Denel in 2007 up until transfer of such property to ACSA that was to be
determined at a future date. It was envisaged the capital growth realised on asset fransfer to ACSA would become a
capital profit retained exclusively by ACSA shareholder whilst the Regulatory Asset Base on transfer to ACSA would
be inclusive of the capital profit. However, shortly after P2A acquired the Denel property, it was accounted at'purchése
nrice in the Regulatory Asset Base and the objective described above to retain capital growth for ACSA shareholder is
t, longer realisable, therefore maintaining P2A as a separate subsidiary other than adding holding and operating costs
.ld no other benefit to ACSA. That resulted to ACSA board being a shareholder taking a resolution to wind up this
entity. The sharehoider resolution was taken on 06 March 2019. As at 31 March 2019, the company had net asset

value of R90 million and gross assets of R855 million.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Badisa Matshego
Non — executive Director
Age: - 43
Qualifications: - B.Sc. (Eng.) Civil, EDP
‘sas of expertise: - Engineering, Construction, Real Estate & Transformation
Date of appointment - 24 April 2017
Ms Bongiwe Pityi
Non - executive Director
Age: - 49
Qualifications: - BA, LLB, Admitted Attorney
Areas of expertise: - Airport Management
Date of appointment - 17 April 2015

Ms Bongiwe Mbomvu

Non — executive Director

Confldential



Age: - 53
Qualifications: - Bachelor of Social Science, LLB, LLM, Admitted Attorney

Corporate governance, Legal, Risk and Compliance

Areas of expertise:

Date of appointment - 17 April 2015
Ms Thembisa Fuzani

Non — executive Director

Age: - 50

CA (SA,), B Com Accounting, B Com Honors, Cert. Accounting

Qualifications:

Areas of expertise: Finance, Auditing, Management Accounting

Date of appointment - 17 April 2015

Mr Kris Reddy

Alternate Director

Age: - 54

Qualifications: - Airport Commercial & Operational Management, Executive Development Program
Areas of expertise: - Operations and general management
Date of appointment - 17 April 2015

Ms Khanyisile Nene

Alternate Director

Age: - 44

Qualifications: - BA, HR Diploma, PDP, CPM

Areas of expertise: - Real Estate Management

17 April 2015

Date of appointment

OUR VISION

The vision is to consistently realise and grow shareholder value by unlocking and beneficiating property assets in
addition to setting aside land for the ORTIA aeronautical masterplan.

Confidential



OUR MISSION

To develop and manage property assets for the benefit of the shareholder after utilising the western portion of land for
the optimisation of the ORTIA masterplan.

OURVALUES

Our values are, PRIDE:
1. Passion
2. Results
3. Integrity
4, Diversity
5. Excellence

OUR MANDATE

The company is mandated to appropriately attend to Township Establishment (Proclamation) of the property for
aeronautical and the balance for non-aeronautical use to allow for redevelopments which will consistently realize

growing rental income from property assets

LOCATION MAPS

Confidential




WINDING UP OF ENTITY, TRANSFER OF ASSETS AND CESSION OF LEASES

As per approval by the shareholder (ACSA Board), as soon as Ministerial approval is obtained, to finalise the legal
winding up of entity, transfer of assets and cession of leases to ACSA.

SWOT ANALYSES

STRENGHTS:
» Property strategically located.

WEAKNESES:
> Reliability of funding from shareholder whose balance sheet mandate it mainly focused on aeronautical projects.

CPPORTUNITIES:
™ High potential annuity income.

Positioning of Aerotropolis by Ekurhulenl.
Partnering and risk sharing to unlock land values.

THREATS:
Competition from other developers.

Holding costs of vacant land.
Lead time to land enablement.
Possible delay in the winding up process

PROPERTY DEVELOPEMENT

VVvVY

CRITERIA FOR COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENTS

The redevelopments of property can only take place after obtaining approval on Township Establishment. Whiles it is
envisaged that future re-development of property will be done by ACSA sfter assets have been transferred and entity
winded up, until the winding up process is finalised, the Precinct 2A together with ACSA to start the processes of

developing a Precinct Plan which will guide the future developments

PEFORMANCE AGAINST PRE-DETERMINED OBJECTIVES

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (2021/22)

v Stratejic Objectives | ~ = " KPL . : Dm «Target
Precinct Plan to be developed and approved
Redevelopment of Atias Atlas proper is a commercially developable iand of approximately 45 ha.
Proper — Phase 1 Development of a precinct plan will enable strategic developments to take place
in line with Aerotropolis.
Deliver long term Projected loss
profitability (Earmings After not to exceed
Interest, Before Tax) ___| Ongoing portfolio status quo maintained 2021/22 - | R30m
To obtain ministerial approval to wind down
entity and transfer assets to the shareholder Winding down
Winding down of entity (ACSA) 2021/22 finalised

Confidential



Refurbishment of property

Refurbishment of property to ensure Health and
Safety compliance

| 2021/22

Minimum
requirements
compliance

Confidential



ANNUAL PERFOMANCE PLANS

PROJECTED INCOME STATEMENT 2022 - 2024

Budget

Forecast

202223 2023124 2024125

T 2021122
Rm R'm R'm R'm

INCOME
Non-aeronautical Revenue
Property rentals & Recoveries 57 61 0 0
TOTAL REVENUE &7 61 0 0
EXPENDITURE
Operational expenditure 77) (42) 0 0
EBITDA 20 19 0 0
Other Income 0. 0 0 0
PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST & TAX :’ 20 19 0 0
Net interest received /(paid) (57) (57) 0 0
PROFIT BEFORETAX (77) (38) 0 0
Taxation g - - -
PROFIT AFTER TAX (77) i (38) ©) 0

Confidentlal



PROJECTED BALANCE SHEET 2022 — 2024

Forecast Budget
2021122 2022/23 2023/24  2024/25
: : R'm R'm R'm
ASSETS
Investment property *(Note 1) 859 0 0
Current assets 25 0 0
Receivables and prepayments 4 0 0
Cash and cash equivalents 21 0 0
TOTAL ASSETS 884 0 0
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital & reserves 119 0 0
Share capital and premium - 0 0
Retained earnings 118 0 0
Non-current liabilities 22 0 0
Deferred tax 20 : 22 0 0
Borrowings 0 y - 0 0 D
Current liabilities 754 743 0 0
Trade and other payables 18 20 0 0
Current portion of borrowings 736 723 0 0
TOTAL LIABILITIES 786 765 0 0
TOTAL EQYITY AND LIABILITIES 882 884 0 0

*Note1 Investment Property as presented above does not assume any fair value gain/loss on the asset base as of 31 March 2020
or that attributed to redevelopment of properties. This is a non-cash fiow itermn and accordingly not provided above.

Confidential



BORROWING PLAN 2022 - 2024

Precinct 2A is funded by its holdings company, Airports Company South Africa SOC Limited.

MATERIALITY, LEGAL & FINANCE FRAMEWORKS

The company subscribes to Airports Company Governance frameworks namely:

» Risk management Framework
Fraud Prevention Plan
Human Resources Plan
Employee Equity Plan
Environmental Plan
Marketing Plan
Communication Plan
Procurement Plan

Delegated Levels of Authority

VV VYV V Vv V¥

THE WAY FORWARD

» Short term {(within the next 12 months):
) = Development of a precinct plan for phase 1 (Atlas Proper)
~ + Refurbishment of property to ensure minimum compliance requirements.
 Finalizing Winding down of entity and transfer of assets to the shareholder (ACSA).

CONCLUSION

Precinct 2A owns a strategically located property of 237ha (188ha usable) including improvements of 272,078mz. The
property presents opportunities for future expansion of OR Tambo International Airport aeronautical needs and for non-
aeronautical (Commercial) re-development expansion. The entity is in a process of being winded up and assets to be
transferred to ACSA In line with the shareholder resolution taken in March 2018.

10
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JIA Piazza Park Proprietary Limited
Registration number 1998/04849/07
Corporate Plan for the four-year period April 2022 to March 2026

1. OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS

JIA Piazza Park Proprietary Limited (“Piazza Park”) is a full subsidiary of the Airports Company South
Africa Limited ("ACSA”) and has appointed Tsogo Sun Hotels fo manage a hotel and hotel business as
an InterContinental (“InterContinental Hotel Group® or “IHG”) hotel, under the name InterContinental
Johannesburg O.R. Tambo Airport (“The hotel” or “IC OR Tambo”).

The hotel was opened on 16 March 2001 with 138 rooms and has been managed by Tsogo Sun Hotels
since then. The management contract runs until 31 December 2026.

With a portfolio of more than 100 hotels, Tsogo Sun Hotels owns, leases and manages hotels in South
Africa as well as several sub-Saharan African countries, the Seychelles and Abu Dhabi. Tsogo Sun
Hotels extensive selection of restauranis and bars, and diverse collection of conference and banqueting
facilities including the renowned Sandton Convention Centre, offers guests unparalleled variety,

footprint and scale. ()

IHG is a global hotel company with a diverse portfolio of brands, including 6,031 open hotels and
889,164 rooms around the worid as of 30 September 2021. 2

South Africa’s only luxury airport hotel, the InterContinental Johannesburg O.R. Tambo Airport, is less
than 70 mefres from the International Arrivals hall at Johannesburg’s O.R. Tambo International Airport.
The Sandton Central Business District can easily be accessed via the Gautrain rapid rail system or by
car, making this location ideal for all kinds of travellers.

There are a total of 138 furnished en-suite rooms, comprising of Deluxe and Executive rooms as well
as two luxurious Presidential suites. Accommodation features in each room include writing desk,
complimentary WiFi, coffee machine, mini-bar, television with DSTV and DVD player, Bose Bluetooth
Sound Dock System, elecironic safe, 24-hour room service, porter service and wake-up facility.

Services and facilities throughout the rest of the hotel are geared towards meeting the needs of guests.
Highlights include the Camelot Spa for a host of pampering treatments, an indoor heated swimming
pool, conferencing facilities and a uniquely African dining experience at Quilis Restaurant, which serves
a range of breakfast, lunch and dinner options as well as light meals and drinks.



JIA Piazza Park Proprietary Limited
Registration number 1998/04849/07
Corporate Plan for the four-year period April 2022 to March 2026

2, STRATEGY

Environmental overview
The environmental overview provides background on the current and future IC OR Tambo trading

conditions as influenced by:

The outbreak of COVID-19 and impact on the travel and hospitality industry

The South African macro-economic environment,

The economic conditions in source countries, such as the UK, USA, Europe and Middle East,
International travel to South Africa and surrounding countries,

The Hotel industry, including new entrants and existing market participants,

S SR

COVID-19 Impact
The devastation of the Covid-19 pandemic on lives and livelihoods continues to dominate the headlines.

The South African Government declared a national state of disaster at the end of March 2020
accompanied by various regulations to curb the spread of the virus. The hospitality industry was hard
hit by regulations such as the limitation on the size of meetings and gatherings, interprovincial and
international travel and a ban on alcohol consumption. According 1o the annual Tourism report issued
by Statistics South Africa (Stats SA) on 28 April 2021, the volume of tourists decreased by 72.6% from
10.2 million in 2019 to 2.8 million in 2020. The decrease In tourists has been exacerbated by a cautious
corporate market and the sluggish roll-out of the vaccine programme in South Africa. As at 15 November
2021, only 22.3% of the South African population were fully vaccinated against the Coronavirus,

compared to the World average at 41%.®

Macro-economic environment
According to the South African Reserve Bank monetary policy statement of 23 September 2021, the

COVID-19 pandemic. will continue to result in poor economic outcomes until populations develop
sufficient immunity to curb virus transmission. Forecasts from the IMF showed global Gross Domestic
Product (GDP) growth of 6% this year. The domestic economy is expected to grow by 5.3% in 2021,
followed by a muted 1.7% In 2022 and 1.8% in 2023. Investment will remain constrained by the still
limited energy supply and ongoing policy uncertainty. The faster vaccine rollout presents upside to the
growth outiook. ¥ There are, however, early indications of & fourth Covid-19 wave in South Africa,
which could again place a dampener on the hotel’s occupancies early 2022,



JIA Piazza Park Proprietary Limited
Registration number 1998/04849/07
Corporate Plan for the four-year period April 2022 to March 2026

Hotel industry

The hotel is usually compared to other five star properties in the Sandton area, considering the Gautrain
link, which provides direct access from O.R. Tambo International Airport to the Sandton Gautrain
station. The Smith Travel Research (STR) Hote! Benchmark statistics normally provides insight into
trading for the hospitality industry in South Africa. Since the COVID-19 outbreak, this comparison has
become largely irrelevant, as many properties across the star grading spectrum closed for varying
periods. This makes any meaningful comparison difficult. Observation of trading for Gauteng based 5-
star properties in the Tsogo Sun Hotels group shows that IC OR Tambo had the benefit of a more
consistent base business and was more resilient. The hotel commanded better rates as well and
remained open for all the months to date. Other 5-star properties have been closed since April 2020
and others were opened sporadically. This does place IC OR Tambo in quite a unique position in the
local hotel industry.



JIA Piazza Park Proprietary Limited
Registration number 1998/04848/07
Corporate Plan for the four-year period April 2022 to March 2026

3,

SWOT analysis

An analysis of the hotel's strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats are set out in the table

below.
Strengths Weaknesses
1. Prime location of hotel, being less than 70 metres 12. Cashflow restrictions resulting in deferred Capltal
_ from the O.R. Tambo Intemational Arrivals Hall. Expenditure projects.

2. Ideally placed for cargo crew related business. 13. Gautrain operating hours not 24 hours per day and

3 Tsogo Sun’s 50 years of intellectual capital, percelved to be expensive.
industry presence, buying power, strong 14. Praperty room types limited to 3.
partnerships with local market, commercial 18. Dependence on the corporate segment.
platforms, people value system, training access. 18. Dependence on intemational guests.

4. The InterContinental brand assoclation, with an 17. Dacline in Groups and Conferences ovemight stay.
international platform, brand standards, global 18. Lack of hotel specific parking for guests.
commercial chennels and presence, training 19. Only one Restaurant in Quills, with limited ssating
access. oapaclty

5. Quality of the physical product. 20. Limited IHG brand presence / marketing efforts

6. Dedicated team with talent, expsrience and locally.
stability. 21. The immediate local community to the hotel are not

7. Hesalthy guest satisfaction reviews. patrons of the hotel, due to price point not matching

8. Environmental inltiatives. locat disposable incoms.

9. Legal compliance. 22, Location restrictive to local leisure market

10. Excellent sound proofing of bedrooms due to triple promotions and campaigns
glazed glass encasing. 23. Dependence on airlift

11. Safety aspects around proximity to the airport as 24. Govemment rate cap for bedroom and conference
national key point for intemational airline crews facilities

Opportunities Threats / Challenges

1. The possible expansion of the property to include a | 8. Enduring Covid-19 pandemic, coupled with
second tower. Govemment Disaster Management i in the form of

2. Gautrain availability 24 hours per day. travel and trade restrictions

3. O.R. Tambo Intemational Alrport aerotropolis 9. Local and Intemational economic uncertainty,
expansion and associated commercial benefits. exchange rate fiuctuations and reduction in

4. Further IHG exposure — both locally and disposable income.

Internationally with regards to leveraging structures | 10. Internationa! “scares”, for instance xenophobic
in marketing, public relations, commercial Incidents, political unrest, virus outbreaks.
opportunities and technology developments. 1. Local corporate decline due to local travel

5. Further environmental initiatives with both cost and restrictions and policies.
carbon footprint reductions, 12. Upgraded airport facilities in Africa catering for

6. Positive changes with respect to South African direct intemational flights.

Government Visa regulation for foreign inbound 13. Additional beds In the area or new entrants to the
travellers. node.

7. Guests making use of conferencing venues for the | 14. Development of a fully-fledged 5 star offering.
purpose to provide mandatory services for 185. Security concems — generally regardmg airport
travellers in transit creating footfall for the locations globally.
restaurant 16. Lack of further cost efficiencies within the business.

17. Staff tumover due to competitor poaching.
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4,

Strategic goals and initiatives

The strategic goals and Initiatives for Piazza Park are set out in the tables below. The core business

of Piazza Park remains the operation of an effective hotel business, achieved through continued focus
on four strategic goals, around Product, Profitability, People and Marketing & Sales.

REVENUE GENERATION

E

Financial Sustainability

CUSTOMER FOCUS

Improve Customer Satisfaction

Rovenus Generation G Drive Guest Satisfaction Management Interventions
1. Dayofthe Week 1. Guest Satisfaction Index (GS) ; Recuiar i
o ey Targst of 110 ' lntegractions
2. OTA Sar_ne Day 2. Cleanliness & Breakfast Focus 2 Boost demand
, ;‘fGC';e"“ Ct?’d | 3.  COVID-19 Protocols | ot retentin
) romotiona
Packages of existing airlines
4, TravelClick/Mark l 3. Conference &
et Share Intel Hybrid Mesting
5. RFP bidding & o Ey Promotions
Conversions 4. GM & Sales
—— Manager Sales
Revenue Generation TSH Maintaln Property Quality & Cash Flow . ga::: -
. o everage
1. Travel Redefined 1. Reduce frequency of Repairs & Promotions
(TSH Web) Maintenance Services B. Walk-in Business
Offers 3. Bonded Capital Expenditure 7. Industry
3. Merchandising 4. Operate with Skeleton Staff Participant Visit
Opportunities
Goal Initiatives

Maintain product 1.
relevance to
customer

experience

{product cont.)

s

Maintain the physical product in the short term to cater to the customer, including hotel
operating equipment. In the longer term, consider major and minor refurbishments.
Initiatives are:

Hotel property and product audits (Both Tsogo Sun Hotels and IHG)

Capital expenditure plan review

Monthly operating equipment review and replacement
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e

4. Understand customers’ needs, perceptions and behaviours, to deliver experiences
relevant to them, thereby driving revenue. This is achieved through:
5. Satisfaction surveys in the form of Heartbeat (IHG) and TripAdvisor
6. Customer rewards programme (Both Tsogo Sun Hotels and IHG)
7. One-on-one Interaction
8. Customer relationship managers
9. Continued Investment in Technology that works for the customer and makes the
product work through guest facing systems, channel end customer relationship
management,
i 10. Maintain and develop accesslbillty to website and other booking channels
3
' Grow financial 11. Sustainable growth and retum on investment
profitabllity 12. Monthly and quarterly review of financial performance
13. Utilising revenue management systems available through Tsogo Sun and IHG
14, Benchmarking expenses against other five-star properties within Tsogo Sun Hotsls
Develop people 15. Our employees are core to delivering great customer experiences and we need to
understand their needs, challenges and aspirations. This Is achieved through:
16. Communicstion from the management team
17. induction programmes
18. Annual training needs identification and programme
19. Employee surveys and engagement programme
20. Performance management programmes '
{ 21, Anti-fraud, sthics and corruption hotline
22, Aftract and retain the highest calibre staff and redressing historical Imbalances
Marketing & Seles 23. Boost travel demand and awareness through:
24. Domestic leisiire and Government rates on Tsogo Sun Hotels Website
25, Reduced day conference packages targeted at/local businesses with budget
constraints
26. Pariner with Audio Visual companles to offer Hybrid Meeting Packages to boast
venue hire
27. Short term hire of banqueting venues
28. Food & Beverage campaigns targeted at the Alrport Node including comp set hotels
with limited Food & Beverage offering
28. Inter-Provincial expogure through local DMO's for inbound domestic in transit travel
30. GM and Sales Manager sales calls
31. Regular alriine partner interactions
32. Distressed airline business rate offers
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33. Ramp up operations corporate rate offer to airlines and companies resuming trade
34. Long stay reduced rate offer for clients in isolation

5. KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The key performance indicators are Included to gauge the efficacy of the corporate plan for the hotel

and are attached as Annexure A.

6. GOVERNANCE STRUCTURES

Composition of the Board of Directors

Ms Ntombifuthi Zikalala Mvelase (Chgirperson)
Non-executive Director

Qualifications: B Proc, LLB

Areas of expertise: Corporate Governance, Legal.

Date of appointment: 12 February 2018

Charles Masondzo Shilowa
Director

Qualifications: B.Sc. (Chemistry & Biochemistry), B.L
(Eng.) Chemical, Management Achievement Program, ‘
Masters of Business Administration, Higher Diploma in
Tax Law (HDip Tax), Post Graduate Certificate: Project
Finance, Corporate Finance and Private Equity

Areas of expertise: Project Management, Strategy
Development & Implementation, Mergers & Acquisitions,
Financial Analysis & Management and Stakeholder
Management

Date of appointment: 18 October 2021

Thembisa Fuzani

Director

Qualifications: B Com, B Com Accounting, B Compt
Honours, Certificate in Theory of Accounting, Certified
Chartered Accountant

Areas of expertise: Finance, Auditing, Financial and
Management Accounting, Audit Committee Management,
Capex Committee Chairperson.

Date of appointment: 15 July 2021

Livhuwani Tshikunde
Alternate Director

Qualifications: B Com (Economics), B Com (Hons)
Econometrics, MCom (Economics)

Areas of expertise: Treasury and Risk Management
Board of Trustee: ACSA Retirement Fund

Date of appointment: 15 July 2021

Aubrey Blom
Alternate Director
Qualifications: B Com

Areas of expertise: Property Management, Asset
Management, Facilities Management

Date of appointment: 15 July 2021

— _
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Members of management team

Ayanda Vernon Mazlbuko

General Manager

Qualifications: University of Cape Town — Graduate
School of Business, Hospitality Leadership Short

Course

Date of appointment: 3 June 2013

Julanie Fasen

Financial Controlier

Qualifications: Matric

Date of appointment: 1 February 1993

Ruan Nieuwoudt
Deputy General Manager

Qualifications: National Diploma in Hospitality
Management through The Capital Hotel School

Sonla Carreira
Quiality Assurance Manager

Qualifications: National Dipioma in Hospitality
Management '

Qualification: National. Diploma In Hospitality
Management through Vaal University of Technology

and NQF Level 4 - Generic Management

Date of appointment: 1 April 2021

Date of appointment: 18 June 2012 Date of appointment: 30 July 2010
Romeo Mlambo Kenneth Ngubane
Food and Beverage Manager Executive Chef

Quallfication: Diploma in Professional Cookery
HITB

Date of appointment: 15 March 2021

Qualificatlons: Matric

| Date of appolntment: 26 September 2016

Vacant Yvonne Prinsloo

Maintenance Manager Executive Housekeepsr
Qualifications: Qualffications: Standard 8

Date of appointment: Date of appointment: 1 March 2008
Martha Mbhele Lerato Rakgosi

Reservations Manager Sales Manager

Qualifications: B Com Marketing Management

Date of appointment: 1 January 2021
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Beauty Lebslo Tshepo Poo

Guest Relations Manager Front Office Manager

Qualifications: Matric Qualifications: National Diploma in Hospitality
Management

Date of appointment: 1 August 2018
Date of appointment: 1 June 2007

7. FINANCIAL PLAN

Projected Income Statement
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1A Pigzza Park (Ply) Lid Actusl Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast YonY% YonY% YonY¥% YonY%
IC - O.R.Tambo FY2021 Fy202z  FY2023  FY2024  FY2025| F22vF21 F23vF22 F20vF23  F25vF26
NCOME STATEMENTS - forecast RO00 R'00D R'000 R'000 RO00
Bl Bu |ER BB RE T HER BA BR S se R i““ﬂ
Cost of Sales (2.013) (3,888) (4,502) (6,005) (5.601) 83.7% 16.6% 19.2% 2.6%
Operating Expenses (31.031)  (48,781)  (53,550)  (57.388)  {61.227) 60.4% 78% 2% 6.7%
Boaripainiy bl AR Ba W B EE W TR B %'1
Caphal Cherges (2.591) (3.585) (3,985) (4.868) (4.726) 38.8% 10.8% 0.6% 8.2%
|Menagement Fees Pald (1.058) {2.335) (2.762) (3.180) (3527) 121.2% 16.3% 15.1% 10.0%
ELOT L EE OBR OBE 0 B 3E| W B 0w
Beols rent cusponded 88280 u.m [} [} ] 100% -100.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Supplementary rent (835)  (20437) 0 (] O] 89749%  -100.0% 0.0% 0.0%
EITI T BEE AR OBE TR BeET i wm
Deprecietion (5.561) (5.115) (4,805) (5.095) (8584 £0% £.1% 6.0% 202%
Deproeistion cherpe - ROV eeset {80,191  {(EB4%7  (BRAEM)  (BRIET) (8%, 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Ebst 1,164 6864 (0,714) (D5TE  (19286) 4B51%  seax 282%  483%
iProfit{Loss} on Disposel of Assels {138) ] 1] .0 0 -100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Earnings bsfore intersst and tax 1044 6854 (0714) (23575  (19286)) ETEEN  SaTA%  .232%  -18.3%
intsrest received / (paid) 205 200 200 200 200 26% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
indimeat eapane - sherelnidon losm & & 9 $ ] 00% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
ieTee CRIGIAS - lease BENIG) {9REANE)  (I0MEDN  [Me40R) (IS0  @iBaRe 5.0% 58% 5.7% 5.6%
axation 50200 51581 85217  ©6443 68,668 28% 28.4% 19% 3.2%
Minorities )} ) o ° )] 00% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Dhvidends 0 0 0 ] 0 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Net reteined sarnings {120073) (132638) (167,700) (170,854) (176,319) 2% 264% 19% 29%
Room Nights Soid 18,680 25777 28,355 30,585 32,005 54.5% 10.0% 78% 4.7%
Nights Available 50,370 50,370 50,370 50,508 60,370 00% 0.0% 0.3% 0.3%
Reom Occupancy 9% 51% 56% 61% 64% 54.5% 10.0% 75% 5.0%
Average Room Rete 2,013 2,645 2717 2,016 3,062 31.4% 50% 5.0% 5.0%
nue per Available Room 667 1,363 1,663 1,765 1,845 103.1% 15.5% 12.8% 10.3%
EBITDAR MARGIN (%) 14.6% 30.4% 33.0% 38.8% 3B3%]  106.5% 120% 8.3% 4.0%

Key assumptions ~

35. The forecast for FY2022 is based on the latest profit forecast for the property (PF2) which
includes six months’ actual results and six months forecast. This includes current maintaining
current cccupancy levels, without attempting to predict further Covid-18 waves. The average
room rate (ARR) projected is based on current FY2022 results.

€ The occupancy forecast for FY2023 assumes a moderate recovery of 10% year-on-year.
FY2024 occupancy increase by 7.5% and FY2025 by §%. The FY2025 occupancy at 64% is
similar to what was seen during FY2015 and approximately 10% lower compared to FY2019,

10
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The International Air Transport Association ({IATA) projects a 5-year recovery to return to 2019
business levels.

The ACSA Corporate Finance Strategist projects that passenger travel (Domestic and
international), after a period of 5 to 7 years, will be approximately 20% less than the footfall
reported for 2019.

Expenses are increased by CPl at4.5% during year one and considers the following exceptions
over the four-year period:

Electricity increasing by 15% in FY2023 to settle on 12.5% by FY2025

Water increasing on average by 8% per annum

Suspended Base Rent for FY2021 and FY2022 but reinstated from FY2023.

Any Supplementary rent declared is based on cash flow availability and is also influenced by
Capex requirements.

Financial Scenario’s

The low, middle and high road scenarios prepared, are indicative forecasts on possible trade influenced

by assumptions that may impact the business.

The Corporate Plan is based on the "Middle Road" scenario.

11
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SCENARI

O 1-"LOW ROAD"

JIA Piazza Park (Pty) Ltd Forecast Forecast Forecast  Forecast
IC - O.R.Tambo FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
INCOME STATEMENTS - forecast Rm R'm Rm Rm
Sieaiss g S SR o,
755-_§‘- fe 2 > X ..- ST d?:_:'-?;l
EBITDAR Margin 4.8% 2.8% 4.1% 6.5%
Occupancy % 34% 359% 36% 389
ARR 2,415.31 2,463.62 2,556.00 2,683.80

This model assumes:

1 National State of Disaster implemented by the South African Government still in place
2 Covid-19 Pandemic continues to have a major impact in the country

3 The economy is stagnant with limited to no growth
4 Business is trading in an Inflationary enviroment with increases in reserve bank Interest rates impacting

CPl

5 Future Covid-19 infection waves would impact trade restulting from associated restrictions

6 Ppossibility for Lock-Down regulations restricing local and international travel, prohibiting the sale of

alcohol and closure of restaurants
7 Iimpact of air traffic movement

RISK:

1 Catastrophic impact of lockdown returning to Alert Levels 3to 5

2 Depressed economic climate
3 Travel restrictions imposed by foreing countries
4 Local and/or International political conflict

12
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{ i A B RA » A

- ' 1\7[5\\, ' 2 A JA

JIA Piazza Park (Ply) Ltd Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
IC - O.RTambo FY2022 Fy2023 FY2024 FY2025
INCOME STATEMENTS - forecast Rm Rm R'm Rm
S S G R A R e R
T 10 NG PRAEERSIS - S1 el (1360 0 105 it reis Cile) e i) W
EBITDAR Margin 30.1% 33.9% 36.8% 38.3%
Occupancy % 51% 56% 61% 64%
ARR 2,644.75 2,776.99 2915.84 3,061.63 .
This model assumes:

1 National State of Disaster implemented by the South African Government still in place but to a lesser

extend

2 Covid-19 Pandemic still common but are starting to have less of an impact on the country

3 Miarginal economic growth

4 Business Is trading in an inflationary enviroment with increases in reserve bank interest rates impacting

CPi

5 Decrease in Covid-19 infection waves

6 Lock-Down regulations limited to curfues and wearing.masks

7 Minimal restrictions in air traffic movement

RISK:

1 Worsening conditions around Covid-19 Pandemic i.e. further mutations and related Impact of various

Disaster Management Alert Levels

2 Depressed economic climate

3 Travel restrictions imposed by foreing countries
4 Local and/or International political conflict

13
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SCENARIO 3 - "HIGH ROAD"

JIA Piazza Park (Pty) Lid Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
iC - O.R Tambo FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
INCOME STATEMENTS - forecast Rm R'm Rm Rm

JE S R N0 R

f“% e 5 -wﬁvof‘h":-\ :-T‘F-Jf T \‘—f'
FrAs !F =) 1E

| =t S LB BT ittt 'f.""’.»"i""-;f:"i G |
EBITDAR Margin 30.1% 41.2% 43.7% 45.0%
Occupancy % 51% 60% 65% 68%
ARR 2,644.75 3,041.47 3,193.54 3,353.22

This model assumes:
1 National State of Disaster lifted
2 Covid-19 becomes indemic, similar to the flu managed by annual flu injections
3 Paositive economic growth
4 Stable inflationary environment with moderate CPI growth
5 Lock-Down regulations lifted, all things being equal, trade returns to "business as usual”
6 No restrictions in air traffic movement

=

RISK:
1 Covid-19 Pandemic still prevalent hindering business to return to normal

2 Depressed economic climate
3 Local and/or International political conflict

i4
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Projected Balance Sheet

|A Piazza Park {Ply) Lid Actual Forecasi Forecasi Forecast Forecast YonY% YonY% YonY% YonV%
IC - O.RTambo FY2021 FY2022 Fv2023 FY2024  FY2025| F22vF21 F23vF22  F24vF28  F25vF24
ALANCE SHEET - forecast R000 R000 R00 R00D R000
l;n-cmrom Azzels
Property and plant 34,613 32,035 33,964 43,802 50,020 -7.4% 6.0% 26.2% 4.0%)
Operating equipment 6,985 7.100 7,601 7,001 7645 1.6% -4,4% 0.0% 0.2%
Intanglbls assets 2 20 20 20 20 43.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
R & PR
[ 84,863
184208 1832052 4,840,708 1957877  1,974021 0.5% 0A% 09% 5%
0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Current Asssts 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Inventories 1,027 1,027 1,982 1,334 1,485 0.0% 15.1% 12.9% 8.8%
Trade and other receivables 3,843 6,600 7397 8,161 8,800 67.4% 12.1% 10.3% 7.8%
Current tax receivable 0 0 0 [} 1] 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Any other currenl assats 0 0 0 0 0 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% []
Cash and cash equivalents (21,200)  (74,456)  (128,302) 122%  -192.8% 251.2% 7
(2022)  {eassh)  (190,037) 203%  A414% 44T Y
4 ABRE DD A% Wl
ity
Retained eamings opaning (93,323} {222,396) (355,034) (522,734) (693,588) 138.3% 59.6% 47.2% 32.7%
Profit for the year (120073) (132.638)  (167,700)  (170854) (176.319)‘ 28% 26.4% 1.9% 3.2%
(222,308}  (355034) (822.734) (es3j5e8)  (899,806) 59.6% &1.2% 2% 25A%
Non-current lisbilities
SHI working capital loan 1,500 1,600 1,600 1,500 1,500 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
h PERLE St RIESI95  24B0.ER 400,087 B5AAEE Ll T 8. 3% EY
2456805 2202091 2494807 2545962 2,683,041 5.8% 5% 56% 64%
lCurvent liabiities
[Trade snd other payablas
Sharsholder loan dus to cash shortage [ [ [ [ [ 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%|
Deferred romt 0 ° 0 0 0 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Trade payables 4,572 4,801 5,235 5,776 6,228 5.0% 8.1% 10.3% 7.8%
Accrued expenses 7.328 7,329 8,214 6,062 8,772 0.0% 12.1% 10.8% 7.8%
Accrued payroll expense 318 334 850 388 386 B5.0% 50% 5.0% 5.0%
Sundry creditors 7 73 200 200 200 0.0%  175.4% 0.0% 0.0%
Sundry creditors - tips A7 A7 150 150 180 0.0% 222.0% 0.0%
Supplementary rent due fo ACSA 10,000 20,437 20,437 20,437 20,437 104.4% 0.0% 0.0% 1
Deposits received 1,085 1,500 2,500 2,625 2,756 7.0% 66.7% 5.0% 5
Olhgr payeables {incl. VAT F21} 8,506 185 174 182 i1 88.1% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0..
Current tax payable 448 o 0 Q 1] -100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Provisions {ST1 and isave) 1,468 1,578 1,657 1,740 1,827 7.5% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%
33,854 36,264 38,018 40,541 41,948 7.4% 7.3% 42% 35%
5 5h [IRY o
Key assumptions =
The following broad key assumptions apply to the balance sheet:
1. Fixed assets movement — based on the Capital Expenditure plan (covered in more detail under

section 7)
Current asseis movement — reflects trade
Trade creditors, provisions and accruals movement — based on inflation related growth In

balances.
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4, The re-instatement of the current lease agreement from FY2023 results as a negative cash

position under Current Assets.

Projected Cash Fiow statement

JA Plazza Park {Pty) Ltd Actual Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast
IC - O.R.Tambo FY2021 FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
CASH FLOW - forecast RO00 R000 R000 R000 R000
Cash from trading 65,012 71,176 33,288 40,717 46,514
Movement in working capital 4,897 (869) 1,031 (79) {816)]
Cash from operations 70,808 70,207 34,319 40,638 45,698
Interest 205 200 200 200 200
Tax 504 610 771 785 810
Cashflows from investing activities (409) {2,537) {6.735) (15,022) (12,112)}
Free cash 71,100 68,480 28,555 26,601 33,007
Financing activities (59,998) (65,997) (72,597) (79,857) (87,843)L
Opening cash 9,159 20,360 (74,456
S T T N M ()

8. DIVIDEND POLICY

The Piazza Park practice is not to issue any dividends.

10. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE PLAN

The Capltal Expenditure (“Capex”) plan is reflected in the annual budget and divided into Hotel
maintenance capex, Development capex and Information technology capex. The annually approved
Capital Expenditure programme is funded through surplus cash generated by Piazza Park.

16
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Hotel maintenance Capex includes the replacement and addition of fixed assels required during the
normal course of business. In the case of Piazza Park this also includes capital expenditure required to
maintain IHG standards.

Health, Safety and Development Capex compfises non-recurring projects and typically covers the
refurbishment of bedrooms, public areas, meeting rooms, restaurant and kitchen. This category also
includes major plant, machinery and structural changes or additions to the property as well as health
and safety compliance related capex.

For the annual forecast period covered by the Corporate Plan (F23 to F25), health & safety and
compliance related items have been considered, as well as the overdue soft refurbishment of the public
area and restaurant (R3.4m in FY2023), a potential bedroom refurbishment (R7m in FY2025) and a
spa refurbishment (R1m in FY2025). The respective refurbishments will become critical in ensuring that
the product remains relevant to the guest and the hotel remains the airport hotel of choice.

information technology Capex refers to the replacement and improvement of the technological
infrastructure in the hotel, including both hardware and software.

Capital Expenditure plan— K000 | FY 2022 | FY2023 | FY2024 | FV2026 Notes
Replacement programme based |

Capex 2537 1.575 1,782 1980 | " 2.0% of rooms revenue for
FY2022 to FY2025.

Health, safety and Development Nil 4910 | 12000 | 10502 | Health and safety related tems.

Capex

Informaition technology Capex 379 250 250 250 | Break and replace programme.

| Total capex additions Y 6735 | 15022 | 12712
Total capex as % of EBITDAR 0.0% |  20.2% 36.9% 27.3%

17
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* The Health, Safety and Development capex plan for the period under review is detailed below:

JIA Plazza Park (Pty) Ltd Actual Forecast Forecast Forscast
IC - O.R.Tambo FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025
HEALTH, SAFETY AND DEVELOPMENT CAPITAL EXPENDITURE R000 R'000 R'000 R000
FY2022 _ FY2023 _ FY2024 _ FY2025
Alr Handling Units x 4 @ R160000K 14% escalation Cost - 760 800 €50
Replace Chilled Water Pumps x 2 Moved to F20 R76000 x 14% escalation cost - - - -
Fire Evacuation Public Address System - - 2,600 -
Public Area and restaurant Softs Refurb including tables and chairs - 3,400 . .
Spa Refurbishment (4 Treatment rooms @ R250k per room) - - - 1,000
Alrconditioning Fan Coll units in rooms (140 x R19000 per room) @ 21% Escalatio| - - 3,250 -
Service Lift Upgrade x 1 - - - 1,200
Sprinkler Head and Pipe Replacement - . - .
Bathrooms (Stucco marble, extraction and doors) - - 4,140
Guest Lift Upgrade . - - 2,200 -
Bedroom Refurbishment - - - 7,000
Replace bedroom doors - - . 652
Comidor carpets - 750 - -
TOTAL - 4,910 12,990 10,502

1. BORROWING PROGRAMME

Piazza Park is and intends to remain self-funded.
The management agreement determines that board approval is required for any borrowings, other than
reasonably incidental to the ordinary course of conduct of the hotel business (clause 6.7.1. of the

management agreement).

12. © FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND SUSTAINABILITY
A two-year rent suspension for FY2021 and FY2022 was granted by ACSA to Piazza Park as a result

of the Covid-18 impact on the business. The current lease agreement adversely impacts the going
concern status of Piazza Park into FY2023 and beyond.

Alternative solutions were presented to the Piazza Park Board by Tsogo Sun management during the
November 2020 Board Strategic Session and will be updated for the same in November 2021. The goal
is for Piazza Park and ACSA to agree on a sustainable rent agreement, which sufficiently address the

technical going concern issue.

18




JIA Piazza Park Proprietary Limited
Registration number 1998/04849/07
Corporate Plan for the four-year period April 2022 to March 2026

13. RISK AND FRAUD PREVENTION PLAN

The Risk and Fraud Prevention Management Plan for the IC OR Tambo hotel operations falls under

the auspices of the Tsogo Sun Hotels programme and includes the following:

1. Risk management is covered as part of the monthly Regional Operational Commitiee (OpCo)
reviews where applicable. This level of management remains responsible for ensuring that
risks are appropriately identified, assessed, mitigated / managed and reported on.

2. Operational risk management includes the following five areas:

3. Fires and fire protection

4. Security

5. Fraud / theft

6. Safety

7. Organisational resilience programme (ORMS)

1. The Tsogo Sun audit and risk forum meets twice a year and is attended by both the internal
(GRIPP Advisory) as well as the external auditors (PwC).

2. An internal audit programme is conducted by GRIPP Advisory and includes compliance as well
as risk-based reviews.

3. An internal audit programme is conducted by ACSA Internal Audit and includes compliance and
risk-based reviews.

4, Annual audit performed by The Auditor General of South Africa and includes compliance and
risk-based reviews.

5. The Best Practice Operating Procedures (BOP) committee assist in the communication and
training of the operating procedures. o

6. A comprehensive internal control questionnaire to enable unit management to assess the
control environment is completed monthly by the heads of department.

7. Balance sheet reviews are conducted by the regional financial support structure at least twice
per year.

8. The Tsogo Sun Hotels ethics line service provider, namely Tip-Offs Anonymous, is managed
by Deloitte.

14. OTHER SUPPORTING PLANS
Human Resource and Employment Equity Plan

People are at the core of delivering a Tsogo Sun Hotels experience, both front and back-of-house. A
pool of qualified, trained and talented people is required to deliver these experiences, supported by
empowered management and relevant support services.

The focus areas for Human Resources include amongst others:
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JIA Piazza Park Proprietary Limited
Registration number 1998/04849/07
Corporate Plan for the four-year period April 2022 to iarch 2026

1. Human capital management — attract and retain the highest calibre staff and redressing
historical imbalances, where they may exist.

2. Employee development — All training and development activities are integrated through Tsogo
Sun Hotels. Tsogo Sun was re-awarded accreditation as an official training provider.

3. Employee engagement — Engagement surveys for FY2021 and FY2022 were deferred due to
the practical impact of Covid-18 and thereafter are undertaken annually.

4, Employee wellness — Tsogo Sun is committed to the weliness of our employees and provides

services through employee assistance helpline and wellness days.
5. Health and safety — Safety inspections through the ORMS audit process.

Environmental Plan

The environmental plan for Piazza Park is governed by the various Tsogo Sun Hotels initiatives. Tsogo
Sun Hotels made the commitment to reduce the impact that the business has on the environment and
to encourage guests to embrace greener behaviour for the wellbeing of the environment.

The objectives of the environmental programme are met through a property-specific environmental

management system aimed at:

1. Energy

2 Water

3. Waste management

4 Responsibie procurement

Energy and water consumption Is measured monthly and reviewed at the quarterly Energy Steerco
meetings and corrective measures are put in place where required. The programme is managed as part
of the Organisational Resllience Management Standard audit process and is verified.by the German

quality body, DQS-UL Group.
Marketing and Communication Plan
Both the Tsogo Sun Hotels and interContinental brands are well recognised locally and internationally.

IC OR Tambo is uniquely positioned to benefit from the InterContinental brand’s global recognition and
at the same time have access to Tsogo Sun's local marketing and communication platform.

Marketing exposure includes:

» Web based and social media exposure

® Billboards

° Radio

. Loyalty programmes (Tsogo Sun Rewards programme and IHG Rewards Club)
References:
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JIA Piazza Park Proprietary Limited
Registration number 1998/04849/07
Corporate Plan for the four-year period April 2022 to March 2026

https://www.tsogosun.com/
hitps:/iwww .ihgpic.com/about-us/our-global-presence

https:/ourworldindata.ora/covid-vaccinations ?country=OWID_WRL
https:llwww.resbank.oo.zalcontentldamlsarb/gublicationélstatementslmonetar\f—polit:y-
statements/2021/statement-of-the-monetary-policy-committee-september-
2021IStatement%ZOof%ZOthe%ZOMonetarv%20Policv%'ZOC'ommittee%ZOSgp_tember%20202

1.pdf
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AIRPORTS COMPANY SOUTH AFRICA GLOBALS3

OVERVIEW AND BACKGROUND

Domiclled in Mauritius, ACSA Global Limited (‘fACSA Global") is a wholly owned subsidiary of Airports Company
South Africa. ACSA Global held a 10% interest in Mumbai intemationel Airport PVT Limited ("MIAL"), en Indian
-company lead by the GVK group — 50. 5%; Bldvest Mauritius 13.5% and Airports Authority of India 26%. The
consortium was awarded a 30-year concession plus 30-year renewal option to develop, operate and manage
Chhatrapati Shivajl international Airport (“CSIA”) in Mumbai, India. In addition to the 10% Investment, ACSA Global
was also the designated alrport operator with an agreement, including a performance guarantee, for the duration
of the concession. It also provided technical support to the airport at market related rates.

On 21 January 2019, ACSA received a binding offer of INR 8.25 blllion (c.ZAR1.78 billion) from the Adani Properties
Private Limited ("APPL") to purchase ACSA Global Limited entire 10% shareholding in Mumbai International Airport
Private Limited ("MIAL"). This offer triggered GVK's right of refusal to acquire Airports Company South Africa’s
shares in MIAL as prescribed in the Shareholders Agreement ("SHA"), which GVK exercised. GVK was, however,
unable to consummate the transaction and in August 2020 they abandoned their plan to acquire ACSA shares in
MIAL. GVK instead decided to sell 100% of its MIAL sharehoiding to Adani Airport Holdings Limited ("AAHL"), a
subsidiary of APPL. Adani then resumed its plans to acquire ACSA’s shareholding in MIAL at a revised price of
INR 6,750 billion (c.ZAR1.528 blilion) due to the impact of Covid-18 on MIAL and the aviation fndushy in general.
Airports Authority India ("AAI") imposed on MIAL a Technical Services Agreement (‘TSA”) with ACSA to provide
technical support to AAHL as one of the conditions precedent to the share sale. The TSA was negotiated and

signed with AAHL -

‘The fransaction was concluded in the February 2021 and the sale proceeds were transferred to ACSA Global bank
account in Mauritius. ACSA is no longer the designated airport operator and has since terminated the performance

guarantee. .

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Board of Directors
Name Charles Shilowa
Posltion Director
-Age 48
Qualifications BSc, BSc (Eng) Chem, MAP, MBA, HDip (Tax)
Areas of expertise Investments and Business Development

‘! Date of appointment 31 March 2016 -~ gf," &

Standard Bank Trust Companty, Mauritius (SBTCM) was appointed as Corporate Dlrector on 1 February 2009.

"SBTCM also provides secretarial services to ACSA Global. The directors of SBTCM are as follows:
o  Mrs Mokshda Beehany

» Mrs Beatrice Siaw Fok Chow

¢ MrMark Hucker

e Mr Jonathan Charies Norman -

¢ Mrs Helen Ann Wilscn Munns

-

3 ACSA Global Is in the process of being wound up



OUR VISION

Through MIAL, the aim is to continue to develop CSIA into an efficient and sustainable multimodal hub, where
passengers from all over the world are delighted and made to feel welcome ina dynamic and inspiring environment.

OUR MISSION

Levarage the reputation gained at CSIA to grow the ACSA Global presence in India by seizing other international
investment, development and management opportunities. Advance Airports Company South Africa’s undertaking
to become the most sought-after airport partner in the world by growing Airports Company South Africa’s presence
in India and other selected markets and in the process allow Airports Company South Africa’s to diversify the asset
and income base at retums above that achieved in South Africa at acceptable levels of risk.

OUR VALUES

Our values are, PRIDE:

s Passion
¢ Results

¢ Integrity
s Diversity

+ Excellence

OUR MANDATE

The company is mandated to manage Airports Company South Africa’s investments and activities in MIAL.ACSA
Global is & special purpose vehicle created to ring-fence the MIAL investment and is bankruptcy remote from
Airports Company South Africa, except where explicit support is provided.

OUR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

The objective for ACéA Global is fo optimally manage the investment in MIAL and focus on growing consultancy
income at CS1A and NMIAL.

OUR STRATEGIC ANALYSIS

Strategic focus areas

« Strengthen and grow Airports Company South Africa’s global presence
- k.\

« Optimally manage the investment in MIAL.

« Maximise the income earming opporiunity available to Airports Compaﬁy South Africa as designated airport
operator of CSIA.

« Build a quality portfolio of airport investments in india.

« Share knowledge and gain experience
Swot analyses -

Strengths:
e

¢ Airports Company South Africa growing global reputation

» Strong govemance and shareholding of Airports Company South Africa !

« Reliance on the Airports Company South Africa balance sheet to fund investment op;;ort_unities

+ Build on the solid relationships betwaen the South African and Indian government



>

»  Strategic partnership with GVK; Bldvest Group and Alrports Authority of India.
e Veto rights available to minority shareholder

Weaknesses:
s Investment Holding Company funded by Alrports Company South Africa
e Overtime, the personnel presence of Alrports Company South Africa et MIAL has been eroded,

o Control of MIAL by GVK being a family-owned business.

Opportunities
e Right of first refusal should any other shareholder dispose equity

o  Aerotropolis development around CSIA and development of NMIAL airport
s Skills development and training offering to Mumbai and other Indian airporis
+ Brand establishment by Airports Company South Africa in india.

e Sale of equity together with Bidvest

Threats
o CSIA reaching full capacity and growth limited thereafter

s Unfavourable Regulatory outcome
« Financial position of GVK and purchase by lenders or another

Performance against pre-determined objectives

KPI's (2021 - 2023)

Strategic Objective KPis Target Date
Revenue diversification Generate revenue from the Annually
) investment




Annual performance plans

Projected Income Statement 2021 — 2024

Forocast
2020721 2021/22 2022123 202324

R'm R'm R'm R'm

INCOME

Non-aeronautical Revenue

Other commercial revenue

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENDITURE

Operational expenditure
OPERATING INCOME

Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains
PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST & TAX
Net interest received /(paid)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Taxation

_PROFIT AFTER TAX

Projected Assets Valuation 2021 — 2024

2020 : 2021/22 2022/23 2023724

iﬁfﬁ?m, : R'm R'm R'm
ASSETS T
Other non-current assets l * - - -
Investments {Note 1) 5 = - - -
Current assets 4319 - . .
Receivable and prepayments 129 - - -
Current tax receivable ; 9 . - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 1 281 ) ) )
TOTAL ASSETS ;1319 - - -
Note 1

The investment value is increasing by the 2% deprsciation of the ZAR to the Indian Rupee. However, for Airports
Company South Africa Group accounting, this value is influenced by share of profits and real estate valuation
both of which are not assumed to contribute to the value noted above.

Borrowing Plan 2021 - 2023

ACSA Global is funded by a shareholder loan from Alrports Company South Africa.



MATERIALITY, LEGAL & FINANCE FRAMEWORKS
The company subscribes to Alrports Company frameworks:

» Risk management Framework
»  Fraud Prevention Plan

¢ Communication Plan

s Delegated Levels of Authority

CONCLUSION

The pending sale of MIAL shares to GVK would yield a profit of almost ZAR1 billion tb Alrports Company South
Africa based on MIAL investment current camrying value. This will leave ACSA Global domant and availabls for
other investment aclivities.

if the sale Is not succassful, the MIAL investment remain attractive, as evidenced by the current offer, and is likely
fo appreciate in value once Navi Mumbai, MIAL's new alrport concession, is operational.



OVERVIEW & BACKGROUND

AMSIS’s future Is uncertain as it is likely to be wound up efter disposing of its ordinary shares in ACSA back to
ACSA and currently exists only as an investment holding vehicle for Manco Trust, the following values, objectives
and nature of its mission have been based upon those of its ultimate parent company — Airports Company South
Afiica Ltd SOC (ACSA).

CORPORATE PROFILE

AMSIS was formed under the Companies Act to hold Investments (specifically ACSA ordinary shares) for Airports
Company Share Incentive Scheme Trust, which is iRs holding company.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
o Company Secretary: iMs Sinenhlanhila Kwela
Age: - 31
Qualifications: - BA (Legal siudies & Pollilical Science)
Areas of experiise: Govemance and assurance, stakeholder relations and secretarial.
Date of appointment - 13 February 2018.
OUR VISION
To assist ACSA in achieving its vislon of being 2 World Leading Airport Business.
OUR MISSION
To assist ACSA in achieving its mission of managing World Class Airports for the benefit of all its stakeholders.
OUR VALUES

To assist ACSA in living its values of Passion, Results, Integrity, Diversity and Excellence (PRIDE).

OUR OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

AMSIS exists only as a special purpose vehicle for Manco Trust and it holds ordinary shares in ACSA as an
investment on behalf of its holding company, Manco Trust. The ACSA shares were purchased via an interest-free
financing loan from ACSA which is still outstanding. The only other significant asset that it holds is a balance in a
current account at Nedbank, which is the residual amount retained for covering operating costs after paying out
all Manco Trust's beneficiaries in 2008/8.

AMSIS undertakes all financial transactions for and behalf of the Manco Trust via its board of directors, enabling
the Trustees of Manco to focus on strategic issues.

The only transactions that it has are the receipt of bank interest which is capitalised, the receipt or accrual of
ACSA dividends and the payment of taxation and audit fees.

OUR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

To administer its assets and service its liabilities in accordance with the Companies Act and the PFIMA and in the
interests of the Trust uniil it is wound up.



o

OUR KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

The performance is measured against its Memorandum of Incorporation (still the old Memorandum and Articles
of Association) and the relevant legislation.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLANS
Projected Income Statement 2022 — 2025

e Budget '_
2021/22 2022723 2023724 2024725
R R’ R’ R

Revenue

Finance Income 32902 35534 38 377

Expenditure

Bank Charges 6900- -7452 -8 048
“PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST & TAX - . :

Tex 5288 5711 -6 164

PROFIT AFTER TAX 20715 2237 24 161

Projected Balance Sheet 2022 - 2025

' Gudgel

2021122 2022/23 2023/24 202425
R R R’ R'
ASSETS
Other non-current assets 30 173 493 30173 483 30173 493
Investments 30 173 493 30173493 | 30173483
Current assets 16 373 324 16385605 16419 857
Receivables and prepayments 12 885 514 12885514 | 12885514
Cash and cash equivalents 3487809 3510 181 3534 342
TOTAL ASSETS 48 546 817 46560188 46 503 350
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capltal & reserves 17 145694 17168066 17192 227

Share capital and premium 40833 40833 40833
Retained eamings 17 104 861 17127233 | 17 151 394
Non-current iiabilities 30164 761 30 164 761 30164761 30 164 761
Borrowings 30008 247 30 098 247 30 098247 | 30088 247
Loan from Trust 4 66 51_4 66514 66 514 66 514
Current Habilities 763 630 763 639 763 639 763 639
Shareholder Loan - 746 968 746968 | 746 968 746 868
Deforred Taxonloss 8799 6799 | 6 799 6 7990
Provisional Tax account ) v 9 872 9872 9 872 9872
TOTAL LIABILITIES T e s26102 46 546 817 46560 188 46 593 350




Borrowing Plan - 2022 - 2025
AMSIS does not require funding for the Corporate Plan period.

P



LEXSHELL 342 INVESTMENT HOLDINGS (PTY) LTD

OVERVIEW & BACKGROUND

Lexshell 342 Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd (Lex 342), a special purpose entity, has been established as an employee
share option vehicle. It is wholly owned by the ACSA Kagano Trust.

The Trust has no beneficiaries and its future is uncertain as it exists only as a holding company for the assets held in
Lexshell 342 Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd (Lex 342) and Lexshell 343 Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd (Lex 343) which
was formed to hold ACSA share options should it list on the JSE (which has not occurred). Lex 343 is currently dormant.

CORPORATE PROFILE

ACSA Kagano Trust was formed under the Trust Property Control Act to administer ACSA’s staff share scheme and to
be a holding company for Lex 342 and Lex 343, which are SPV's, to hold investments for the Trust, specifically ACSA
ordinary shares and share options (should ACSA list on the JSE).

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Board of Directors
There are no currentiy appointed directors which is to be urgently addressed.
Company Secretary:
Ms Sinenhlanhia Khwela
o Age: - 31
Quallfications: - B.A. (Legal studies and Political Science)
Areas of expertise: - Govemance and Assurance, stakeholder relations and secretarial.

Date of appointment - 13 February 2018



OUR VISION

To assist ACSA in achieving its vision of being a World Leading Airport Business.

OUR MISSION

To assist ACSA in achieving its migsion of managing World Class Airports for the benefit of all its stakeholders.

OUR VALUES

To assist ACSA in living its values of Passion, Resulis, integrity, Diversity and Excellence (PRIDE).

OUR OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

Kagano was created {fogether with its two subsidiaries (Lexshell 342 and Lexshell 343) to hold ACSA shares on behalf of ACSA
employees who were beneficiaries of the Trust until they were paid out in 2013. Lexshell 343, currently dormant, was specifically
formed to hold ACSA share options should it list on the JSE (which has not occurred).

Kagano Trust is dormant and it has no beneficiaries and its future is uncertain. It has a loan owing to ACSA to fund the remainini,

beneficiary buyout which occurred in 2013.
i

ACSA has advised that it intends repurchasing its ordinary shares from Lexshell 342 and thereafter possibly winding up Kagano and
Lexshell 342 and Lexshell 343.

The only transaction that Lexshell 342 has is the annual audit fee, accrual of interest on its loans to ACSA (being an initial share-
purchase funding loan and loans for operating costs) and receipt or accrual of ACSA dividends Kagano's audit fee is accounted for in

Lexshell 342.

OUR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

To administer its assets in accordance with its Trust Deed in the interests of the Trust until it is wound up.

OUR KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR -

The performance is measured against the Trust Deed and the Trust Property Control Act.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLANS
Projected Income Statement 2022- 2025

Forecast Budget
© 2021022 202223 2023/24 2024125
-Rl Rs Rl R

EXPENDITURE

Operational expenditure - - - -
PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST & TAX . - . -
Finance cost 610351 659 179 711913 768 866
Fair value adj - - - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX -610 351 -659 17¢ -711 913 -768 866
Taxation - - - -
PROFIT /(LOSS) AFTER TAX -610.354 -652 179 -711 913 -768 866




Projected Balance Sheet 2022- 2025

Forecast
%;_’ 2021722 , 2022123 2023/24 202425
il'j ; R R R
ASSETS ; 5
Lo v 78842 78 B42 468 76 842 466
Other non-current assets 78842488 466
w .. 18766
Investments < “78765780 780 78 765 760 78765 780
Loan to Shareholder ... 76686 76686 76 686 76 686
. < 59020
Current as . 5020817 817 5929 817 §920 817
— 5029
nd other recelvabl
Trade a colvables 817 5920 817 5920 817
/otal assets 84 ;:g 84 772 283 84772 283
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Accumulated fund 45 g 44 341743 43572876
Share Capital 10t 100 100
Equity 45 :: 44 341 843 43572977
Non-current llabliities 39 ;;: 40 430 411 41199 307
Borowings 25 :g 25 880 106 26657 972
Defored tox 14 541 14 541 335 14 541 335
335
84772
TA ITY AND LIABILITIES
TOTALEQU 283 84 772 283 84772 283

" Borrowing Plan - 2022 2025

Lexshell 342 Is funded by loans from Airports Company South Africa SOC Lid.
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OVERVIEW AND BACKGROUND

Airport Consultancy and Advisory Services (“Airports Consuliancy”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Airport Company South Africa, was
created with the strategic intant to leverage our skills and capability. This in turn drives our vision to be the most sought-after partner
for the provision of sustainabie airport management solutions by 2030. Through Airports Consultancy we intend to grow our footprint
and monetise our intellectual property.

‘| Run Alrports
" Develop Airports
Grow Our Footprint

We have exiensive experience in developing, managing and operating alrporis, including during special events such as the 2010 FIFA
World Cup hosted by South Africa. We would like to monetise this unique expertise through the provision of consultancy services to
other airports, both within and outside of the country. We aspire o growing our footprint through investments in other airports and
increasing traffic volumes at all its nine airports in South Africa. The aim being to position itself as the preferred partner on the African
continent and other emerging markets

We have developed an array of technical and operational capabilities since inheriting fragmented and out-dated facilities on inception
in 1893. 1t successfully commercialised the nine-airport network, by delivering a major capacity uplift and refurbishment programme to
meet the requirements of FIFA 2010 World Cup.

Our operational compstencies are evidenced in the high Airport Service Quality scores routinely achieved across all our airporis.
Specialist skills in long-term airport planning and design, pavement design, construction contracting and management, operational
readiness and airport transfer (ORAT), and the design and implementation of baggage handling, fusl hydrant systems and other
processes have been developed in line with world leading practices.” '

Airports Consultancy leverages this experience through offering consultancy services, airport management and technical s¢ s
contracts, training and strategic investments.
Facts and figures
Airports Company South Africa:
o Qwns, develops and manages the nine main airports in South Africa
o Operates of Mumbai Interational Airport through an Airport Operator Agreement?
¢ Provides technical services to Guarulhos International Alrport through a Technical Services Agreement

¢ Holds a 10.2 percent shareholding in Guanilhos Intemational Airport (Sao Paulo, Brazil)®

4 MIAL share sale was concluded on 5 February 2021
5 Gru share sale is under consideration



VISION

To be the most sought-after partner for the provision of sustainable airport management solutions and investments and targeting
strategic airport investments in Africa and emerging markets. To successfully achieve this, we will collaborate with key stakeholders

through building sustainable and sirategic partnerships.

VALUES

Passion | Results | Integrity | Diversity | Excellence

o PASSION: We are passionate about our business, enabling people and cargo to be procsssed in a seamless manner
RESULTS: We are results-drive, everything we do have a visible and measurable impact on our customer.

L
e INTEGRITY: We trust and respect each other. Always doing the right thing.
¢ DIVERSITY: We embrace cultural diversity, promoting harmony. Blending our African culture and heritage to play on a global stage.

EXCELLENCE: We continuously review our business and strive to make It for efficient, continuously improving stakeholder and
customer experience.

MISSION

Capabﬁy and g‘,‘;apamty o | . . %- — . =
»  Weagre sble to dellver quelity and refiabls solutions

s Wehave the right solutions and value proposition
. We have the right team '

Degree of integration

s Leverage ACSA brand recognition across Africa e
. £58

. Strateglc partnerships in Africa end globally : '}.
+ Value creation for all stakeholders : ?‘

Building Elosks

B ™ T P -

@,}w, B e e - @

¥, Focussed * Developed |} wd Quality and i
E Initintives . .

Service . Lf -
A N
¢ Eswbished | Y Diverse |
] ACSAbrand | product  *

Intelligence, forged relationships, established partnerships, effective operating model, appropriate funding

model and formalized value proposition
Lonser term: Commoditised Airports Company South Africa’s service offering

MANDATE

To manage acquired alrport concessions, management and consulting opportunities.

Service Provision Opportunities

Based on strengths gained through operating and developing a portfolio of airports, our sefvice offering covers & variety of disciplines
and expertise areas. Services can be provided to external clients on short-term consultancy assignments or as long-term Technical

2



Services Agreements (TSA) and Management Contracts (elther stand-alone or part of concessions). The commercialisation of the
Training Academy will be integrated in the overall services offering, as it adds value to the proposition and our reputation.
Service framework

Service provision opportunities include any opportunity which allows us to profitably use our technical and operational expertise to
provide services to third parties. The primary service categories to be developed and offered are:

s+ Technical, Operational and Management Consultancy

e Technical Service Agreements (TSA)

s Airport Management Services

¢  Training

Airports Consultancy will actively provide the following sub-services:
Due Diligence

Airport Operations and Management

5

Customer Experience #
Operational Readiness and Airport Transfer (ORAT)

Project Management

Ajrport Planning and Design

Airport Business Planning and Deveiopment

o N O o LN

Commercial Advisory

FEEDBACK

PROSECT

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

The strategic objectives of the Business Development Division support the KPl Framework from the Airports Company South Africa
Strategy. Emphasis is placed on meeting the following objectives:

¢ Creating value for our shareholders; by carrying out high-margin consultancy and training services and participating in
investments with high return on equity;

« Divereifying our business portfolio; by increasing income from non-core activities, such as consuiting, training services and
investments, and increasing the share of non-aeronautical revenues;

« Providing equitable access to safe airporte in all South African regions to allow more people to fly; by supporting non-
Airports Company South Africa airports in South Africa.



Our strategic objectives speak to our “developmental mandate®, in the broader aviation industry, in South Africa and beyond. As a
leader In aviation in South Africa and on the African continent, we have a responsibility to support increased access to air transport for

all. This includes:

1.

Improving airport operations at non-Airporis Company South Africa alrports in South Africa, through consultancy, tralning and
management services. Our involvement should always support the socioeconomic benefits provided by the airport. Pricing of these
services should cover our costs, but considering the developmental mandate, profits may be limited. Equity participation in non-
Alrports Company South Africa airports in South Africa should not be pursued, unless part of a broader strategy to change airport

ownership in the country.

improving alrport operetions at non-Airports Company South Africa airports outside South Africa, through consultancy, training and
management services, as well as equity parficipation in selected airports. Our Involvement should always support the
socioeconomic benefits provided by the airport. Pricing of services provided should always cover costs, but profit levels can be
decided upon based on the South African Govemment's developmental cooperation approach with a particular country.

Proactively developing traffic through stimulation of demand to increase the number of people with access to air transport. This
spans industry engagements to identify and implement initiatives that may lower barriers, financlal or otherwise, to air trave! for

new or infrequent traveliers.

STRATEGIC ANALYSIS

Alrports Consultancy Is responsible for the development of investment opportunities and service provision opportunities.

Airports Company South Africa’s Strengths

ACSA manages airports from 100,000 to 20,000,000 . ACSA manages a fleet of airports for
passengers per year : the benefit of the Group
Experience In event management and transient Experience in developing routes

traffic spikes (World Cup both in SA and Brazil) and traffic in géneral

. . : Cultural knowdedge of reglon and
Aviation leadership in Sub-Saharan Africa ‘ developing markets

Management of Infrastructure backiog in _ )
rapidly developing market Government Owned. Privately managed.

We are well-positioned to win opportunities given our long and successful history of operating airports in South Africa. Our strongest
selling points include: '

Management of a large range of airport sizes, each of which has particular challenges and strengths. Currently, the airports cover
the range between 100,000 and 20,000,000 passengers per yeer. This means we have experience in operating everything from
small regional/domestic airports, to internationel gateways;

Management of a network of airports, and experience in developing the network for our benefit and the benefit of each constituent
entity;

Experience in operational readiness and airport transfer (ORAT). This is particularly important for investments or services relating
to an airport undergoing rapid expansion, or for green-field airports;

Management of infrastructure backlogs in rapidly developing markets;

A long history in implementation of routes and dealing with traffic developments in & particularly dynamic aviation environment;

We are established as the provider of de-facto leadership on aviation matters in SSA. We are well positioned to take advantage of
the rapid rate of change experienced in the majority of SSA countries, by providing transformational assistance to these states and

domestic investors;



o A developed cultural knowledge of the southemn African region, and of developing markets in general. Developing markets offer
unique and often intractable problems which we can assist airports and/or investors in navigating, eliminating or circumventing;

o Experience in event management from an airport perspective. Our successful experience in preparing their home airporis for the
2010 World Cup, and in guiding their investment in S&o Paulo through both the 2014 World Cup and (to a lesser extent) the 2016

Olympics.

Although many other entities offer similar experiences and capabilities, we are distinct in our ability to offer the whole spectrum. In

combination, they provide Airport Consultancy with a strong position to build on, and further elevate our brand.

PERFORMANCE AGAINST PRE-DETERMINED OBJECTIVES

Key Performance Indicators (2021 — 2025)

2021 2025

ROE 8% ROE 10% ROE

Non-core Income o R18million R200million

Support services providedtonon- | 2 Aliprovinces

Airports Company South Africa

airports in SA )

Support services provided to non- | 1 12

Airports Company South Africa

airports outside SA .

Strategic investments [0 4 B
ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLANS

Projected Income Statement 2021 — 2024

forecast Budget

[ 2020021 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

"R'm R'm R'm R'm
INCOME iy
Non-aeronautical Revenue
Other commerclal revenue - 30 40
TOTAL REVENUE - 30 40
EXPENDITURE i
Operational expanditure - 4 5
EBITDA . 26 35
Depreciation - - -
PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST & TAX - 26 35
Net interest received /(paid) - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAX - 26 35
Taxation - 7 10

- 25

PROFIT AFTER TAX

Borrowing Plan 2021 - 2023

19

Alrports Consultancy is funded through a loan by its holdings company, Airports Company South African Limited.



MATERIALITY, LEGAL & FINANCE FRAMEWORKS

The company subscribes to Alrports Company Govemance frameworks namely:
¢ Risk management Framework

¢ Fraud Prevention Plan

¢ Human Resources Plan

¢ EEPlan

» Environmental Plan

e Marketing Plan

e Communication Plan

s Procurement Plan

s Delegated Levels of Authority



CURRENT STATUS & THE WAY FORWARD

' &2 ' _
Appointment of ENS to provide an opinion on the current operating model for provision of airport
consultancy and advisory and to propose an appropriate governance structure based on ACSA’s
____subsidiary framework
2. Appointment of ACAS Board members
3. ENS opinion and advisory report tabled on ACASs Board meeting
4. Submission of the ENS Report to EXCO and BIC for noting and/or approval

MEXTSTepSHoranescar:
1} ST

‘Financialyear |

A |
ACAS Board members | FY2021

ppoent of multidisciplinary project team to lead

2 | A
corporatisation, capitalization and commercialization of
ACAS

3. | Development of a business case by the ACAS team to Project team FY2022
motivate for the appointment of a reputable and
experienced service provider to conduct feasibility and
market studies for commercialization of ACAS

4. | Appointment of the service provider to conduct feasibility SCM FY2022
and market studies
5. | Submission of the feasibility and market studles to ACAS Project team FY2022

board




SAKHISIZWE COMMUNITY PROGRAMME NPC

OVERVIEW & BACKGROUND

Sakhiglzwe currently exists only as a financial assistance vehicle Intended to provide bursaries and scholarships to academically
deserving applicants from previously disadvantaged background, requiring financial assistance to enable them to pursue careers in the
aviation industry. The financlal assistance is provided in a non-profit manner and with an altruistic and philanthropic intent.

The Company's sustainability for the foreseeable future is uncertain as it is likely to run out of funds end be required to wind-up.

CORPORATE PROFILE

Sakhisizwe, which is 100% owned by Airports Company South Africa, is a non-profit company which was formed under section 21 of
the Companies Act No. 61 of 1973,

Date of appointment

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Board of Directors
o Director: (Chairperson) Ms Ele Tshikovhi
Age: 49
Qualifications: Master of Technology Degree in Human Resources Development
(UNISA)
Masters Diploma in HR Management Development (UNISA)
Executive Leadership Programme for GR Leasers (Stelienbosch
Business School)
Areas of expertise: Transformation, Human Resources
Date of appointment 14 May 2012
o Director: Ms Sharloshaney Perumal
Age: 52
Qualifications: IMM, Higher Certificate in Resource Management, Professional Management Diploma,
MBA
Areas of expertise: Marketing, research and development
Date of appolintment 10 May 2021
o Director: Ms Ntombizethu Mngoma
Age: 35
Qualifications: LLB Honours Degree
Areas of expertise: Legal
Date of appointment 8 September 2017
o Director: Mr Thabo Johannes Phateng
Age: 45
Qualifications: Hons Industrial Psych
Areas of expertise: Human Resources Management and Airport Operations

19 May 2021



o Director: Mr Nkosinathl Mzwamahlubi Myataza
Age: - 55
Qualifications: - NHD Mechanical Engineering, GCC (Factories), BS¢c, Advanced Programme in Risk
Management, MSc in Operational Research, Post Graduate Certificate in Business Research Methods, Executive Development
Programme, Artificial intelligence: Implications on Strategy, Big Data and Social Analytics, The Fundamentals of Values-Based
Leadership, Africa Directors Programme, Professional Certificated Engineer {Mechanical); (Pr Cert Eng), Certified Risk
Management Practitioner; (CRM Prac), Certified Director; (Cert Dir™)
Areas of expertise:- Engineering, Operations Research, Risk Management, Corporate Govemance, Values-

Based Leadership, Arificial Intelligence

Date of appointment - 17 August 2021
o Company Secretary: Ms Sinenhlanhla Khwela
Age: - 32
Qualifications: - BA (Legal Studies and Political Science)
Areas of expertise: - Govemnance Assurance, Stakeholder Relations, Secretariat
Date of appointment - 23 May 2017
OUR VISION

To.assist Airports Company South Africa in being at the forefront of contributing to the advancement and transformation of the
aviation industry.

OUR MISSION

To provide bursaries or scholarships to deserving applicants from previously disadvantaged backgrounds, to enable them to pursue
careers in the aviation industry.

OUR VALUES

To assist Airports Company South Africa in living our values of Passion, Results, Integrity, Diversity and Excellence (PRIDE).

OUR OPERATING ENVIRONMENT

Sakhisizwe currently exists only as a financial assistance vehicle intended to provide bursaries and scholarships to academically
deserving applicants from previously disadvantaged background, requiring financial assistance to enable them to pursue careers in
the aviation industry.

The only transactions that it has are interest income and expenses in respect of bursaries or scholarships for successful bursars in

respect of their tuition, textbooks, accommodation etc. The company’s receipts are exempt from Income Tax in terms of section 10(1)
{cN) of the Income Tax Act No. 58 of 1962 (Income Tax Act).

OUR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

=  To enhance transformation in careers which coniribute significantly to the advancement of the aviation industry.
¢ To promote participation of previously disadvantaged women in highly technical aviation careers.

OUR KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR

= Number of sponsored bursars successiully completing their studies.



The Company's performance is measured against its Memorandum of Incorporation and the relevant legislation.

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE PLANS

11.1. Projected Income Statement 2022 —- 2025

Forecastf :
Actual . Budget e 3

2021/22 2022/23 2023724 202425
R R R R

Wy

L

REVENUE ;

Sponsorship Revenue I 2 581 025 2 787 507 3010 507

Other income ; 17 217 18 584 20 081

EXPENDITURE

Operational expenditure -2 634 161 -2 844 894 -3 072 485
“PROFIT (LOSS)

BEFORE INTEREST & TAX -35 920 -38 793 -41 897

Interest paid - - » -

PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX -35 920 -38 793 -41 897
Taxation - . .
“PROFIT (LOSS)

FOR THE YEAR -35 920 =38 793 41 897

11.2. Projected Balance Sheet 2022 — 2025

____oua

% : 2022123 2023/24 2024725
R R R

ASSETS
Current assets - 1768 970 - 4 595 270 -7 647 674

‘repayments 18 100 18100 18100
Cash and cash equivalents -1845684 ~4 671984 ~7724 388
Total Assets -1768 970 ~4595270 7 647674
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

. 5 812 773

Eaquiry 847075 085 261 731364
Accumulated Fund 84T 975 812 055 773 261 731364
Liabilities i 2581025 -5 368 532 8379039
Deferred Revanue - -2 581025 -5 368 532 -8 379039

Total Equity and Liabilities 847 975 -1 768 970 -4 595 270 -7 647 674




BORROWING PLAN - 2022 - 2025

Sakhisizwe does require funding for the 2022 - 2025 Corporate Plan period.



GENERAL INFORMATION

Country of incorporation and domiclle South Africa
Company registration number 2003/018801/07

Reglstered office and business address 2nd Floor, Bidvest House
18 Crescent Drive

Melrose Arch
Johannesburg

2196

Directors TJ Fuzani

FP Smit
W Kretzmar
B Matshego

Auditors PricewatsrhouseCoopers inc.

Level of assurance These annual financial statements have been audited in
compliancewith the applicable requirements of the
Companies Act of South Africa.

Preparation The annual financial statements were prepared under the
supervisionof FP Smit (CA)SA.



Directors’ Responsibllities and Approval

The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act of South Africa to maintain adequate accounting
records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial
information included in this report. it is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly
present the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations
and cash flows for the period then ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards. The
external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and
prudent judgements and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control
established by the company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment.
To enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal cont’
aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost-effective manner. The standards include the prope.
delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate
segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the
company and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the company's
business is conducted in 2 manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk
management in the company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk
across the company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the company endeavours to minimise it by
ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are applied and managed
within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the
system of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the
preparation of the annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide
only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the company's cash flow forecast for the year to June 30, 2022 and, in light of this
review and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the company has or had access to adequa*-
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the company's annual financial
statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the company’s external auditors and their
report is presented on pages 6 to 8.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 9 to 26 together with the directors' report on pages 4 to 5,
which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the board of directors on July 28,
2021 and were signed on their behalf by:

Nz



The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of Airport Logistics
Property Holdings (Proprietary) Limited for the year ended June 30, 2021,

1. Nature of business
The company is engaged in the investment of properties held for rental purposes.

There have been no material changes to the nature of the company's business from the prior year.

2. Financlial reporting

The directors are required by the Companies Act of South Africa to preduce financial statements, which fairly
present the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year and the profit or loss for that
financial year, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the interpretations adopted
by the International Accounting Standards Board, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the
Accounting Practices Committee and the Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial
Reporting Standards Council and in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa. The accounting policies have been
applied consistently compared to the prior year.

The directors are of the opinion that the annual financial statements fairly present the financial position of the
company as at June 30, 2021 and the resuits of their operations and cash flows for the year then ended.

Full detalls of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the company are set out in these
annual financial statements.
3. Dividends

No dividends have been declared duriné the current or prior year.

4, Share capital

¢ There have been no changes to the authorised or issued share capital during the year under review.

5. Directorate

The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:

Directors
TJ Fuzani
FP Smit

WH
KretzmarB
Matshego

There have been no changes to the directorate for the year under review.

6. Secretary

The company secretary is Bidvest Corporate Services (Proprietary) Limited.



10.

1.

Postal address: P OBox 87274
Houghton
2041

Business address: 2nd Floor
Bidvest House

48 Crescent
DriveMelrose
Arch 2196

Shareholders

The shareholders of the company are:

- Bidvest Property Holdings (Proprietary) Limited which holds 50% (2020: 50%) of the company's issued shar
capital.

- Airports Company South Africa Limited which holds 50% (2020: 50%) of the company's issued share capital.

Prescribed officer

The public officer of the company is FP Smit.

Litigation statement

There are no material legal or arbitration proceedings against the company (including proceedings which are
pending or threatened of which the directors of Airport Logistics Property Holdings (Proprietary) Limited are
aware) which may have a material effect on the financial position of the annual financial statements.

Covid-19 Impact

The directors have taken a proactive approach in attending to the various challenges arising due to #
international pandemic, Covid-19, and consequences such as the protracted National Lock Down. The i..0s.
significant impact was seen on rental income (discounts, deferrals, escalations, and vacancies) and immediate
pressure on capital growth. The Board has done an assessment and deem all fair market values to still exceed
carrying values even after factoring in the noted adjustments. The Company remains very well positioned to
navigate the current uncertain environment and ensure long-term sustainability for all stakeholders. With the
economic environment remaining volatile and weak, National Lock Down intact, the focus remain on cash
retention and strengthening the balance sheet over short-term earnings. This has been achieved during the
financial year.

Going concern

The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the
foreseeable future and accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. The directors have satisfied themselves that the company is in a sound financial position and that it has
access to sufficient borrowingfacilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are not aware
of any new material changes that may adversely impact the company. The directors are also not aware of any
material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes to legislation
which may affect the company.



Please refer to notes 8 and 10 of the annual financial statements for the special consideration given in respect
of shareholders loans and in support of the company being a going concern.

12. Subsequent events

The directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this
report.

13. Audltors

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. will continue in office in accordance with section 90(1) of the Companies Act
of South Africa. The appointment was approved by shareholders at the last Annual General Meeting.

14. Date of authorisation for Issue of financlal statements

The annual financial statements have been authorised for issue by the directors on July 28, 2021. No authority
was given to anyone to amend the annual financial statements after the date of issue.

MV AR TN



To the Shareholders of Airport Logistics Property Holdings (Proprietary) Limited

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Airport
Logistics Property Holdings (Proprietary) Limited (the Company) as at 30 June 2021, and its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

Whet we have audited
Airport Logistics Property Holdings (Proprietary) Limited’s financial statements set out on pages 9 to 26 comprise:

¢ the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021;

o the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

¢ the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

¢ the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

¢ the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

& Annexure A — Directors’ Emoluments

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of
Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable to
performing audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilledour other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IRBA Code and in aceordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits
in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ InternationalCode of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International
Independence Standards).

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc., 4 Lisbon Lane, Waterfall City, Jukskei View, 2090
Private Bag X36, Sunninghill, 2157, South Africa
T: +27(0) 11797 4000, F: +27 (0) 11 209 5800,

Chief Executive Officer: L S Machaba

The Company's principal place of business is at 4 Lisbon Lane, Waterfall Gity, Jukskei View, where e list of directors’ names is availabie for inspection.
Reg. no. 1998/012055/21, VAT reg.no. 4950174682,



The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the document titled “Airport Logistics Property Holdings (Proprietary)
Limited Audited Annual Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2021”, which includes the
Directors’ Responsibility and Approval and Directors’ Report as required by the Companies Act of
South Africa. The other information does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies
Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

€ITOr.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to hqmdate the Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error,as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the



overrideof internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
anopinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accountingestimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and,based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’sreport to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the andit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc.
Director: Pieter Pelcher
Registered Auditor
Johannesburg, South Africa

28 July 2021



Figures in Rand Notes 2021 2020
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Invesiment properties 3 134 647 139 267
256 259
Stralght-lining of leased asset 11183 754 7942 410
Deferred taxation 4 1514 479 1272 964
147 345 148482
489 633
Current Assets
Trade and other recalvables 5 287 021 553 500
Straight-lining of leased asset 516 456 -
Cash and cash squivalents 6 4 465 698 5777036
5269 175 6 330 536
Total Assets 152 614 154 813
664 169
Equity and Llabllities
Equity
Share capital 7 2 2
Retained income 97 026 951 76 963 156
97 026 953 76 963 158
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 8 695 383 681216
Amounts owing to group companies 2 27 413017 38 507 159
Amounts owing to other shareholders 10 27413 017 38 507 159
Curmrent tax payable 66 294 154477
55 587 711 77 850 011
Total Equity and Liabilities 152614 154813
664 169




Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Figures in Rand Notes 2021 2020
Revenue 40 455 400 37273751
Depreciation 11 {4 620 003) (4 620 003)
Other operating expenses {642 291) (2 983 622)
Operating profit 11 35193 106 29 670 126
Finance income 12 484 986 1001 939
Finance costs 13 (7 811 716) (10 097 972)
Profit before taxation 27 866 376 20 574 093
Taxation 14 (7 802 585) (5 760 746)
Profit for the year 20 063 791 14 813 347
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 20 063 791 14 813 347
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Statement of Changes in Equity

Share Retained Total equity

Figures in Rand capital income

Balance at July 01, 2019 2 62 149 809 62 149 811
Profit for the year - 14 813 347 14 813 347
Revaluation of land assurmed in terms of merger - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 14 813 347 14 813 347
Balance at July 01, 2020 2 76 963 160 76 963 162
Profit for the year - 20063 791 20 063 791
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - 20 063 791 20 0863 791
Balance at June 30, 2021 2 97 026 951 97 026 953
Note 7
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Statement of Cash Flows

Figures in Rand Notes 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 15 36 335 959 30 880
019
Interest paid (3 905 858) (5 048 986)
Interest received 484 986 1001 939
Taxation paid 16 (8 132 283) (6 027 906)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 24 782 804 20 805
066
Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments of amounts owing to group companies and shareholder (26 094 (26 451
142 0:
Net cash outflow from financing activities (26 094 (26 451
142) 014)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {1 311 338) {5 645 948)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 6§ 777 036 11 422
984
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 6 4 465 698 5777 036

12



1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these annual financial statements are set out below.

Basis of preparation

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with, and
in compliance with, International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee ("IFRIC") interpretations issued and effective at the time of preparing
these annual financial statements and the Companies Act of South Africa.

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost convention, unless otherwise
stated in the accounting policies which follow and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out
below. They are presented in Rands, which is the company’s functional currency.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.

Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management, from time
to time, to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and associated
assumptions are based on experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The critical judgements made by management in applying accounting policies, apart from those involving
estimations, that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements,
are outlined as follows:

Fair value of investment properties

The fair valuation of investment properties as at June 30, 2021 was performed using a discounted yield
valuation for the purposes of assessing impairment and/or residual values.

Investment properties

Investment properties is recognised as an asset when, and only when, it is probable that the future

economic benefits that are associated with the investment properties will flow to the Company, and the
cost of the investment properties can be measured reliably.

Iinvestment properties is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement.

13



1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

Investment properties (continued) Cost model
Investment properties is carried at cost less depreciation less any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write down the cost, less estimated residual value by equal instalments over
the estimated useful life of the property, taking into account the residual values, which is as follows:

ltem Useful life
Land - usufruct 40 - 90 years
Buildings and improvements 38 - 50 years

Residual values and useful lives of investment properties are re-assessed annually.

Subsequent expenditure relating to investment properties is capitalised when it is probable that future
economic benefits will be increased. All other subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

Profit or loss on the sale of investment properties is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Leases

The company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease, at the inception of the contract.

Company as lessor

Leases for which the company is a lessor are classified as operating leases.

Operating leases

Lease payments from operating leases are recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Operating lease income is included in revenue.

Initial direct costs"incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and are expensed over the lease term on the same basis as the lease income.

Modifications made to operating leases are accounted for as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification. Any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease are treated as part of
the lease payments of the new lease.

Taxation

Current tax assets and liabilities

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amant

already paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess
is recognised as an asset.

14



1.1

1.13

Current fax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to
be paid to (recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the
deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the
time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A
deferred tax asset is not recognised when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses to the extent that itis probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Tax expenses

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for
the period, except to the extent that the tax arises from:
« atransaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to other

comprehensive income, or
* a business combination.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax
relates to items that are credited or charged, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive

income.

Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that
are creditedor charged, in the same or a different period, directly in equity.

Impairment of assets

The company assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an
asset may be Impaired. If any such indication exists, the company estimates the recoverable amount of

the asset.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

15



in respect of trade receivables, receivables with a short duration are not discounted. Receivables that
are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Company's past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
‘the average credit period, as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The
remaining financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk
characteristics.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables and banking advances, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an impairment allowance account. When a trade receivable or banking advance is
considered uncollectable, it is written off against the impairment allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the impairment allowance account are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

1.14 Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment losses are reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.

1.15 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is a coniract that givés rise to a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument in another entity. Financial instruments held by the company are classified in
accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments.

The specific accounting policies for the classification, recognition and measurement of each type of
financial instrument held by the company are presented below:
1.16 Trade and other receivables

Classification

Trade and other receivables, excluding, when applicable, VAT and prepayments, are classified as financial
assets subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Recognition and measurement

Trade and other receivables are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the receivables. They are measured, at initial recognition, at fair value plus transaction
costs, if any.

Trade receivables without a significant financing component are initially measured at the transaction price.



Impairment

1.17

1.18

1.18

1.20

1.21

The company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on trade and other receivables,
excluding VAT and prepayments. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each reporting
date.

The company measures the loss allowance for trade and other receivables at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses (lifetime ECL), which represents the expected credit losses that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the receivable.

Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The company makes use of a provision matrix as a practical expedient to the determination of expected
credit losses on frade and other receivables. The provision matrix is based on historic credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current and forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including the

time value of money, where appropriate.

Write off policy

The company writes off a receivable when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficuity and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Receivables written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the company recovery procedures, considering legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowings and loans from related parties Classification
Amounts owing to group companies (note 9), amounts owing to shareholders (note 10) are classified
as financial llabllities subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial instruments (continued) Trade and other payables Classlfication
Trade and other payables (note 8), excluding VAT and amounts received in advance, are classified
as financial liabilities subsequenily measured at amortised cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are stated at carrying amount which is deemed to be fair value.

Derecognition

Financial assets

The company derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset to another party.
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Financial liabilities

1.22

1.23

1.24

The company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the company obligations are
discharged, cancelied or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue

Rental income from operating leases, which have fixed determinable escalation, is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a straight-line basis.

Investment income

Interest receivable on invested funds is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking account of the
principal outstanding and the effective rate over the period to maturity when it is determined that such
income will accrue to the Company.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until such time as the asset is ready for its intended
use. The amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined as follows:

1. Actual borrowing costs on funds specifically borrowéd for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset less any temporary investment of those borrowings.
2. Weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the entity on funds generally

borrowed for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The borrowing costs
capitalised do not exceed the total borrowing costs_inqurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs commences when:
3. expenditures for the asset have occurred;
4. borrowing costs have been incurred, and

5. activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress

Capitalisation is suspended during extended periods in which active development is
interrupted. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in

which they are incurred.
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2. New Standards and Interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted In the current year

In the current year, the company has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for
the currentfinancial year and that are relevant to its operations:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date: Years ' ~ Expected impact
| beginning on or after
s COVID-19 - Related Rent June 01, 2020 It is relevant to the company but as landlord
Concessions - Amendment to this has no Impact on thecompany.
IFRS 16
e Presentation of Financlal January 01, 2020 An assessment has been T
Statements; Disclosure initiative performed and this has no material impact
! | on the company.
* Accounting Policies, Changes in January 01, 2020 An assessment has been
Accounting Estimates and Emors: performed and this has no material impact
Disclosure initiative on the company.

2.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective

The company has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and
interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory for the company's
accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2021 or later periods:

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date: Years Expected Impact
) beginning on or after
o Classification of Liabilities as January 01, 2023 It is unlikely that this will have a materisl
- Current or Non-Current - impact on the company.
Amendment to IAS 1
*  Annual Improvement to IFRS January 01, 2022 It is unlikely that this will have a material
Standards 2018-2020: impact on the company.
Amendments to IFRS 1
.o Annual Improvement to IFRS January 01, 2022 It is unlikely that this will
" Standards 2018-2020: have a material impact on the company.
Amendments to IFRS 9
+ Interest Rate Benchmark Reform January 01, 2021 It is unlikely that this will
- Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS have a material impact on the company
9
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3.

Investment properties

2021 2020

Investment properties 196496732 (61 849476) 134647256 196 496 732 (57 229 473) 139 267 259
Reconciliation of investment properties ~ 2021
Opening Depreciation Total
balance
Investment properties 139 267 259 (4 620 003) 134647,
Reconciliation of investment properties - 2020
Opening Depreciation Total
balance
Investment properties 143 887 262 (4 620 003) 139 267 259
Details of properties
Portion 282 cf the Farm Witkoppie No.64 Townshlp of Boksburg
90-year usufruct commencing on February 25, 2007, over land measuring
1,9366 hectares, at cost.
- Cost of usufructuary right (land cost) 2 904 900 2 904 900
Portion 283 ﬁf'ihe Farm Witkopple No.64 Township of Boksburg =
90-year usufruct commeneing on July 18, 2007, over land measuring3,2862
hectares, at cost.
- Cost of usufructuary right {land cost) 7 982 700 7 982 700
Remainder .Erf 11, 3303 Cape Town
40-year usuffuct commencing April 2011 over land measuring 3,2862 ;
hectares, at cost.
- Cost of usufructuary right (land cost) i 14 385 179 14 385 179
Buildings and improvements
- Cost 171 223 953 171 223
953

The market value of the Boksburg usufructs over land and buildings was valued as at
January 01, 2020 and amounted to R244 000 000.

The market value of the Cape Town usufructs over land and buildings was valued as at
January 01, 2020 and amounted to R223 000 000.

Details of valuation

A discounted yield valuation performed by the Directors on June 30, 2021 indicated a
fair value of approximately R489 301 334, which is significantly in excess of the carrying
value.
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Deferred taxation

Deferred tax asset

Movement in deferred tax asset

Balance at beginning of year
Per statement of comprehensive income
Balance at end of year

Deferred taxation comprises temporary differences arlsing from:

Investment properties
Straight-lining of leased assets
Audit fee accrual

Trade and other receivables

Financial instruments:
Trade receivables

Non-financial instruments:

Prepayments
Total trade and other receivables

Exposure to credit risk

Trade raceivables inherently expose the company to credit risk, being the risk thet the
company will incur financial loss if customers fail to make payments as they fall due.
The trade receivables balance at June 30, 2021 consists of amounts that arenot

past due.

Exposure to currency risk

All trade receivables are fixed in Rand. As trade and other receivables have limited
exposure to exchange rate fluctuations, a currency analysis has not been included.

Cash and cash equivalents ©

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Bank balances

1514 479 1272964
1272 964 908 564
241 515 364 400
1514 479 1272964
4769 115 3475514
(3276 059) (2 223 875)
21423 21325
1514 479 1272964
285 401 551 950
1620 1550
287 021 553 500
PR F
4 465 698 5777036
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Figures in Rand 2021 2020
7. Share capltal
Authorised
1 000 Ordinary shares of R1 each 1000 1000
Issued
2 Ordinary shares of R1 each 2 2
The unissued shares are under the control of the directors who are authorised to
allot shares as they deem fit.
The issued shares are fully paid.
8. Trade and other payables
Financial instruments:
Other payables - 37 143
Accrued audit fees 76 510 76 160
Non-financial instruments:
VAT 618 873 567 913
695 383 681216
9. Amounts owing to group companles
Bidvest Properties (Proprietary) Limited - Shareholder's loan 27413 017 38 507 159
The lpan bears interest at 10.72% (2020: 10.72%) per annum and has no fixed
terms of repayment. No security Is in place for this loan.
Long-term portion of amounts owing to group companies - -
Shori-term portion of amounts owing to group companies 27 413 017 38 507 159
27 413 017 38 507 15¢
The Bidvest Properties (Proprietary) Limited and Airports Company South Africa (refer
note 10) loans should remain pari passu, at all times. Shareholders would require each
other's consent to apply for the company.to be liquidated or placed under judiciat
management.
10. Amounts owing to other shareholders
Airports Company South Africa Limited - Sharehoider's loan 27 413017 38 507 159
The loan bears interest at 10.72% (2020: 10.72%) per annum and has no
fixed terms of repayment. No security is in place for this loan.
Long-term portion of amount owing to other shareholders - -
Short-term portion of amount owing to other shareholders 27 413017 38 507 159
27 413 017 38 507 159

The Airports Company South Africa Limited and Bidvest Properties (Proprietary)
Limited (refer note 9) loans should remain pari passu at all times. Shareholders
would require each other’'s consent to apply for the company to be liquidated or placed
under judicial management.
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Figures in Rand 2021 2020

11. Operating profit

=

Operating profit for the year is stated after charging (crediting) the
following,amongst others:

Auditor's remuneration

Audit fees - PwC (68 250) (68 250)
AFS drafiing fees - Papilsky Hurwitz (8 260) (7910)
{76 510) (76 160)

Rental income

From Bidvest Group companies 28764 100 26 571542

From non-Bidvest Group companies 7 933 500 7 380 000
36 697 600 33 951 542

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation of investment property on the cost model (4 620 003) (4 620 003)

Other

Straight-lining of leases adjustment 3 757 800 3322210

412. Finance income ‘r

Interest income

Interest received from financial institutions 484 650 998 164

Other interest received 338 3775

Total interest income 484 986 1001 939

43. Finance costs

Interest on amounts owing to group companies and shareholder 7811716 10087 972

Total finance costs 7811 716 10 097 972

Less: Interest capitalised to loans (3 905 858) (5 048 986)

Total finance costs pald 3 905 858 5048 986
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Figures in Rand 2021 2020
14. Taxation
Major components of the tax expense
Current taxation
Current year 8 044 100 6 125 146
Deferred taxation
Current year (241 515) (364 400,
7 802 585 5760 746
Tax rate reconciliation
The reconciliation of the effective taxation rate with the South African company
taxation rate is:
Taxation for the year as a percentage of profit before taxation 28.00 % 28.00 %
Rate of South African company taxation 28.00 % 28.00 %
15. Cash generated from operations
Profit before taxation 27 866 376 20 574 003
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of investment properties 4 620 003 4 620 003
Increase in straight-lining of leased asset (3 757 800) (3322 210)
interest Income (484 986) {1 001 939)
Finance costs 7811716 10 097 972
Changes in working capltal:
Decrease (Increase) in frade and other receivables 266 484 (274 888)
increase in trade and other payables 14 166 186 988
36 335 959 30 880 010
16. Taxation paid
Balance payable at beginning of the year {154 477) {57 237)
Current tax for the year recognised in profit or loss (8 044 100) (6 125 146)
Balance payable at end of the year 66294 154477
(8 132 283) (6 027 906)
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1.

Figures in Rand

2021

2020

Related parties

Relationships
Shareholders

Members of key management - Directors

Bidvest Property Holdings (Proprietary) Limited (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of The Bidvest Group

Limited)

Airports Company South Africa Limited

TJ Fuzani

FP Smit

WH Kretzmar
B Matshego

The subsidiaries of the Company's shareholders and The Bidvest Group Limited are considered to be related parties of

the Company.

Related party balances

The Company has received loans from group companies and shareholders. These
loans are set out on the Statement of Financial Position and in notes 9 and 10.

These transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail In arm’s

length transactions.
Related party transactions

The following transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in
arm’s length transactions between related parties and the Company.

Interest paid to related parties
Bidvest Properties (Proprietary) Limited
Airports Company South Africa Limited

Rent received from related parties
Lithotec
Bidvest intemational Logistics

Administration fees pald to related party
Bidvest Properties (Proprietary) Limited

3 905 858 5 048 986
3 905 858 5 048 986
(9 699 782) (8 919 396)

(19064 318) (17 652 146

550 464 339 515
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2. Nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments

Financial Risk Management

Overview

The company is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
1. Credit risk;
2. Liquidity risk; and
3.  Market risk (interest rate risk).

The Company has limited exposure to risks arising from its use of financial instruments. The Company
is financed by its shareholders and has limited exposurs to financial risks.

Credit risk

The Company only trades with subsidiaries of The Bidvest Group Limited and thus the Company's
directors believe that it is not exposed to any material credit risk. Trade receivables due from Bidvest
Group companies were not impaired at year-end as these balances were considered to be recoverable.

Liquidity risk
Borrowings comprise amounts owing to group companies and shareholders. The expected maturity of
financial liabilities is not expected to differ from the contractual maturities as disclosed in notes 9 and 10.

Interest rate risk
The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk is limited, as the interest rates for all amounts owing to
group companies and shareholders have been fixed. Refer to notes 9 and 10.

interest rate sensitivity analysis

- At June 30, 2021, if the interest rate had been 1.000% per annum higher during the year,'With all other

variables held constant, profit or loss for the year would have been R275 180 lower. This sensitivity
analysis has been prepared using the average net borrowings for the financial year. A decrease In
interest rates would have an equal and opposite effect on profit or loss.

3. Going concern
The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to
a going concem. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that
the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in
the ordinary course of business.
‘Please refer to notes 9 and 10 of the annual financial statements for the special consideration given in

respect of shareholders loans and in support of the company being a going concem.

4, Subsequent events



No subsequent events which require adjustment to or disclosure in these annual financial statements were
noted at the time of signing the annual financial statements.
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Entered into by and between

GOVERNMENT OF THE REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA

HEREIN REPRESENTED BY THE MINISTER OF TRANSPORT

And

AIRPORTS COMPANY SOUTH AFRICA LIMITED

FOR THE 2022/23 FINANCIAL YEAR

Confidential



1. INTRODUCTION

11 The Company has been established in terms of the Act and is listed in Part 2 Schedule 2 of the
PFMA and the Objectives and the functions of the Company are governed by the Act.

1.2  In terms of Regulation 29.2 of the Regulations —

13  the Accounting Authority for a public company listed in Schedule 2, 3B and 3D must, in
consultation with its Executive Authority, annually conclude a Shareholder Compact; and

1.4  the Shareholder compact must document the mandated key performance measures and
indicators to be attained by the public company as agreed between the Accounting Authority
and-the Executive Authority. The Accounting Authority must, in terms of the PFMA, comply with
its fiduciary duties and manage all revenue, expenditure, assets and liabilities of the Company
effectively and efficiently.

15  The Executive Authority and the Accounting Authority wish to:

1.5.1 establish a transparent and accountable working relationship on matters relating to the
implementation of the provisions of the PFMA, the Companies Act, the Act and the
memorandum of incorporation;

1.5.2 enter into this Shareholder Compact to assist the Parties to measure the Accounting
Authority and the Company’s performance, and to support and manage the working
relationship between them; and

1.5.3 enterinto this Shareholder Compact to execute their obligations in terms of Regulation
29.2 of the Reguiations for the financial year 2022/24

2. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION
21 Definitions

In this Shareholder Agreement, the following expressions and words have the meaning
assigned to them below and derivative expressions and words will have a corresponding
meaning, unless inconsistent with or otherwise indicted by the context —-

2.1.1 “Accounting Authority” means the Board of Directors of the Company as appointed in
accordance with the Act;

212 “Act” means the Airports Company Act (Act No. 44 of 1993);
2.1.3 “Chairman” means the Chairman of the Accounting Authority;

2.1.4 “Committee” means a Committee of the Accounting Authority required in terms of the
PFMA and the Regulations and Companies Act;

2.1.6 “Companies Act” means the Companies Act, Act No. 71 of 2008 amended;

2.1.6 “Company Secretary” means the person appointed as the secretary of the Accounting
Authority as defined in the Companies Act;

2.1.7 “Corporate Plan” means the corporate plan as stated in section 52(b) of the PFMA;
2.1.8 *“Department” means the Department of Transport;

21.9 “Director” means a member of the Accounting Authority as referred to in the Act and
Companies Act;

2.1.10 “Company” means Airports Company South Africa SOC Limited;

2.1.11 “Effective Date” means date of signature of this Agreement by the last Party signing in
time;
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2.2

2.1.12 “Executive Authority” means the Minister of Transport or his delegats;

2.1.13 “CEO” means the Chief Executive Officer and Accounting Officer in terms of the PFMA:
the Managing Director as specified in the Airports Company Act or person who has been
appointed to act in the position of Chief Financial Officer;

2.1.14 “CFO” means the Chief Financial Officer of the Company or person who has been
appointed to act in the position of the Chief Financial Officer;

2.1.15 “Financial Year” means the Financial Year beginning on 1 April of a specific year and
ending on 31 March of the following year,

2.1.16 “King Report” means the King Report IV on Corporate Governance for South Africa,
2016 as updated and amended;

2.1.17 “Member” means a member of a Committee;
2.1.18 “Memorandum/MOI” means the memorandum of incorporation of the Company:

2.1.19 “Month” means a calendar month;

2.1.20 “Parties” means the Executive Authority and the Accounting Authority or any one of
them as the context may indicate;

2.1.21 “PFMA” means the Public Finance Management Act, Act No, 1 of 1999 as amended;

2.1.22 “Regulations” means the Treasury Regulations to the PFMA initially published under
GNR 345 of 9 April 2001, as amended;

2.1.23 “Representative” means a person appointed by the Parties in terms of this
Shareholder Compact to fulfil and administer the functions set out herein on behalf of

the Party which appointed such person;

2.1.24 “Shareholder Compact” means this document, as required in terms of Regulation 29.2
of the Regulations, including all annexures hereto;

2.1.25 “Statute” means any act of Parliament or regulation thereto or any bther enactment
having the force of law;

2.1.26 “Strategic Plan” means the Strategic Plan of the Company, under Regulations 5 and
30.1.3 of the Regulations; and

2.1.27 “Writing"” means handwritten, type-written or printed communication, including
telegram, facsimile transmission, electronic transmission or any like communication and

“in Writing” and “Written” shall have corresponding meanings.

Interpretation

In this Shareholder Compact —

2.2.1 unless the context indicates a contrary intention, an expression which denotes -
2.2.1.1 any reference to the singular includes the plural and vice versa;
2.2.1.2 any reference to the natural person includes legal person and vice versa; and
2.2.1.3 any reference to a gender includes the other genders;

2.2.2 when any number of days is prescribed same shall, unless otherwise specifically stated,
be reckoned exclusively of the first and inclusively of the last day;

2.2.3 where words have been defined in the body of this Shareholder Compact, such words
shall, unless otherwise required by the context, have the meanings so assigned to them

throughout this Shareholder Compact;
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2.2.4 where any provision contemplates a notice to be given or agreement to be reached
between the Parties, such notice or agreement shall be in writing, unless expressly
provided otherwise;

2.2.5 if any provision of this Shareholder Compact is in any way inconsistent with the
provisions of the PFMA, the Companies Act, the relevant provision of the PFMA, the
Companies Act, or the Act shall prevail, and this Shareholder Compact shall be read in
respects subject thereto; and

2.2.6 if any provision of this Shareholder Compact is in any way inconsistent with the
memorandum of incorporation of the Company, the provision of memorandum of
incorporation shall prevail. In the event of such conflict, the Company agrees to take all
such necessary actions, and such actions as are conducive, to ensure alignment with
the memorandum of incorporation as necessary under this clause 2.2.6

PURPOSE OF SHAREHOLDER COMPACT

3.1

3.2

The purpose of this Shareholder Compact is to -

3.1.1 formalise and regulate the working relationship between the Executive Authority and the
Accounting Authority;

3.1.2 give effect to the mandate of the Company as outlined in the Act; and

3.1.3 give effect to the obligations of the Parties to conclude a Shareholders Compact as
stated in Regulation 29.2 of the Regulations.

In a mutual effort to enhance business performance and good corporate governance within the
Company, the parties to this Agreement hereby agree to the terms and conditions set out
below.

LEGISLATIVE MANDATE OF THE COMPANY

4.1

4.2

43

4.4

The legislative mandate of the Company is set out in the Act and the Company is required to
perform and comply with such legislative mandate as read in the Act in conjunction with the:
MOL

In terms of section 4 of our enabling Act, the objectives of the Airports Company South Africa
are;

“the acquisition, é‘s‘tablishment, development, provision, maintenance, management, control or
operation of any airport, part of the airport or any facility or service normally related to the ‘
functioning of an airport”

Concurrent with achieving the legislative mandate, the Company shali deliver on and adhere to
the national priorities of Government.

The Accounting Authority shall integrate any governmental policy, relating to the Company, into
its corporate plan, key performance measures and indicators and borrowing programme in
order to execute its legislative mandate.

CRITICAL ASSUMPTIONS

The Parties have assumed that the timeous submission of the document under this Shareholder
Compact being provided to the Accounting Authority is critical to;

5.1

the Department making informed decisions; and
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52 providing the National Treasury and the Executive Authority with information which enables the
efficient execution of the Executives Authority’s mandate.

6. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY

6.1 The point of departure for establishing clear relationships between the Executive Authority and
the Accounting Authority is that sufficient freedom of action should be allowed to enable each of
them to achieve their respective objectives and to carry out their respective functions in
ensuring effective corporate governance of the Company in line with recommendations and

principles of the King Report.

6.2  As stated in section 63 of the PFMA, the role and responsibility of the Executive Authority is to
exercise the Executive Authority’s ownership powers to ensure that the Company complies with
the Act, PFMA and the financial policies of the Executive Authority.

6.3 The Minister is accountable to Parliament for the exercise of his powers and the performance of
his duties.

6.4  The Minister will communicate with the Chairperson of the Accounting Authority on issues
relating to the Company.

{ 6.5  The Executive Authority may, subject to 1.4 and 1.5, in writing, instruct the Accounting
Authority to discontinue any activity of the Accounting Authority within a specified period, where
such activity is contrary to the strategic or economic interest of the Republic of South Africa and

the Accounting Authority.

6.6 The Executive Authority may intervene in the following as the Executive Authority sees fit;

6.6.1 the overall assessment of the Accounting Authority’s performance on the basis of the
Company's actual performance in delivering the desired outcomes and objectives of the

Company and pre-agreed objectives of Government; and

6.6.2 the overall monitoring and reporting to Parliament of the financial, commercial and
socio-economic strategic performanoe of the Company.

6.6.3 for this purpose, the Accounting Authority shall report to the Executive Authority on the
matters and at the intervals stipulated in the PFMA and the Shareholder Compact.

6.7  The Executive Authority has the right to solicit independent advice and audit support in the
discharge of the Executive Authority role and functions in terms of the Shareholder Compact.

7.  UNDERTAKINGS BY THE EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY

7.1 The Executive Authority undertakes to -

7.1.1 provide an environment that encourages the discretion of the Accounting Authority
regarding matters falling within its authority, as provided for in the Act, the Memorandum

and this Shareholder Compact;

7.1.2 expedite the implementation of critical decisions and for this financial year these are set
in Annexure A1 hereto;

7.1.3 facilitate the proper constitution of the Accounting Authority and to fill vacancies that
arise promptly;

7.1.4 promote the Company's programmes in Cabinet where such programmes have been
approved by the Executive Authority,
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7.1.5

engage with the Accounting Authority, before exercising any of his or her powers in
terms of the Act, if the exercise of such will -

7.1.5.1 affect the performance of the Company’s functions;

7.1.5.2 commit the Company to implement or give effect to a decision made by the
Executive Authority; or

7.1.5.3 have a substantial financial impact on the Company; and

7.1.6 faciiitate the adjustment of agreed measures and indictors and / or provide the

resources to enable the Company to meet any such issued directives or any agreed
plans.

B. THE COMPANY

8.1

8.2

Role of the Accounting Authority

The Accounting Authority collectively represents the Company and all acts of or under the
Company.

Responsibilities of the Accounting Authority

8.2.1

8.2.2

The Accounting Authority is responsible for the performance of the Company and is fully
accountable to the Executive Authority for such performance.

In executing its responsibilities , the Accounting Authority and each individual member of
the Accounting Authority undertake to;

8.2.2.1 act in good faith and for a proper purpose;
8.2.2.2 in the best interests of the Company;
8.2.2.3 with care, skill and diligence;

8.2.2.4 avoid conflict of interest; and

8.2.2.5 act in a manner based on tionesty, faimess, transparency, accountability and
responsibility; ,

8.2.2.6 The Directors of the Accounting Authority will disclose any personal interest in
decisions taken by the Accounting Authority in the conflict register referred to in
clause12.2.5 below; fo &

8.2.2.7 The Directors of the Accounting Authority agree to be individually and severally
liable pursuant to the PFMA and the Companies Act, for fraud, reckless trading,
failure to disclose interest in contracts, falsifying books and records, or making
false statements;

8.2.2.8 The Directors agree that, with respect to negligence by a Director, the level of
such liability referred to in 8.2.2.7 above, will vary
according to the degree of a Directors’ compliance with Section 76(3) and 76(4)
of the Companies Act;

8.2.2.9 The Accounting Authority is responsible for timeously and prudently undertaking
all key activities required for the efficient and effective running of the Company,
including but not limited to the appointment of Executive Directors to the
Company and capital decisions within the ordinary course of business;
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8.3

8.2.2.10 The Accounting Authority shall provide a quarterly reporting package 30
days after the end of the quarter, to the Executive Authority on the
matters and in the approved format;

8.2.2.11 The Accounting Authority will, at its discretion, report to the Executive
Authority on matters of strategic importance that fall outside the agreed
framework of this Shareholders Compact and the PFMA as agreed from
time to time during its Board Meetings;

8.2.2.12 In order to facilitate effective performance monitoring, evaluation and
corrective action, the report will cover the following;

8.2.2.12.1 actual performance against key performance indicators
that were planned for the quarter as well as an explanation
for any deviations and the corrective action that will be
taken;

822122 financial performance against budget as well as an
explanation for any deviations and the comrective action
that will be taken;

8.2.212.3 financial position; and

8.2.212.4 liquidity position and progress in implementing the
Borrowing Plan, if any as well as an explanation for any
deviations and the corrective action that will be taken.

8.2.213 The Accounting Authority commits itself to exercising ethical leadership,
integrity and business judgment in directing the Company so as.to
achieve continuing prosperity for the Company;

The Accounting Authority shall ensure that:

8.3.1

8.3.2

8.3.3

8.3.4

8.3.5

8.3.6

8.3.7

each member of the Accounting Authority is fully aware of, and complies with all
applicable Statues, Government Policies and codes of business practices;

it concludes a Shareholder Compact with the Executive Authority on or before the start
of the new financial year;

the Directors of the Accounting Authority have' unrestncted access to accurate, relevant
information of the Company; :

there is appropriate and effective induction, education and training offered to new and
existing Directors of the Accounting Authority;

the Directors of the Accounting Authority act on a fully informed basis, in good faith, with
diligence, care and skill and in the best interest of the Company, whilst taking account
the interests of all stakeholders, including employees, creditors, customers, suppliers

and local communities;

the Company acts in accordance with, and achieves the key performance measures and
indictors as set out in the corporate plan.-

the key performance measures and indicators the Executive Authority requires, as set
out in the corporate plan are achieved and can be measured;
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8.3.8 the Company maintains adequate accounting records and the Company prepares
financial statements for each Financial Year, which fairly presents the affairs of the
Company;

8.3.9 the Company consistently applies suitable accounting policies, supported by reasonable
and prudent judgement and estimates in the preparation of the financial statements;

8.3.10 the Company maximises the benefits from the resources allocated to it and undertakes
rigorous auditing processes and proactive financial management;

8.3.11 the Company pursues efficiency through developing enhanced administrative,
evaluation, information and technical processes;

8.3.12 the Company holds an annual general meeting at least once a year as prescribed in the
Companies Act;

8.3.13 it develops a clear definition of the levels of materiality or sensitivity in order to
determine the scope of delegation of authority and ensures that it reserves specific
powers and authority to itself;

8.3.14 all delegations of authority are reduced to writing and kept under review; and

8.3.15 the Company -

8.3.16.1 investigates and where appropriate, researches or employs
methodologies that will be to the national benefit or could contribute to
alleviating the financial burden of those to whom the Company provides
services; ’

8.3.16.2 diligently adheres to the corporate objectives statement, corporate plan,
reporting requirements and borrowing programme for the relevant
Financial Year;

8.3.15.3 diligently carries out all necessary actions of the Company in accordance
with PFMA, the Companies Act, the Regulations and this Shareholders
Compact; and

8.3.15.4 only disposes of assets in accordance with the PFMA and the Act, within
normal course of business;

8.3.16 it gives strategic direction to and controls the Company;

8.3.17 it monitors the Company’s management closely by implementing the Accounting
Authority's plans and strategies;

8.3.18 the Company complies with Statues, government policies and codes of business
practice;

8.3.10 it develops and implements an effective succession plan for Executive Directors and
adheres thereto;

8.3.20 the Company develops and implements effective internal control procedures in
accordance with PFMA, the Regulations, the King Report and best practice governance;

8.3.21 it communicates with the Executive Authority and relevant stakeholders openly and
promptly;
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8.4

8.5

8.6

8.3.22 the Company formulates, monitors and reviews corporate strategy, major plans of
action, risk policy, annual budgets and business plans;

8.3.23 the Company maintains adeguate accounting records on an annual or such more
frequent basis as the Accounting Authority may determine;

8.3.24 at least annually, it appraises the performance of the Company Secretary, Directors and
Chairperson;

8.3.25 it reviews and evaluates.its required mix of skills and experiences and other qualities in
order to assess the effectiveness of the entire Accounting Authority, its committees and
the contribution of each individual Director during his / her term of office;

8.3.26 the Company establishes an appropriate mechanism for reporting the results of the
Accounting Authority assessment to the Executive Authority.

8.3.27 the Company monitors and manages potential conflicts of interest of the Directors and
Management promptly and keeps a register of the conflicts of interests of all its

employees;

8.3.28 it always maintains the highest standard of integrity, responsibility, and accountability
and ensure it finds a fair balance between conforming to corporate govemnance
principles and the performance of the Company;

8.3.29 it closely monitors the process of disclosure and communication and exercises objective
judgement on the affairs of the Company and its independent management:

8.3.30 it deals expeditiously with the directives given by the Executive Authority and promotes
and supports the policies of Government; and

8.3.31 it supports the Executive Authority and the Department with the development and
implementation of the national strategic objectives such as the New Growth Path and

the National Development Plan;

The-Accounting Authority warrants that it is fully conversant with all relevant statutory and
fiduciary requirements having a direct or indirect bearing on -

8.4.1 the Shareholder Compact; and
8.4.2 the Accounting Authority’s fiduciary duties.

Shpuld the Accounting Authority become aware of any circumstances or problems, which has
prevent it, is preventing it or will prevent it from performing its duties or functions that will have a
significant effect on such duties and functions, its shall, as soon as it is reasonable possible
after becoming aware thereof, advise the Executive Authority in writing of such circumstances

or problems;

The Accounting Authority undertakes not to delegate responsibility under the PFMA
requirements stated below —

8.6.1 development of the annual corporate plan for the Company;

8.6.2 carrying out the quarterly reporting;

8.6.3 preparation of the annual report and financial statements;

8.6.4 submissions in terms of Section 54 (2) of the PFMA; and
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8.7

8.8

8.6.5 development of the Materiality Framework; and
8.6.6 applications for variation or renegotiation of the Shareholder Compact,
Services by the Company to the Executive Authority and the Department

8.7.1 the Company will provide those services as are required in terms of its legislative
mandate in the Act and the Executive Authority's objectives;

8.7.2 The Company will make itself aware of any changes to its service obligations, but
subject to the provisions of clause 7.1.6 above, take all necessary steps to efficiently
begin providing such services;

8.7.3 The Company will provide technical support as required by the Department when the
latter is negotiating and concluding international agreements with other states;

8.7.4 The Company will remain abreast with international and national affairs in the aviation
industry and make recommendations to the Executive Authority and the Department
with regards to matters connected with aviation policy;

8.7.56 The Company shall, upon request of the Executive Authority —

8.7.5.1 assist the Executive Authority, or any other person whom the Executive Authoriy
may designate, in any investigation, prosecution or any other steps resulting
from occurrence of any industry matter; or

8.7.5.2 furnish the Executive Authority, or such other person, with information, -
documents, written declarations or any other evidence which it has in its
possession and which is related to such incident;

8.7.6 The Company undertakes to cooperate and liaise with relevant law enforcement
agencies regarding information in their procession that may be required by a court of
law;

8.7.7 Therﬁccounting Authority will keep the Executive Authority informed on matters of
coricern between the Company and other state departments and authorities within the
republic of South Africa;

8.7.8 The Accounting Authority shall notify the Executive Authority of any agreements, which
the Company may enter into with other state departments;

8.79 The {?qmpany will provide the information necessary to execute deparimental function
and responsibilities as and when requested. Loni

8.7.10 The Company will provide Board resolutions under signature of the Board Secretary or
Chairperson to accompany documentation and submission where approval by the
Minister is necessary;

National Strategic Objectives

8.8.1 The Accounting Authority shall support and undertake to assist the Executive Authority
and the Department with the development and implementation of National Strategic
Objectives;

8.8.2 The Executive Authority shall formally document and communicate to the Accounting
Authority any national strategic objective to ensure-that the strategic objectives of the
Company coincide with the national policy;
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10.

8.8.3 The Accounting Authority shall ensure that the Company shall implement such policies,
to promote and support certain specified key objectives of Government and shall report

through its Chairperson to the Executive Authority;

8.8.4 The Accounting Authority shall implement at least the following policies —
8.8.4.1 those which the Executive Authority. requires;
8.8.4.2 those which are legisiated;

8.8.4.3 employment equity policy;

8.8.4.4 procurement policy, which take into, account broad-based black economic
empowerment and a fair and objective procurement process in terms of the
broad-based black economic empowerment (B-BBEE) guidelines set by the
Department of Trade and Industry;

8.8.4.5 those which position the Company to deal with the global and economic
challenges facing the aviation industry by delivering a predictable safe, efficient
and reliable service to all the Company users;

8.8.4.8 code of ethics; and

8.8.4.7 policies which align the Company's overall operations with global aviation
matters and trends as well as aligning the operations cluster with the Company's
strategies and all relevant stakeholders like the Department, and those who use

its services,

FACILITATION OF PRIMARY RELATIONSHIP

in order to facilitate effective communication and accountability between the Executive Authority and
the Accounting Authority, regular meetings shall be held between the Executive Authority and the
Chairperson of the Accounting Authority as an when required, and the Chairperson shall provide

feedback to the Accounting Authority.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE .

10.1

10.2

10.3

Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Company shall comply with the PFMA and the
Regulations and will comply, as far as is reasonably possible, with the King Report. The
Accounting Authority must establish committees to improve its effectiveness. Committees shall
be formed as required by the business, provided that no less committees shall be formed than

the minimum set out by the:PFMA and the Regulations; 2

The Parties shall, where applicable, implement good practice guidelines as recommended in
the King Report and the Protocol on Governance in the Public Sector, 2002:

Appointment of the CEO:

10.3.1 The Accounting Authority is required to initiate the recruitment process and recommend
suitable candidates for consent of the Executive Authority prior to the appointment: and

10.3.2 Upon consent, the Accounting Authority shall ensure that the employment contract is
concluded and a copy is provided to the Executive Authority.
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1.

12,

13.

TREATMENT OF DEVELOPMENTAL OBJECTIVES

The Parties agree that the Company'’s corporate objectives shall include developmental and socio-
economic objectives and that the achievement of ali such objectives shall be measure through
quarterly and annual reports encompassing reports on the reporting system and;

1.1

Key performance indicators and PFMA reports; and

11.2 Governance report.

DURATION AND PROCESS OF CONCLUDING SHAREHOLDER COMPACT

12.1

12.2

The content of the Shareholder Compact shall remain the same but will be reviewed by the
Parties annually, in accordance with Regulation 29.2 of the Regulations;

The following minimum supporting documentation relating to this Shareholder Compact is to be
maintained by the Accounting Authority and access thereto is to be provided to the Executive
Authority and/or the Department on any reasonable request thereof;

12.2.1 corporate plan covering at least a three-year period;

12.2.2 fraud prevention plan;

12.2.3 any approved amendments to the documents stated in 12.1 above;

} 12.2.4 code of ethics’

12.2.5 Accounting Authority's register of conflicts of interest;
12.2.6 risk management plan; and

12.2.7 the signed statement of responsibility and delegations;

QUARTERLY EVALUATION

If the Executive Authority establishes that, after any quarterly assessment of the measures and
indicators, the Company fails —

13.1

13.2
13.3
13.4
13.5

13.6

13.7

To meet any one or more of the agreed measures and indicators by 26% or more for two (2)
successive quarters, or for the year as a whole taking into account the results to date and futr
forecasts; or

To meet the projected income or he{'cash; or

To adhere to the corporate objectives statement; or

To comply with the PFMA; or

To comply with relevant legislation and MOL;

To comply with quarterly key performance indicators and measures as set out in the corporate
plan: or

To comply with Governance matters, then the Executive Authority may execute hisfher authority
in a manner that is consistent with his/her mandate.
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14,

15.

16.

17.

BUDGETING AND FINANCING CYCLE

14.1

14.2

The Parties recognise that the Executive Authority , before the commencement of the new
Financial Year, must be provided with the Company’s annual budget and corporate plan;

Parties agree that the annual budget of the Company shall include a projection of revenue and
expenditure for that year.

PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

15.1

156.2

16.3

The Parties acknowledge that any significant deviation from the assumptions made in the
corporate plan as a result of factors outside of the Company’s control may require a review of
the key performance indicators set out in the corporate plan. The Parties undertake to
renegotiate those key performance indicators to the extent that the changes have caused, or
may cause or result in any prejudice, or benefit, to the Company;

The Company will submit the Draft Corporate Plan by 31 January 2023. After the submission of
the Draft Corporate Plan, feedback if any, on the corporate plan will be provided to the
Company in writing;

The Company will consider the written inputs of the Executive Authority before submitting the
final corporate plan to the Executive Authority within one month of the start of the financial year

in line with the provisions of the PFMA;

COMMUNICATION BETWEEN EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY AND ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY

16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

The Executive Authority may interact with the Accounting Authority and/or the Chairperson as
the Executive Authority sees fit.

Communication between the Executive Authority and the Chairperson, with respect to the
national agenda and the matters relating to the Executive Authority and the Chairperson as and

when required.

The Chairperson of the Board undertakes to represent the Accounting Authority, in the carrying
out the terms of this Shareholder Compact and in cascading the spirit of the Agreement

throughout the Company;

The Executive Authority approves of this approach and looks forward to the successful
implantation of the undertaking embodied in this Shareholder Compact.

GENERAL OBLIGATIONS AND UNDERTAKINGS BY, THE PARTIES TO ONE ANOTHER

171

Liaison with the Media

17.1.1 The Parties agree to advise each other in advance of any intention to liaise with the
media, where the subject matter to be addressed may have an adverse effect on the

powers, rights and privileges of the other Party;

17.1.2 However, the above does not in any way deprive a Party of its right to freely
communicate with the public on matters that relate to its core function;

17.1.3 The Parties shall maintain an open and transparent relationship and apprise each other
of decisions or planned decisions timeously, o avoid the occurrence of embarrassment
and surprises; this applies to dealings with the media and other third parties.
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17.2

17.3

Interaction with Foreign States and International Organisations

Before any agreements representing South Africa’s interest are biding to the country are
negotiated or entered into, Permission from the Executive Authority must be sought, clearly
outlining the Company's intentions and the implications for the Executive Authority and South

Africa.
Access to Information

With reference to section 8.3.9 and in addition to information referred to in the Act and this
Shareholder Compact relating to the annexures hereto, the Accounting Authority undertakes to,

on reasonable request -

17.3.1 furnish the Executive Authority and / or the Department, with any such information as
may be reasonably required from time to time; and

17.3.2 provide the Executive Authority and / or the Department with an updated report or
information on the Company’s activities and financial position.

18. GENERAL

18.1

18.2

No Variation

18.1.1 Except for as provided for previously in this Shareholder Compact relating to the
annexures hereto, no variation or consensual cancellation of this Shareholder Compact,
and no addition to this Shareholder Compact, inciuding this clause, shall be of any force
or effect unless reduced to writing and signed by the Parties;

18.1.2 The Parties shall follow a process to be determined by the Depariment to effect any
variations to this Shareholder Compact.

Conflict Resolution

18.2.1 In the event that either Party fails to comply with any provision of this Shareholder
Compact, or if any dispute arises between the Parties as to the interpretation,
application or performance of any provision of this ‘Shareholder Compact (including, but
not limited to, whether or not we have met our measures and indicators, proposed or
new regulations and / or a decision by the Executive Authority affecting the agreed
measures and indicators), the matter shall first be referred to the Representatives of the
Parties who will use their best endeavours to resolve the dispute within 14 (fourteen)
working days of the dispute having been referred to them;

18.2.2 Should the Parties’ Representatives fail to resolvéiﬁé dispute within 14 (fourteen)
working days, the Parties’ Representatives shall refer the dispute to the Executive
Authority and the Chairperson, who shall use their best endeavours to resolve the

dispute;

18.2.3 Should the Executive Authority and the Chairperson fail to reach an agreement in regard
to the resolution of the dispute, the Executive Authority may refer the matter to an
independent third party appointed by the Executive Authority or his delegate (where

allowed);

18.2.4 The matter shall be resolved by the decision of the Executive Authority, or where
applicable, the person appointed in terms of clausé 18.2.3 above;

18.2.5 The matter shall be resolved at the Executive Authority’s discretion and any decision by
the Executive Authority or such person shall be final and binding on the Parties.
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18.3 Whole Agreement

18.3.1 This Shareholder Compact, together with the annexures hereto (and any amendments
or later annexures as approved by the Company's relevant Executive Authority),
constitutes the wholé of the agreement between the Parties. No instructions,
agreements, representations or warranties between the Parties other than those set out

herein, are binding on the Parties;

18.3.2 All undertakings and annexures to this Shareholder Compact are declared active when
this document is signed.

18.4 Domicilia and Notices

18.4.1 The Parties choose as their domicilia citandi et executandi their respective addresses
set out in this clause for all purposes arising out of or in connection with this Shareholder
Compact at which addresses all processes and notices arising out of or in connection
with this Shareholder Compact, may validly be served upon or delivered to the Parties:

18.4.2 For purposes of this Shareholder Compact the Parties respective addresses shall be ~

18.5 Executive Authority

Department of Transport
Cnr Bosman and Struben
Pretoria

0001

Marked for the attention of the Acting Director General

E-mail: Mthunzi.madiva@dot.gov.za

18.6 The Company

Airports Company South Africa SOC Ltd _
Westerh Precinct, Aviation Park, O.R. Tambo International Airport

1 Jones Road
Kempton Park
1632

Marked for the attention of the Company Secretary

E-mall: Fefekazi.sefaraf@airports.co.za

Or at such other address in the Republic of South Africa of which the Party concerned may
notify the other in Writing provided that no street address mentioned in this sub-clause shall be

changed to a post office box or poste restante.
18.7 Any notice given in terms of this Shareholder Compact shall be in Writing and shall -

18.7.1 if delivered by hand, be deemed to have been duly received by the addressee on the
date of delivery;

18.7.2 if transmitted by electronic mail, be deemed to have been received by the addressee on
the date of transmission, unless the contrary is proved.
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THUS, DONE AND SIGNED at on this

of 2022,

-

el T /"<__H .
P Vs L T
/‘EHQ‘ RW_N]OF THE AIRPORTS COMPANY SOUTH AFRICA BOARD
N o

AS WITNESSES:

' e

THUS, DONE AND SIGNED at ?W [ onthis 2|4

of P‘PT o- 2022.

flhais

MITJ?H ER OF TRANSPORT

AS WITNESSES:
1 i 2

I

day

day
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ANNEXURE A1. - KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

1. ALIGNMENT TO THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORT'S STRATEGIC FOCUS
AREAS

We are intent on strengthening and contributing to the African and international agenda of a
betier Africa and the world. This in turn will assist us in contributing to economic growth
through tourism and trade; particularly hamessing opportunities presented by the African Free
Trade Agreement, cargo exports in sectors and destinations targeted for diversification, and
together with the Ministry of Tourism driving growth in domestic and international tourism. We
will continue to contribute though-leadership to the National Spatial Development Framework
and the development of Aerotropoli in KSIA, ORTIA and CTIA. The integration of our airports
to affordable, safe and reliable transport remains our focus.

PUBLIC TRANSPORT INFRASTRUCTURE

SAFETY as anenabler 13 build that stimulates
of service delivery ma At c cconomic growth and
job creation

ENVIRONMENTAL
GOVERNANCE -
I ia A Greater Efficiency,
> oy Effectiveness and
Accountability

natural cmm,nmr.-nt

Department of Transport Strategic Focus Areas
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ACSA's contribution to the Department of Transport's strategic thrusts to be the following:

a. Safety as an enabler of service delivery

Aviation authorities to act in concert with other law enforcement authorities to arrest the
escalation of crimes against international and domestic travellers, robbery of valuable
cargo and facilitation of contraband and illegal immigrants;

365-Days Action Agenda which seeks to create a vertical alignment of policing activity
through syndicated themes and activities;

in-source security. The annual ACSA investment of approximately R437 million must be
directed toward creating permanent jobs and sustainable livelihoods for those entrusted
with securing our airports;

Rolling out of a security model in aviation that is vertically and horizontally integrated with
other law enforcement authorities, initially focusing on passenger security then broadened
to include cargo and infrastructure using the US, Canada and Brazil similar models, which
rely on internal capacity, rather than outsourced security arrangements; and

Contribute to a new institutional arrangement that seamlessly integrates transport security
and safety in a single entity.

b. Infrastructure build that stimulates economic growth and job creation

Wall-to-wall approach to Integrated Public Transport Networks infrastructure planning and
delivery to enable seamless mobility and efficiencies in public transport; and

New institutional arrangement in the form of an Enterprise Project Management Office
(EPMO) to support entities and establish a repository of project management expertise
with a mandate to ensure capital projects contribute towards economic growth and job
creation.

. Public transport that enables social emancipation and an economy that works

Seamiess integration of public transport ééross all modes
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